
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 6, 2023 

Location: Public can now attend meeting in person. Meetings will 
continue to be offered via Zoom (see last page for connection details)   
Per Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is MEDIUM; masks are 
not required, but are recommended for those at risk of severe illness 

 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Public please hold comments until the BOS Chairman opens the agenda items for 
public comment 
 

II. Public Hearing(s) 
 
A. Northeast Lobster Co. LLC d/b/a The Nor’ Easter 10 Huntington Rd, Northeast 

Harbor request for Special Amusement Permit 
B. May 2, 2023 Town Meeting Proposed Warrant Articles for Appropriation of Funds, 

Ordinance Amendments, and Ordinances (Note:  Land Use Zoning Ordinance 
articles had public hearings on 2/8/2023 and 2/22/2023)  

 
 
III. Minutes 

A. Approval of minutes from February 13, 2023 meeting 
B. Approval of minutes from February 21, 2023 meeting 

 
 
IV. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

None presented. 
 

V. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
A. Department Reports:  Highway 
B. Short-term Rental Discussion letter from Brendan McPeak; February 26, 2023 
C. Hancock County Commissioners Meeting Minutes from February 7, 2023 

 
VI. Selectmen’s Reports 

 
 

VII. Unfinished Business 
A. Consideration of Private Placement Application- Friendship Bench, Pond’s End  
B. Discussion of the Stanley Lane streetlight by Captain Dave Kerns 
C. Review of the newly proposed Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance, which 

repeals and replaces the No Swimming and Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great 
Ponds Ordinances 

D. Non-profit Funding Request Recommendations 
E. Review and Final Votes on Warrant Articles for May 1 and 2, 2023 Annual Town 

Meeting 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Agenda March 6, 2023 
 

Page 2 of 3 

VIII. New Business 
A. Northeast Lobster Co. LLC d/b/a The Nor’ Easter 10 Huntington Rd, Northeast 

Harbor request for Liquor License Renewal and Special Amusement Permit Renewal 
B. Consider authorizing up to $18,000 to be spent from the Buildings & Grounds 

Reserve account 4055200-24571 with a current balance of $30,759.68 as of January 
31, 2023 to fund a feasibility study of building a salt/sand building as described in 
memo from Public Works Director Brian Henkel dated March 2, 2023 

C. MDES Budget Review 
D. Public Space Special Event Application – MDI Farmers’ Market Northeast Harbor 

Village Green; Thursdays; 9am – noon from June 20 – September 7, 2023 
E. Public Space Special Event Application – Help Portrait MDI Seal Harbor Village 

Green; Saturday, October 7, 2023; 8am – noon 
F. Consider request Repeal Category 1 and Category 2 details as established in 2013 of 

the police Outside Detail Compensation policy 
G. Consider request to increasing our standard outside detail rate to $100/hour with a 

three-hour minimum charged to the customer and increasing Officer’s pay to 
$75/hour with a guaranteed three-hour minimum beginning FY 24 for the police 
Outside Detail Compensation policy 

H. Request authorization to pay Norwood Delaittre & Sons Inc $4,800.00 for the repair 
work from the December 23, 2022 storm.  Funds to be taken from the Seal Harbor 
Docks CIP reserve #6410200-24600, with a balance of $86,551.58 

I. Consider accepting assignment of miscellaneous equipment related to the Skating 
Rink by gift from the Town of Mount Desert Community Development Corporation 
and authorize Durlin Lunt, Town Manager, to sign the necessary documents to 
facilitate the assignment.   

J. Consider accepting additional monetary gift of $4,000 from the Town of Mount 
Desert Community Development Corporation to be used for Skating Rink 
maintenance 

K. Consider authorizing the Mount Desert Regional High School to grant scholarships 
of $300 from the Reynolds Trust Fund and $100 from the Stanley Trust Fund, as 
described in memo from Finance Director Jake Wright 

L. Consider authorizing the allocation of $95.63 from the expendable income balance of 
the Stanley Trust to the Mount Desert Elementary School departmental budget to 
offset costs associated with the care, maintenance, and improvement of the infield of 
the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field as described in memo from Finance Director Jake 
Wright 

 
 

IX. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 
Business or out of order.) 
 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Agenda March 6, 2023 
 

Page 3 of 3 

X. Treasurer’s Warrants 
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 

Town Invoices AP#2357 3/7/2023 $355,849.27 
Total   $355,849.27 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown below: 

State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2355 

 
2/23/2023 

 
$90,874.81 

 AP#2356 3/1/2023 $2,784.27 
Town Payroll PR#2321 3/3/2023 $147,964.95 
Total   $241,624.03 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below: 
School Invoices AP#09 3/1/2023 $77,401.51 
School Payroll PR#18 3/3/2023 $93,924.34 
Total   $171,325.85 

 
Grand Total   $768,799.15 

 
 

XI. Adjournment 
The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 20, 2023 in the Meeting 
Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor 
 
The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BOS meeting 
now has a password. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  





BLI

emont Planning Board will hold a public
iiary 28, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. to take Public
pplication from Archie’s Lobster located at
to renovate a building for prep kitchen and

iat meeting, the Planning Board may act to
vith conditions or deny the application. The
tax Map 14 Lot 6 in the Harbor Zone. The
L be reviewed at Tremont Town Office.

t Select Board will hold a public hearing at 5:00
ch 6, 2022 in The Harvey Kelley Meeting Room
20 Harbor Drive, Bass Harbor, Maine.

Select Board will take public comment on the
)wnership of the Community Building from the
iont to the Tremont Consolidated School.

to submit?
e your Public Notices
tact us by calling
37-2576 or emailing:

Special Amusement Permit application for Class E — Dancing with any of the
above or accompanied by music produced by radio or other mechanical device
-Single instrumentalist, single instrumentalist and vocalist, one or more vocalists
and/or instrumentalist with mechanical amplification.

Thursday, February 23, 2023

PAGE
FOR ThOUGHTS

AND OPINIONS

FROM

17Lfl. (207) 667-2576 / Mount Desert Islander (207) 288-0556

‘ICES
•1

Public Hearing - Special Amusement Permit

The Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing at its regular meeting which
begins at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 6, 2023 in the Location: Zoom Meeting- see
Board of Selectmen Meeting for connection details for the consideration of:

Mount Desert

Islander
PUBLIC

NOTICES
Worth Noticing

Northeast Lobster Co., LLC d/b/a The Nor’easter Pound & Market

. .

Town of
.

MOUNT DESERT

PUBLIC HEARINGS LEGAL NOTICE
MARCH 6, 2023

Notice is hereby given that the Town of Mount Desert Board of Selectmen
will hold a public hearing at its regular meeting beginning 6:30 p.m.,

Monday, M.rch 6, 2023 in the Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street,
Northeast Harbor, and via Zoom Meeting to hear public comment on

proposed Warrant Articles regarding appropriation of funds, ordinances,
and ordinance amendments for the May 1 & 2, 2023 Annual Town

Meeting. Members of the public are invited to attend and make comment.

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting
if you would rather not attend in person. You can call in through any of
the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.
You will need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting.
Details will be posted on the BOS agenda and on the Town’s website

calendar. https://www.mtdesert.org/

.

Town of
—

MOUNT DESERT

is@ellsworLhamerican.com

Public Hearing Legal Notice

Notice of a public hearing for the proposed amendments to the
Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance and Land Use Map

You are hereby notified, under the requirements of the Mount Desert Land Use
Zoning Ordinance Section 2.7, that the Mount Desert Planning Board will hold
a public hearing on proposed amendments to the Towns Land Use Zoning Ordi
nance and Land Use Map.

The public hearing will be held on March 8, 2023, at 6:05PM, In-Person, at
the Town Hall Meeting Room, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (Masks May Be
Required) and via zoom. The Zoom Link, Meeting ID, Password, and Dial-in
informaion are listed below.

Copies of the full text of the proposed amendments can be found at the Town
Office, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor, Maine. Proposed amendments will also
be available on the Town website at www.mtdesert.org

Questions or comments can be directed to Noel Musson, The Musson Group. He
can be reached at (207) 244-1161, or by email to noel@themussongroup.com

You can call inthrough any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a
computer via the web link. You will need to enter the meeting ID to get access
to the meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting

,:I;/2Rcnztu

CHECK OUT

THE LETTERS

) EL-..—, 4
VZTZzO9 YOUR NEIGHBORS



4:

cnn, (207) 667-2576 / Mount Desert Islander (207)288-0556

jk
D:

B

t Select Board will hold a public hearing at 5:00
rch 6, 2022 in The Harvey Kelley Meeting Room
20 Harbor Drive, Bass Harbor, Maine.

Select Board will take public comment on the
)wnership of the Community Building from the
iont to the Tremont Consolidated School.

PAGE
FOR THOUGHTS

AND OPINIONS

FROM

Town of
MOUNT DESERT

Thursday, February 23, 2023

Public Hearing - Special Amusement Permit

The Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing at its regular meeting which
begins at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 6, 2023 in the Location: Zoom Meeting- see
Board of Selectmen Meeting for connection details for the consideration of:

Special Amusement Permit application for Class E — Dancing with any of the
above or accompanied by music produced by radio or other mechanical device
-Single instrumentalist, single instrumentalist and vocalist, one or more vocalists
and/or instrumentalist with mechanical amplification.

Northeast Lobster Co.. LLC d/b/a The Nor’easter Pound & Market

Mount Desert

Islander
PUBLIC

NOTICES
Worth Noticing

Townof

.

MOUNT DESERT
emont Planning Board will hold a public
•uary 28, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. to take Public
.pplication from Archie’s Lobster located at
to renovate a building for prep kitchen and
at meeting, the Planning Board may act to
with conditions or deny the application. The
tax Map 14 Lot 6 in the Harbor Zone. The

I)’ be reviewed at Tremont Town Office.

PUBLIC HEARINGS LEGAL NOTICE
MARCH 6, 2023

Notice is hereby given that the Town of Mount Desert Board of Selectmen
will hold a public hearing at its regular meeting beginning 6:30 p.m.,

Monday, M.rch 6, 2023 in the Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street,
Northeast Harbor, and via Zoom Meeting to hear public comment on

proposed Warrant Articles regarding appropriation of funds, ordinances,
and ordinance amendments for the May 1 & 2, 2023 Annual Town

Meeting. Members of the public are invited to attend and make comment.

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting
if yoi would rather not attend in person. You can call in through any of
the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.
You will need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting.
Details will be posted on the BOS agenda and on the Town’s website

calendar. https://www.mtdesert.org/

. ..

Town of
_-H• • MOUNT DESERT

I to submIt?
e your Public Notices
itact us by calling
57-2576 or emailing:
,s@ellsworthamerican.com

Public Hearing Legal Notice

Notice of a public hearing for the proposed amendments to the
Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance and Land Use Map

You are hereby notified, under the requirements of the Mount Desert Land Use
Zoning Ordinance Section 2.7, that the Mount Desert Planning Board will hold
a public hearing on proposed amendments to the Towns Land Use Zoning Ordi
nance and Land Use Map.

The public hearing will be held on March 8. 2023, at 6:05PM, In-Person, at
the Town Hall Meeting Room, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (Masks May Be
Required) and via zoom. The Zoom Link, Meeting ID, Password, and Dial-in
information are listed below.

Copies of the full text of the proposed amendments can be found at the Town
Office, 2 1 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor, Maine. Proposed amendments will also
be available on the Town website at www.mtdesert.org

Questions or comments can be directed to Noel Musson, The Musson Group. He
can be reached at (207) 244-1161, or by email to noel@themussongroup.com

You can call in through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a
computer via the web link. You will need to enter the meeting ID to get access
to the meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting

CHECK OUT

THE LETTERS

o_ MniintY_1 — - I
VZTZzO9 YOUR NEIGHBORS



Town of Mount Desert and Whom It May Concern: 

As homeowners in Seal Harbor, we are writing in opposition to the discussion on short term rentals. 

First, we must outline as home owners in the town of Mount Desert, we purchased our home with no 
existing town ordinance or regulations of short-term rentals, solely for that reason. Legally, we feel any 
new ordinance/regulations should only impact home buyers after the date of an official vote in favor of 
such regulations. 

For example: If there is not a town ordinance on the installation of a fence- we put up a fence- a new 
fence ordinance is voted on and passed- the town has no right to come after the homeowner to demand 
fence removal. The fence was put in prior to the date of the new rule. All new rentals should abide by a 
newly appointed ordinance, however previous properties with a history of renting, did as there were 
allowed and should therefore be grandfathered in. A new ordinance should only affect homeowners 
succeeding the date of said new ordinance.  

If property is purchased under the condition it is zoned farmland- homeowner moves in farm animals- 
the town has no right to take previously accepted terms/conditions/zoning away from the property 
owner with a later vote. A change to zoning should only affect new property owners going forward. 

The language within the current Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance protects all town homeowners from 
changes in use such as the examples previously listed. To create new or modify existing land use 
ordinances or zoning and expect previous homeowners to abide by newly stated rules seems unlawful. 

Additionally, we find it necessary the town explain what has sparked the need to suddenly regulate 
short term rentals and create a new ordinance. The reasons for such ordinance are not clear or defined. 
Please clearly state the reason for the proposed ordinance and regulations. 

If creating housing for local employees is the concern, workers are not entitled to live minutes from 
their place of employment. We commute 67 miles one-way to our jobs, as do many other working 
Americans. If the goal is to lower the price of homes on the island, you cannot control market rates. If 
you outlaw short-term rentals, and we list our home, a retired couple from away will most likely buy it at 
a competitive market rate. Where is the data to suggest that regulating short-term rentals will keep 
home prices down or help support a year-round community? There is no way to force a year-round 
community feel and control fair market. Mount Desert Island, Maine, has always been vacation land, so 
goes the story. The culture of summer people, from away, vacationing on the island has dated back to 
the 1800’s per the Rusticators. Our point, summer people, i.e. vacationers, are not a recent problem, 
rather more the true culture of the island than that which you are trying to achieve with such ordinance. 

Next, please outline what the town of Mount Desert plans to do with the income they intend to collect 
through licensing. We see this as yet another tax, which we already pay plenty of, to a town we do not 
live in year-round, for the locals to fruitfully enjoy. With that being said we request a clear and detailed 
itemization be presented to the town to outline where all monies will go. 

The stated concerns of "undue impacts they (short term rentals) can have on the quality of life and quiet 
enjoyment of properties within the vicinity of short-term rentals" are overblown and non-exclusive to 
short term rentals. These concerns are also not supported by evidence when compared to resident 
complaints. Neighborhood disturbance, whether caused by resident or visitor, should be governed by 



general ordinance and State law. Police, not code-enforcement or a Select board, would respond to such 
complaints. Laws and ordinances generally cover undue nuisances or criminal activity, so the stated 
premise of the need for "Short Term Rental Licensing" is unfounded. If noise ordinances are found to be 
warranted, then they should be applied generally to all residents, and enforced the same.  

 

Additionally, the current Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance, already has built in regulation that prohibits 
some of the town's concerns. "Similar uses. Unspecified Uses which are substantially the same as, or 
having effects the same as, the uses listed in Section 3.4 shall be treated the same as those listed uses." 
If a homeowner is running a rental that is greatly exceeding normal occupancy rates, or creating parking 
problems, or other neighborhood disturbance that is unique to a short-term rental, and would not be 
found to occur in a normal residential situation, then that homeowner is violating their allowed use. 
Recourse is already available to the town in this situation, and additional regulation is unnecessary. 

 

Regarding the proposed draft, we find it in its present form to be unacceptable for the following 
reasons. 

 

1.) The existing language regarding a transferable license needs to explicitly state that the protection 
clause will remain in effect through the transfer process. An existing license in good standing MUST be 
guaranteed to a new owner, unconditionally and permanently. It is unacceptable that the transferred 
license will expire on December 31st. There is currently language that an expired license is not covered 
by the protection clause. This is a loophole that could be exploited to deny a new homeowner the right 
to continuing use. A property owner has a legal right to the continuation of a lawful use as it is outlined 
in the Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance:  2.1 Continuation of Lawful Use. Any structure or property in 
the Town devoted to a lawful use at the time of adoption of this Ordinance may continue in such use 
until abandoned. Any new homeowner should not have a license expire on December 31st, and should 
have guaranteed continued use from the previous homeowner.  

 

2.) Posting a license in plain sight creates a target for burglary and vandalism, as it is an 
advertisement that the home may not be continuously occupied. According to the licensing proposal, 
the address will be registered with the town as a rental, making the extra public display redundant and 
unnecessary.  

 

3.) The fee language is too vague. What are the proposed fees? What is the town's proposed use of the 
fees? What is the stated purpose of the fee? Are these fees intended to discourage rentals? As a 
reminder, any rental already remits a 10% lodging tax to the State. Additionally, rental potential will 
presumably be factored into the home's value, which is assessed and taxed by the town accordingly. 
Charging extra fees for renting is double-dipping by the town. Fees should be limited to the costs 
incurred by the town to process an application - similar to a permit fee. A fee should not be a disguise 
for a tax, which is already paid by the homeowner. 



 

4.)  Building performance standards are already governed by a homeowner's insurance requirements 
and their own liability risk. This includes smoke detectors, fire extinguishers, etc. The same can be said 
for occupancy limits and whom a homeowner may or may not rent to. In fact, homeowners insurance 
may not be issued if such requirements are not met by the homeowner. 

We are saddened to see this is where the town resources and energies are focused.  

In summary, we strongly oppose the need for new regulation and reject the board’s rationale behind the 
proposal. This strongly feels like an invasion of privacy and a violation of property rights. If the proposal 
moves forward, please consider our feedback regarding its deficiencies. 

 

Sincerely,  

Brendan McPeak and Jennifer MacLean 

 





MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
Board of Selectmen 2 

Special Meeting Minutes 3 
February 13, 2023 4 

 5 
Board Members Present:  Chair John Macauley, Wendy Littlefield, Rick Mooers, Martha 6 
Dudman, Geoff Wood 7 
 8 
Town Officials Present: Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Tax 9 
Assessor Kyle Avila, Code Enforcement Officer Kimberly Keene, Public Works Director Brian 10 
Henkel, Finance Director Jake Wright 11 
 12 
Members of the Public were also in attendance. 13 

 14 
I. Call to order at 4:00 p.m. 15 

Chair Macauley called the meeting to order at 4:00PM. 16 
 17 
Public please hold comments until the BOS Chairman opens the agenda items for 18 
public comment 19 

 20 
II. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 21 

A. Request appointment of Christopher Baker as full-time FF/EMT-P at an initial base 22 
rate of $26.75 to be increased to $28.24 upon successful completion of a 6-month 23 
probationary period, effective date of February 16, 2023 24 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, appointment of Christopher Baker 25 
as full-time FF/EMT-P at an initial base rate of $26.75 to be increased to $28.24 upon successful 26 
completion of a 6-month probationary period, effective date of February 16, 2023 as presented. 27 
Motion approved 5-0. 28 

 29 
III. Selectmen’s Reports 30 
Ms. Dudman requested a revote on the February 6, 2023 Motion making a donation to the Maine 31 
Lobstermen’s Association Legal Fund. Ms. Dudman disclosed she is a member of the 32 
association.  She realized after the meeting that as a member she should have abstained from the 33 
vote. 34 
 35 
MOTION: Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to amend the Minutes of February 6, 36 
2023. 37 
Motion approved 3-0-2 (Dudman and Littlefield in Abstention). 38 
 39 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to authorize a donation of $1,000.00 40 
to go to the Maine Lobstermen’s Association Legal Defense Fund from the Selectboard 41 
Contingency Fund. 42 
Motion approved 4-0-1 (Dudman in Abstention). 43 

 44 
IV. New Business 45 

A. Proposed Land Use Zoning Ordinance Articles  46 
Mr. Musson presented ten proposed Land Use Zoning Ordinance articles for review: 47 
 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Article 21. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 1 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance to amend the deadline for establishment of use” be enacted as 2 
set forth below? 3 
This amendment will extend the deadline for the establishment of use from 12 months to 24 4 
months.  There were no questions. 5 
 6 
Article 15. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 7 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance Regarding Lots within the Village Commercial District in the 8 
Village of Northeast Harbor” be enacted as set forth below? 9 
This amendment clarifies the intent of a provision in the ordinance that applies only to the 10 
Village Commercial District in the Village of Northeast Harbor.  There were no questions. 11 
 12 
Article 16. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023, entitled “Amendments to the Land 13 
Use Zoning Ordinance to change the Land Use District designation of Tax Map 003: Lot 14 
026 and Map 003: Lot 027” be enacted as set forth below? 15 
This is in response to property owners requesting a zone change from Shoreland Residential Two 16 
to Residential Two.  Both lots are outside the 250’ shoreland setback.  There were no questions. 17 
 18 
Article 17. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 19 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify the dimensional requirements for one-Family and 20 
two-family dwellings” be enacted as set forth below? 21 
This amendment clarifies that currently in the ordinance there are provisions for one-family and 22 
two-family structures.  In the case of two-family structures, dimension standards apply to the 23 
structure as a whole and not to each of the residential units within.  There were no questions.   24 
 25 
Article 18. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 26 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance to add Residential Storage Building/Shed as permitted uses in 27 
Section 3.4” be enacted as set forth below? 28 
Currently a residential storage building/shed cannot be built on a lot without a residential 29 
structure also being on that lot. This amendment will allow such a structure without a house in 30 
place.   31 
 32 
Resident Tracy Aberman asked how monitoring accessory structures will occur to ensure they 33 
are not being used as makeshift housing.  Mr. Musson explained the code violation process 34 
originates with complaints made to the Code Enforcement Officer (CEO).  The CEO investigates 35 
the complaint and if a violation is found, the CEO acts on it.  The amendment follows a directive 36 
the LUZO Advisory Committee was given to make the ordinance clearer and more usable.   37 
 38 
There were no other questions. 39 
 40 
Article 19. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 41 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance to remove the air landing sites” be enacted as set forth below? 42 
Air Landing Sites are not currently included in the Allowed Uses section of the Ordinance.  A 43 
provision in Section 6 of the Land Use Ordinance references air landing sites.  This amendment 44 
deletes the reference.  The number will remain in case a future provision is added, while 45 
avoiding having to renumber the whole list.   46 
 47 
There are no areas in Town that allow a plane to land, unless such an area is a grandfathered use.  48 
The LifeFlight organization is a different circumstance. 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 1 
Water landing aircraft would likely not apply to the Land Use part of the ordinance.  This 2 
amendment applies to a resident wanting to build an air landing strip on their property. 3 
 4 
Resident Donna Reis asked if helicopter pads fell under this article.  Mr. Musson believed they 5 
would be a separate issue but agreed to check into it.  Helicopter landings in the event of an 6 
emergency like a LifeFlight situation are allowed.  If the Town decides they want to allow 7 
helicopter landing pads for personal use, Mr. Musson recommended creating standards for the 8 
ordinance.  If a request for a private helicopter landing pad came in now, the Town would likely 9 
respond that there is no provision for such a thing at this time.  There were no further questions. 10 
 11 
Article 20. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 12 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the definition of Marina and Expansion of Use” be 13 
enacted as set forth below? 14 
This clarifies that adding moorings is not considered an expansion of use.  Additionally, mooring 15 
use is the jurisdiction of and administered by the Harbormaster.  There were no questions. 16 
 17 
Article 22. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 18 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance to correct the date for when a lot was be created for purposes 19 
of applying the access provisions in 6B.11(2)” to be enacted as set forth below? 20 
This is a housekeeping amendment, changing an incorrect date in the ordinance.  There were no 21 
questions. 22 
 23 
Article 23. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 24 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify where the setback is measured from a road or right-25 
of-way” be enacted as set forth below? 26 
This clarifies where road setbacks are measured from.  There were no questions. 27 
 28 
Article 24. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 29 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the footprint limitation for principal and accessory 30 
structures in the shoreland zone” be enacted as set forth below? 31 
Mr. Musson reported that State law recently changed explaining how height is measured in a 32 
shoreland zone area and a floodplain.  This allows for more flexibility.  These two areas can 33 
conflict regarding height restrictions.  CEO Keene noted the Dodge Point Road Town building 34 
that was required to have a flat roof is a good example of height restrictions.  There were no 35 
questions. 36 
 37 
The Planning Board Public Hearing for this proposed amendment will occur on February 22.  38 
The Planning Board has reviewed the other amendments and recommended them all for passage.  39 
 40 
There is an upcoming Warrant Committee meeting on February 28. 41 
 42 

B. Short-Term Rental Ordinance (Draft Discussion; Public Hearing scheduled for 43 
2/21/2023 at 5pm) 44 

Mr. Musson presented a draft of the Short-Term Rental Ordinance.  The draft ordinance has been 45 
discussed with the LUZO Advisory Committee and with the Town attorney.  The draft takes into 46 
account feedback received.  Sections regarding validity and severability need final review and 47 
clarification.  Mr. Musson is awaiting further editing from the attorney on these sections.   48 
 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 4 
 
A Public Hearing on the ordinance will be held on February 21.  The intention is to create a 1 
system for issuing licenses to property owners wanting to engage in short-term rentals, and also 2 
to track and determine what parts of town already have short-term rental occurring.  The 3 
ordinance includes required safety standards such as smoke detectors.  4 
 5 
The committee has not discussed administration of the ordinance.  Currently the draft states the 6 
Town or Selectboard will administer.  Administration includes receiving and processing 7 
applications and collecting fees. Additionally, consideration of complaints and penalties must be 8 
discussed.   9 
 10 
Resident Lincoln Millstein reported that the attorneys advising the Town also represent Ocean 11 
Properties in Bar Harbor.  Ocean Properties has 74 registrations for short-term rentals in Bar 12 
Harbor.   13 
 14 
The ordinance’s Purpose notes “there are legitimate concerns about the increase in number of 15 
short-term rentals and the undue impacts they can have on the quality of life and quiet enjoyment 16 
of properties within the vicinity of short-term rentals.”  Mr. Millstein recalled that concerns were 17 
also raised about the impact of short-term rentals on the housing stock in Town and on year-18 
round homes.  The ordinance does not appear to include those concerns.  19 
 20 
Mr. Wood echoed Mr. Millstein’s comments.  He believed people in Mount Desert were more 21 
concerned with available properties disappearing from ownership of Town residents.  Homes 22 
disappearing from the ownership of people who intend to live in them or rent them year-round is 23 
a big issue that the ordinance does not address.   24 
 25 
Mr. Millstein pointed out the ordinance lacks details on the registration process, charging for the 26 
licensing, administrative costs to the Town, and impact on Town staffing.    27 
 28 
Mr. Musson felt this meeting is an opportunity to discuss issues like ordinance administration.  29 
Research has been done on how others administer similar ordinances.  Fee structure is often not 30 
included in the ordinance; this allows the Selectboard the ability to create or amend a fee 31 
structure without having to change the ordinance each time.  The next Public Hearing is another 32 
opportunity to discuss the ordinance in depth.  It’s up to the Board to decide whether this is an 33 
ordinance they feel comfortable moving forward on.   34 
 35 
Mr. Musson pointed out that there are many reasons why the Town is suffering from a lack of 36 
year-round residents.  Short-term rental is not the single issue causing the problem.  There are 37 
many pieces that need to be thought through to help solve it.   38 
 39 
Mr. Wood believed the wording regarding owner-occupied properties was confusing regarding 40 
whether or not they are exempt.  He suggested adding to the short-term rental definition the 41 
words “Excluding owner occupied” to ensure the intent is clear.  Mr. Musson said “hosted home 42 
stays” are excluded in the definitions, but it can be revised.  A homeowner that rents their home 43 
two weeks out of the year is excluded.  Additionally, allowing visitors to stay rent-free would 44 
also be exempt.  Hosted home stays imply the property owner is living in a residence but has a 45 
garage apartment or similar on the property. 46 
 47 
Ms. Aberman stated that people living in Northeast Harbor and renting their house during the 48 
summer is a tradition, though it would not be considered a hosted home stay.  If quality of life is 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 5 
 
a goal, then the Town should consider a parking ordinance and a noise ordinance.  A noise 1 
ordinance would address the quality-of-life concerns included in this ordinance.  Ms. Aberman 2 
believed the Short-Term Rental Ordinance encroaches on the privacy of how residents use their 3 
residences and their financial state.  It penalizes people who are trying to afford to keep their 4 
house on the island.  Additionally, no fee system has been set up, and there’s no strategy for who 5 
will administer the policy.  Someone could simply visit the Airbnb and VRBO websites and 6 
count the number of listings in Mount Desert.   7 
 8 
Ms. Aberman inquired about Mr. Musson role in the creation of many Mount Desert policy 9 
changes.  Mr. Musson explained that he is a contracted consultant hired by the Town to create 10 
ordinances on behalf of the Town.  Mr. Musson is a consultant to the LUZO Advisory 11 
Committee but not a committee member.   12 
 13 
Mr. Musson confirmed occupancy limits noted in the ordinance were standard.  Ms. Dudman felt 14 
Sections 7B and C were not clear on how complaints of noise, parking, or garbage will be 15 
handled, and the question of suspension.  Mr. Musson agreed these were sections requiring 16 
further work.   17 
 18 
Chair Macauley felt it would be useful to offer perspective by including historical numbers 19 
regarding year-round rental versus seasonal, and how the numbers have changed over the years 20 
throughout the Town, and then set a target percentage the Town would like to aim for.   21 
 22 
Mr. Musson suggested the Comprehensive Plan might be a good place to include estimates of 23 
how many houses are needed, and what barriers are preventing housing from being built and 24 
where housing could be built. 25 
 26 
Mr. Wood agreed these were important discussions to have, but different than that of protecting 27 
existing homes from disappearing from resident ownership.  He noted an earlier comment made 28 
that a resident living in their home and also renting it out being a tradition of sorts in Mount 29 
Desert.  How will the Town address this tradition?  It is different than a person who buys a home 30 
to run as a rental business.  How can the Town create a dis-incentive to prevent homes from 31 
vanishing from the market?  Many places have set a minimum time limit for stand-alone short-32 
term rental stays at seven nights.  Ms. Aberman pointed out that many renters can’t afford a stay 33 
that long. 34 
 35 
Ms. Dudman agreed that this is a serious island-wide problem.  She asked Mr. Musson for his 36 
thoughts on other ways to curtail the problem. Mr. Musson suggested considering asserting 37 
where areas of density will exist and investing as a community in infrastructure placement.   38 
 39 
Chair Macauley recalled an earlier iteration where year-round residents that rent their homes out 40 
for a month or two in the summer were exempt.  Without that kind of exemption, the ordinance 41 
may be a non-starter.  Perhaps a possible solution is to decide on a number of rentable 42 
residences, and, like mooring availability, a residence may go on a waiting list if the number of 43 
rentable residences is at a maximum.   44 
 45 
Mr. Mooers suggested requiring renters to be a resident.  Ms. Aberman pointed out that many 46 
summer residents are not year-round residents of Mount Desert and many rent their houses to 47 
cover the cost of staff and taxes.  This could result in alienating many property owners.   48 
 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 6 
 
Mr. Millstein stated there were 197 Airbnb units in Mount Desert.  Mount Desert had the 1 
smallest number of units of the four towns on the island.  In 2014 there were zero units in Mount 2 
Desert.  What is unknown is how many of those 197 units being rented are owned by out of state 3 
investors who bought a house sight unseen to rent.  This is a different problem than residents 4 
renting their property.  In the past five years, the situation has exploded.  5 
 6 
Ms. Aberman suggested classifying anyone owning more than one piece of property in Town as 7 
an investor.  8 
 9 
Ms. Reis asked whether there was a formal definition of “hosting”.  The ordinance includes a 10 
definition of “hosted home stay”.  Ms. Reis suggested adding a definition for hosting, including a 11 
length of time residing in the home and a classification of whether someone needs to be a full-12 
time resident, or how long they must reside stay in the residence.   13 
 14 
Mr. Musson noted that if the ordinance is deemed not ready for Town Meeting, then more work 15 
will be done.  After the public hearing the Selectboard will be able to revisit the issue.   16 
 17 
Mr. Millstein suggested adding someone like a teacher or EMT to the LUZO Advisory 18 
Committee.  It would provide more diversity regarding people and various housing needs.  Chair 19 
Macauley agreed; the difficulty is convincing people to join.   20 
 21 
Mr. Musson noted the Comprehensive Plan Committee is an important group for diversity as 22 
well.  Manager Lunt noted the Comprehensive Plan Committee has been advertised on the 23 
website.  Appointing members will occur once more residents apply, to ensure coverage and 24 
representation across the various villages.   25 
 26 

C. Alewife Ordinance 27 
Article 4. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 28 
Alewife Ordinance” be enacted?   29 
Clerk Woolfolk explained that the Alewife Ordinance is the same every year, but being an 30 
ordinance, she added it to the list.   31 
 32 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to recommend for passage Article 33 
4, Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and titled “Town of Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance” 34 
be enacted? as presented. 35 
Motion approved 5-0. 36 
 37 

D. Proposed Harbor Ordinance Article  38 
Article 5. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 39 
Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?   40 
The proposed Harbor Ordinance from the Harbor Committee was submitted to Clerk Woolfolk 41 
by Harbormaster John Lemoine. 42 
 43 
Mr. Mooers noted that the statute stated a resident is defined as dwelling within the Town of 44 
Mount Desert for more than 180 days.  Maine Revised Statutes have upped that amount to 183 45 
days.  The Town is able to make an ordinance more restrictive than State statutes, but not less 46 
restrictive.  He suggested the amount be changed to reflect the State statute. 47 
 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 7 
 
Mr. Mooers asked about mooring registration and permits.  He believed “all other tidal waters” 1 
would include both shores of Somes Sound, around the point, and near Bartlett’s Landing.  2 
Would fees be associated with the permit and registration for the Harbormaster, and if so, when a 3 
person registers their mooring what services will they receive and what can they count on from 4 
the Harbormaster’s office?  Harbor Committee member Donna Reis stated there are fees.  5 
Services provided are different in different areas.  Bartlett’s Landing has less services than 6 
Northeast Harbor, for example.  She was not sure whether this meant the fees were different, 7 
depending on where one registers.  Ms. Reis agreed to ask the Harbor Committee about the fees 8 
charged.  9 
 10 
Article 5 was tabled until the change in the definition of resident could be updated.  11 
 12 

E. Sunset Clause Removal: 13 
Clerk Woolfolk explained that the Sunset Clause was removed at last year’s Warrant.  She is 14 
now reviewing Town ordinances, identifying the ones with a sunset clause still included.  The 15 
ordinances listed are ones that still include a sunset clause.  She suggested removing the clause 16 
so the ordinance does not expire. None of the ordinances are otherwise changing.  It will not 17 
change the Town’s ability to amend or alter any ordinance at a later date as deemed necessary. 18 
 19 

a. Building and Street Numbering Ordinance 20 
Article 6. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Ordinance Regulating 21 
the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? 22 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 6, 23 
titled “Ordinance Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount Desert” 24 
as presented. 25 
Motion approved 5-0. 26 
 27 

b. Dog Ordinance 28 
Article 7. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 29 
Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance” be enacted?   30 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to recommend for passage Article 31 
7, titled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance” as presented. 32 
Motion approved 5-0. 33 
 34 

c. Harbor Ordinance 35 
Article 8. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 36 
Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?   37 
Clerk Woolfolk confirmed this affects only the Sunset Clause. 38 
 39 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 8, 40 
titled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” as presented. 41 
Motion approved 5-0. 42 
 43 

d. Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds Ordinance 44 
Article 9. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 45 
Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds” be enacted? 46 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 47 
9, titled “Town of Mount Desert Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds” as 48 
presented. 49 
Motion approved 5-0.  50 
 51 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 8 
 

e. No Swimming Ordinance 1 
Article 10. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 2 
No Swimming Ordinance” be enacted? 3 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to recommend for passage Article 4 
10, titled “Town of Mount Desert No Swimming Ordinance” as presented. 5 
Motion approved 5-0. 6 
 7 

f. Public Road Acceptance 8 
Article 11. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 9 
Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance Ordinance” be enacted? 10 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 11 
11, titled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance Ordinance” as 12 
presented. 13 
Motion approved 5-0. 14 
   15 

g. Rural Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance 16 
Article 12. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Rural Wastewater 17 
Treatment Support Program Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? 18 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 19 
12, titled “Rural Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance of the Town of Mount 20 
Desert” as presented. 21 
Motion approved 5-0. 22 
 23 

h. Solid Waste Ordinance 24 
Article 13. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Solid Waste Ordinance 25 
of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? 26 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 27 
13, titled “Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” as presented. 28 
Motion approved 5-0. 29 
 30 

i. Use of Public Places Ordinance 31 
Article 14. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 32 
Use of Public Places Ordinance” be enacted? 33 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 34 
14 titled “Town of Mount Desert Use of Public Places Ordinance” as presented. 35 
Motion approved 5-0. 36 
 37 

F. DRAFT Annual Town Meeting Warrant review and votes 38 
Article 26. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 39 
the Board of Selectmen to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional 40 
Gifts (MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on 41 
behalf of the Municipal Fire Department.  It is understood that any funds received will be 42 
placed in the Fire Equipment Reserve Fund. 43 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to recommend for passage Article 44 
26 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board 45 
of Selectmen to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A 46 
§5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on behalf of the Municipal 47 
Fire Department.  It is understood that any funds received will be placed in the Fire Equipment 48 
Reserve Fund” as presented. 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 9 
 
Motion approved 5-0. 1 
 2 
Article 27. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 3 
the Board of Selectmen to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast 4 
Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 5 
2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole discretion, 6 
deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 7 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding to recommend for passage Article 8 
27 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board 9 
of Selectmen to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to 10 
the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2023 under such terms 11 
and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests 12 
of the Town” as presented. 13 
Motion approved 5-0. 14 
 15 
Article 28. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 16 
the Board of Selectmen, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast 17 
Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) year 18 
beginning July 1, 2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its 19 
sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 20 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 21 
28 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board 22 
of Selectmen, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina 23 
to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2023 24 
under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole discretion, deems to be in 25 
the best interests of the Town” as presented. 26 
Motion approved 5-0. 27 
 28 
Article 30. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the 29 
Board of Selectmen to enter in to a ten-year (10) lease with the Town of Cranberry Isles, 30 
for 123 parking spaces in the Town Office Municipal parking lot, under terms and 31 
conditions the Board deems advisable.  A copy of the lease document shall be on file at the 32 
Town office and available for public inspection no less than seven (7) days prior to the 33 
Town Meeting and that copy shall be certified as accurate by the Town Clerk. 34 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 35 
30 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board of 36 
Selectmen to enter in to a ten-year (10) lease with the Town of Cranberry Isles, for 123 parking 37 
spaces in the Town Office Municipal parking lot, under terms and conditions the Board deems 38 
advisable.  A copy of the lease document shall be on file at the Town office and available for 39 
public inspection no less than seven (7) days prior to the Town Meeting and that copy shall be 40 
certified as accurate by the Town Clerk” as presented. 41 
Motion approved 5-0. 42 
 43 
Article 37. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 44 
the Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and 45 
other funds (including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under the American 46 
Rescue Plan Act and similar legislation) received during the fiscal year 2023-2024 for Town 47 
purposes, provided that such additional funds do not require expenditure of local funds not 48 
previously appropriated. 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 10 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 1 
37 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 2 
Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and other funds 3 
(including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under the American Rescue Plan Act and 4 
similar legislation) received during the fiscal year 2023-2024 for Town purposes, provided that 5 
such additional funds do not require expenditure of local funds not previously appropriated” as 6 
presented. 7 
Motion approved 5-0. 8 
 9 
Article 38. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve   10 
July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all 11 
unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest at an annual rate of 12 
8% (percent) per year.  (Tax Club members are exempt within the terms and conditions of 13 
the Town’s Tax Club Agreement.) 14 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 15 
38 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve July 1, each 16 
year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all unpaid taxes on 17 
September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest at an annual rate of 8% (percent) per year.  18 
(Tax Club members are exempt within the terms and conditions of the Town’s Tax Club 19 
Agreement.)” as presented. 20 
Motion approved 5-0. 21 
 22 
Article 39. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 23 
the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: 24 
(1) the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on the 25 
taxpayer’s estimated and actual tax obligation for current year property taxes (real estate 26 
and/or personal); (2) the Town agrees to waive interest on timely payments; (3) the Town 27 
authorizes the Tax Collector to accept payment of taxes prior to commitment of taxes; (4) 28 
the agreement automatically terminates if two consecutive payments are missed and the 29 
taxpayer thereupon becomes subject to the same due date and interest rate as other, 30 
nonparticipating taxpayers; (5) only taxpayers who are paid in full on their property tax 31 
obligations may participate; and (6) interested taxpayers shall apply annually for 32 
participation by the date shown on the application, date and application format to be 33 
determined by the Tax Collector. 34 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to recommend for passage Article 35 
39 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Tax 36 
Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) the 37 
taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on the taxpayer’s 38 
estimated and actual tax obligation for current year property taxes (real estate and/or personal); 39 
(2) the Town agrees to waive interest on timely payments; (3) the Town authorizes the Tax 40 
Collector to accept payment of taxes prior to commitment of taxes; (4) the agreement 41 
automatically terminates if two consecutive payments are missed and the taxpayer thereupon 42 
becomes subject to the same due date and interest rate as other, nonparticipating taxpayers; (5) 43 
only taxpayers who are paid in full on their property tax obligations may participate; and (6) 44 
interested taxpayers shall apply annually for participation by the date shown on the application, 45 
date and application format to be determined by the Tax Collector” as presented. 46 
Motion approved 5-0. 47 
 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 11 
 
Article 40. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-1 
payment of property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be 2 
committed in the subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same. 3 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 4 
40 titled “To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment of 5 
property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be committed in the 6 
subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same” as presented. 7 
Motion approved 5-0. 8 
 9 
Article 41. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the 10 
interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4% 11 
(percent) per year. 12 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 13 
41 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the interest rate 14 
to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4% (percent) per 15 
year”as presented. 16 
Motion approved 4-0. 17 
 18 
Article 42. To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 19 
expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment 20 
Review, or Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, during the 21 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the property tax 22 
commitment overlay. 23 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 24 
42 titled “To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 25 
expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment Review, or 26 
Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, during the fiscal year 27 
beginning July 1, 2023, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the property tax commitment 28 
overlay” as presented. 29 
Motion approved 5-0. 30 
 31 
Article 43. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 32 
the Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real 33 
property, with a value of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or less under such terms and 34 
conditions as it deems advisable. 35 
Finance Director Jake Wright noted that since 1998, the value has been set at $10,000.00.  The 36 
figure of $30,000.00 is based on 26 years at less than 4.5%.  This figure addresses past 37 
inflationary concerns as well as providing a usable number.   38 
 39 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 40 
43 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 41 
Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, with a 42 
value of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or less under such terms and conditions as it deems 43 
advisable” as presented. 44 
Motion approved 5-0. 45 
 46 
Article 44. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 47 
the Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles 48 
obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants of the Town 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 12 
 
any land and/or buildings, including trailers, in lieu of payment of taxes except that the 1 
Selectmen have the power to authorize redemption.  Municipal Officers shall use the 2 
special sale process required by 36 M.R.S. § 943-C for qualifying homestead property if 3 
they choose to sell it to anyone other than the former owner(s). 4 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 5 
44 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 6 
Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles obtained 7 
under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants of the Town any land and/or 8 
buildings, including trailers, in lieu of payment of taxes except that the Selectmen have the power 9 
to authorize redemption.  Municipal Officers shall use the special sale process required by 36 10 
M.R.S. § 943-C for qualifying homestead property if they choose to sell it to anyone other than 11 
the former owner(s)” as presented. 12 
Motion approved 5-0. 13 
 14 
Article 45. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 15 
the Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, 16 
under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable. 17 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 18 
45 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 19 
Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, under 20 
such terms and conditions as it deems advisable” as presented. 21 
Motion approved 5-0. 22 
 23 
Article 47. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer 24 
Six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000. 00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account 25 
#100-38300 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment. 26 
Manager Lunt reported that the figure of $600,000.00 is a requested increase, up from 27 
$500,000.00. 28 
 29 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 30 
47 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer Six hundred 31 
thousand dollars ($600,000. 00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account #100-38300 to 32 
reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment” as presented. 33 
Motion approved 5-0. 34 
 35 
Article 48. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 36 
raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and miscellaneous 37 
sources for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 38 
Manager Lunt noted this is the figure on the revenue sheet given to the Board, minus the 39 
$600,000.00 referred to in Article 47. 40 
 41 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding to recommend for passage Article 42 
48 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and/or 43 
appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and miscellaneous sources for the 44 
2023 – 2024 Town Budget” as presented. 45 
Motion approved 5-0. 46 
 47 
Article 52. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 48 
overdraft that occurred in Debt Service for the year ended June 30, 2022, in the amount of 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 13 
 
$2,381.09. The overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance. Said overdraft 1 
was caused by actual interest on certain debt service payments exceeding budgeted 2 
expectations. Total appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 for department 3 
801 “Debt Service” were $1,863,050 and total expenditures recognized in said fiscal year 4 
amount to $1,865,431.09. 5 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to recommend for passage Article 52 6 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the overdraft that 7 
occurred in Debt Service for the year ended June 30, 2022, in the amount of $2,381.09. The 8 
overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance. Said overdraft was caused by actual 9 
interest on certain debt service payments exceeding budgeted expectations. Total appropriations 10 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 for department 801 “Debt Service” were $1,863,050 and 11 
total expenditures recognized in said fiscal year amount to $1,865,431.09” as presented. 12 
Motion approved 5-0. 13 
 14 
Article 54. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 15 
raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government – Governing 16 
Body (Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planning 17 
Board, Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, Assessment, Code Enforcement, Unallocated 18 
Funds, Human Resources, Technology, and Contracted Municipal and Community 19 
Oriented Services for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 20 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 21 
54 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 22 
appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government – Governing Body 23 
(Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planning Board, 24 
Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, Assessment, Code Enforcement, Unallocated Funds, Human 25 
Resources, Technology, and Contracted Municipal and Community Oriented Services for the 26 
2023 – 2024 Town Budget” as presented. 27 
Motion approved 5-0. 28 
 29 
Article 55. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 30 
raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2023 – 2024 31 
Town Budget. 32 
MOTION: Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 33 
55 titled To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 34 
appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget 35 
as presented. 36 
Motion approved 5-0. 37 
 38 
Article 56. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 39 
raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2023 – 2024 40 
Town Budget. 41 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 42 
56 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 43 
appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget” 44 
as presented. 45 
Motion approved 5-0. 46 
 47 
Article 57. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 48 
raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 14 
 
MOTION: Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 1 
57 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 2 
appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget” as presented. 3 
Motion approved 5-0. 4 
 5 
Article 58. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 6 
raise and appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407, and 408 Public Safety – Police, 7 
Shellfish, Animal Control, and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2023 – 2024 Town 8 
Budget. 9 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to recommend for passage Article 10 
58 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 11 
appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407, and 408 Public Safety – Police, Shellfish, Animal 12 
Control, and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget” as presented. 13 
Motion approved 5-0. 14 
 15 
Mr. Wood recalled discussing putting the previous year’s amounts in the warrant so people could 16 
compare the year-to-year expenditures.  Director Wright agreed it had been discussed.  The 17 
concern brought up at that time was with budget expense breakdowns already included, adding 18 
the previous year’s budget information would make the formatting busy and possibly difficult to 19 
read.  However, it can be done.  Ms. Dudman suggested including it in an appendix.  Mr. Wood 20 
didn’t believe people would cross-reference an appendix.  He felt the extra information might 21 
answer questions before they’re asked.   22 
 23 
Article 59. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 24 
raise and appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, 25 
Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 26 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 27 
59 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 28 
appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, Hydrants, and 29 
Emergency Management for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget” as presented. 30 
Motion approved 5-0. 31 
 32 
Article 60. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 33 
raise and appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste 34 
Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental 35 
Sustainability for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 36 
MOTION:   Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 37 
60 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 38 
appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste Management, 39 
Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental Sustainability for the 2023 – 40 
2024 Town Budget” as presented. 41 
Motion approved 5-0. 42 
 43 
Article 61. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 44 
raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 45 
2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 46 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for passage Article 47 
61 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 15 
 
appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 2023 – 2024 1 
Town Budget” as presented. 2 
Motion approved 5-0. 3 
 4 
Article 62. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 5 
raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & 6 
Maintenance) for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 7 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 8 
62 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 9 
appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) for the 2023 10 
– 2024 Town Budget” as presented. 11 
Motion approved 5-0. 12 
 13 
Article 63. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 14 
raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 15 
2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 16 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to recommend for passage Article 17 
63 titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 18 
appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2023 – 2024 Town 19 
Budget” as presented. 20 
Motion approved 5-0. 21 
 22 
Article 65. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 23 
raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 24 
2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 25 
Director Wright reported that this Article will be brought back to the Board at a later date.  There 26 
may be some places where the budget can be further cut.   27 
 28 
Article 65 was tabled. 29 
 30 
Article 67. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 31 
Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget. 32 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to recommend for ratification 33 
Article 67 titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 34 
Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget” as presented. 35 
Motion approved 5-0. 36 
 37 

V. Other Business 38 
A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 39 

Clerk Woolfolk inquired of the Board how they wanted to handle late submittals of 3rd party 40 
requests.   41 
 42 
Chair Macauley reported that the Otter Creek Church was one of the late filers; he is a church 43 
representative but did not see the application in time.  The church’s request would be pulled for 44 
this year.   45 
 46 
The form requests a financial report.  Chair Macauley suggested providing a form people can fill 47 
in making the information received uniform and clear across the organizations.  Director Wright 48 
believed the original intent was to avoid being burdensome; whatever the organization was 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 13, 2023 
Page 16 
 
already producing would likely be sufficient.  There are cases when an I90 was not applicable to 1 
an organization.  Groups reached out asking for guidance in those cases.  Chair Macauley 2 
believed it could get complicated, particularly if different organizations are providing different 3 
levels of information.  He suggested a simple form requesting income, revenue, expenses.  Mr. 4 
Wood noted the wording “Organization Annual Financial Report” suggests a summary of the 5 
organization’s annual activity would be sufficient.  The issue is moot for this year; the requests 6 
are already in.   7 
 8 
Regarding requests coming in after the deadline, the Board’s consensus was that the guidelines 9 
must be followed and late requests should not be honored.  In the meantime, Chair Macauley 10 
suggested a form standardizing the financial information being requested.   11 

 12 
VI. Adjournment 13 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to adjourn. 14 
Motion approved 5-0. 15 
 16 
The Meeting adjourned at 5:30PM. 17 
 18 
 19 
Respectfully Submitted, 20 
 21 
 22 
Geoffrey Wood 23 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 21, 2023 
Page 1 
 

 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
Selectboard Meeting 2 

Minutes of February 21, 2023 3 
 4 

Board Members Present:  Chair John Macauley, Rick Mooers, Martha Dudman, Geoffrey 5 
Wood. 6 
 7 
Board Member Wendy Littlefield was not in attendance. 8 
 9 
Town Officials Present:  Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Town 10 
Manager Durlin Lunt, Finance Director Jake Wright, Public Works Director Brian Henkel 11 
 12 
Members of the Public were also present. 13 

 14 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 15 

Chair Macauley called the Meeting to order at 6:30PM. 16 
 17 

II. Minutes 18 
A. Approval of minutes from February 6, 2023 meeting 19 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval of the February 6, 20 
2023 Minutes as presented. 21 
Motion approved 4-0. 22 

 23 
III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 24 

A. Consider the appointment of Michael Bailey to the Investment Committee 25 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, appointment of Michael 26 
Bailey to the Investment Committee as presented. 27 
Motion approved 4-0. 28 
 29 

B. Accept resignation of Brian Henkel from the Investment Committee 30 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, accepting the resignation of 31 
Brian Henkel from the Investment Committee as presented. 32 
Motion approved 4-0. 33 
 34 
Investment Committee member Phil Lichtenstein commended Public Works Director Henkel 35 
as a valuable addition to the Investment Committee.  He would be missed.   36 

 37 
IV. Consent Agenda 38 

A. Memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, regarding amendments to the proposed 39 
FY24 municipal debt service budget 40 

B. Memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, regarding modifications to the FY24 CIP 41 
proposed funding resulting from additional analysis 42 

C. Thank you letter from The Neighborhood House, dated February 8, 2023 43 
D. Lobster Industry article from Maine Town & City magazine, submitted by Chris 44 

Moore, member of the Maine Lobstermen Association 45 
E. Hancock County Commissioners Special Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 21, 2023 
Page 2 
 

 
 

F. Islander Article regarding MRC and prospective buyers; February 16, 2023 1 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, acceptance of the Consent 2 
Agenda as presented. 3 
 4 
Ms. Dudman mentioned Item F.  At the last meeting it was suggested the Sustainability 5 
Committee look into alternatives for the Town.  After some discussion, it was agreed that 6 
creating and implementing a municipal waste plan was beyond the ability of a volunteer 7 
group.  Ms. Dudman suggested perhaps a consultant was necessary.  Mr. Lichtenstein 8 
mentioned Carey Donovan would be speaking at the March Sustainability Committee 9 
meeting on some of these issues.  Perhaps after Town Meeting the Sustainability Committee 10 
could come back with what they learn.   11 
 12 
Motion approved 4-0. 13 

 14 
V. Selectboard’s Reports 15 

Mr. Mooers inquired about the new ramps for the marina.  The work seems to have slowed.  16 
He learned the projected completion date was for the middle or end of May.  A lack of ramps 17 
in time for summer use will be a problem.   18 
 19 
Harbor Committee member Chris Moore reported the completion date in the contract was 20 
May 15.  Most of the first ramp was done, but delayed because the necessary granite pieces 21 
have not arrived.  Greg Johnston reported to the committee that despite the delay both ramps 22 
should still be complete by May 15.  Accommodations have been made for those using the 23 
harbor from the islands.  There is a temporary ramp in place.   24 

 25 
VI. Unfinished Business 26 

A. Request Approval of Zach Brandwein as attorney for MacQuinn appeal 27 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of Zach Brandwein 28 
as attorney for the MacQuinn appeal as presented. 29 
 30 
Mr. Mooers inquired why the Town was bringing in a new attorney after so many years with 31 
the Town’s attorney managing the situation.  Manager Lunt reported the Planning Board 32 
requested the change.  They felt the Town should have an experienced litigator representing 33 
the Town now that it’s beyond the forum of the Planning Board and Appeals Board and in 34 
court. 35 
 36 
Motion approved 4-0. 37 
 38 

B. Consider amendment to award and remittance procedure of scholarships as 39 
presented in memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright dated February 16th, 2023 40 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, amending the award and 41 
remittance procedure of scholarships as presented in the memo from Finance Director, Jake 42 
Wright dated February 16th, 2023 as presented. 43 
Motion approved 4-0. 44 

 45 
 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 21, 2023 
Page 3 
 

 
 

VII. New Business 1 
A. Presentation of Service Groups/Non-profit Agency Funding Requests (A-L) Budget 2 

FY 2024  3 
 4 

Acadian Youth Sports:  No representative was present. 5 
 6 
American Red Cross Pine Tree Chapter:  Caroline King presented for the American Red 7 
Cross.  They are requesting $3500.00.  This request has not changed since last year.  Short-8 
term housing, food, clothing, medical needs and mental health support are provided with the 9 
funds.   10 
 11 
Warrant Committee member Katrina Carter asked if the organization requested the same 12 
amount of funds from each town on Mount Desert Island.  Ms. King reported they do not.  13 
Some Towns choose not to support the work.   14 
 15 
Bar Harbor Food Pantry:  Tom Reeve presented for the food pantry.  The pantry serves all 16 
of Hancock County, and makes deliveries to those unable to come in.  Users are allowed to 17 
shop once a week.  They are requesting $3500.00.  This request has not changed since last 18 
year.  Last year the pantry handled approximately $7,000.00 in food that was a direct cost to 19 
the pantry.  The pantry’s goal is to reach Town donation levels of 50% of the food cost.  20 
Mount Desert reaches that goal with this funding.   21 
 22 
Ms. Carter asked if other Towns are asked for the same amount.  Mr. Reeve reported the 23 
requests are historically based and the amount is not the same for every town. 24 
 25 
Downeast Horizons:  Ashley Johnson presented for Downeast Horizons.  Downeast 26 
Horizons assists adults and children with developmental disabilities.  There is a residential 27 
home on the island, and a work center.  Services for 55 Mount Desert individuals are being 28 
provided.   The amount asked for varies from Town to Town and depends on the number of 29 
individuals in that Town being served.   30 
 31 
Warrant Committee member Carmen Sanford asked what is done for the residents in the 32 
home.  Ms. Johnson explained that residents are assisted in all things; bathing, basic living 33 
skills, cooking, transportation, and overnight care for those who need it.  Six individuals live 34 
in the Bar Harbor residence. 35 
 36 
Eagles Nest Clubhouse:  No representative was present. 37 
 38 
Eastern Area Agency on Aging:  Chris Street presented for the Eastern Area Agency on 39 
Aging.  They are requesting $750.00; the number is based on services provided to Mount 40 
Desert residents.  They work with other groups to provide meals to homebound elderly adults 41 
in the area.  2400 meals were provided to approximately 20 Mount Desert residents last year.  42 
Other services include education and support to caregivers, caring for those with Alzheimer’s 43 
and dementia, providing supplemental food boxes, cleaning, in-home care, office 44 
appointment assistance, Medicare counseling and wellness programs.    45 
 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 21, 2023 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Ms. Carter noted the requested amount of $750.00 is up from last year’s amount of $500.00.  1 
Mr. Street explained the change is due to increased costs involved.  The cost of providing 2 
meals has increased 30% since the covid pandemic.   3 
 4 
Emmaus Homeless Shelter:  Stacey Herrick presented for the Emmaus Shelter.  They are 5 
requesting $2500.00, the same amount as was requested last year.  In addition to being a 6 
homeless shelter, the Emmaus shelter has a food pantry that served 320 families last year, a 7 
free clothing store that served 391 families, and a Christmas gift program that served 109 8 
families last holiday season.  Ms. Carter commended the Emmaus Shelter’s regifting 9 
fundraiser.   10 
 11 
Great Harbor Maritime Museum:  Willie Granston presented for the museum.  Funding 12 
for the museum is used to maintain the public bathrooms at the museum.  They are 13 
maintained by the museum daily, and some days multiple times a day.  They are the only 14 
public restrooms in the downtown area and heavily used.  Mr. Granston estimated the 15 
number of users could be upwards of 9,000 people a year.  This year the restrooms were open 16 
from June to November.  17 
 18 
Health Equity Alliance:  No representative was present. 19 
 20 
Hospice Volunteers of Hancock County:  No representative was present. 21 
 22 
Island Connections:  Sharon Linscott presented for Island Connections.  Island Connections 23 
provides free transportation services for older adults and people with disabilities.  They are 24 
requesting $2500.00.  This amount has not changed from last year.  Nearly 5600 rides were 25 
provided in 2022.  In addition to transportation, they help with food insecurity, including 26 
Meals on Wheels and grocery shopping.  Funding requested varies among the towns, and is 27 
based on the numbers served in each town.  16% of those served live in Mount Desert.  28 
Volunteers donate their time, their car, and their gasoline.  Island Connections tries to offset 29 
the expense through reward programs.   30 
 31 
Island Housing Trust:  Natalie Osborne presented for the Island Housing Trust.  They are 32 
requesting funds for the Homeownership Assistance program.  This program provides funds 33 
for potential homeowners that have the ability to pay for a mortgage but do not have the 34 
funding for the downpayment.  The average amount awarded is between $25,000 and 35 
$30,000.  All towns are asked for a contribution.  These are permanently designated year-36 
round homes, keeping year-round neighborhoods intact and allowing people to live where 37 
they work.  This funding remains with the house, allowing it to remain affordable.  There are 38 
16 HOPE homes, 3 in Mount Desert. 39 
 40 
LifeFlight:  Rachel Malcolm presented for LifeFlight.  LifeFlight requests $1000.00 to help 41 
provide emergency medicine for Mount Desert residents.  155 Mount Desert residents have 42 
used the service in the 25 years it has been in operation.  In addition to helicopter service, 43 
LifeFlight also has ground transport throughout Maine.   44 
 45 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 21, 2023 
Page 5 
 

 
 

B. Request for approval for the Bar Harbor Assessing Technician from the Town of Bar 1 
Harbor to assist with the assessing responsibilities of the Town of Mount Desert as 2 
necessary; the Town of Mount Desert will incur no cost for this service 3 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval of the Bar Harbor 4 
Assessing Technician from the Town of Bar Harbor to assist with the assessing 5 
responsibilities of the Town of Mount Desert as necessary, as presented. 6 
Motion approved 4-0. 7 

 8 
C. Authorize the Office of the Treasurer to do all things necessary to process Marina 9 

credit card activity through the Town’s General Operating Account ending 7618, per 10 
recommendation from the Investment Committee as described in memo from Finance 11 
Director, Jake Wright, dated February 16, 2023 12 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorization of the Office of 13 
the Treasurer to do all things necessary to process Marina credit card activity through the 14 
Town’s General Operating Account ending 7618, per recommendation from the 15 
Investment Committee as described in the memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, 16 
dated February 16, 2023 as presented. 17 
 18 
Director Wright explained that an RFP process was done to explore the possibility of 19 
better rates.  The Town was successful in securing better rates but it did not include the 20 
Marina credit card activity account.  This action will sweep the Marina account into the 21 
general operating account to take advantage of the preferential rate.   22 
 23 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Dudman in Abstention). 24 
 25 
D. Authorize the closure of the payment processing account ending 7881 per 26 

recommendation from the Investment Committee as described in memo from Finance 27 
Director, Jake Wright, dated February 16, 2023 28 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorizing the closure of the 29 
payment processing account ending 7881 per recommendation from the Investment 30 
Committee as described in the memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, dated February 31 
16, 2023 as presented. 32 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Dudman in Abstention). 33 

 34 
E. Authorize all funds in the payment processing account ending 7881 be transferred to 35 

the Town’s General Operating Account per recommendation from the Investment 36 
Committee as described in memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, dated 37 
February 16, 2023 38 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorization that all funds in 39 
the payment processing account ending 7881 be transferred to the Town’s General 40 
Operating Account per recommendation from the Investment Committee as described in 41 
the memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, dated February 16, 2023 as presented. 42 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Dudman in Abstention). 43 
 44 
F. Review proposed changes to the Town’s Investment Policy recommended by the 45 

Investment Committee at their February 8th meeting 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 21, 2023 
Page 6 
 

 
 

Director Wright listed the following changes –  1 
- Short-Term Reserve section - The committee recommends adding insured cash sweep 2 

as an acceptable option for holding short-term reserve funds.  Currently these funds 3 
are held in money market accounts.   4 

- Review section - Some of the language has been clarified such as quorum and non-5 
voting ex-officio members.   6 

- Investment Guidelines and Constraints - Previously social moral constraints were not 7 
included in investment guidelines.  It’s been recommended by the Investment 8 
Committee that 7% to 12% allocated as equity allocation be invested in existing 9 
environmental social and governance funds that attempt to invest in a socially 10 
responsible manner.  Keeping the amount at 7% to 12% allows the fund managers 11 
some discretion regarding the exact terms of allocation, based on the market 12 
conditions. 13 

 14 
Director Wright stated that the precise ESG allocation within the 7 to 12% range would be 15 
determined by expectations of market performance for the underlying assets.  Mr. 16 
Lichtenstein noted the Investment Committee hoped the range would allow the managers the 17 
discretion to act on the market conditions.  The majority of the portfolio will remain 18 
mixed.  The managers would be authorized to invest the funds in accordance with the 19 
Investment policy.     20 
 21 
The policy will come before the Town as a Warrant Article.   22 

 23 
VIII. Other Business  24 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 25 
Ms. Sanford asked about the third-party requests that were not represented at the meeting.  26 
Chair Macauley stated the Town would adhere to the policy created; a third-party request 27 
will not be considered if a representative did not attend the meeting to speak to the request.   28 
 29 
Ms. Carter noted that the third-party requests were required to submit a financial statement.  30 
The amount of detail in the financial information presented varied widely.  She wondered 31 
what the thoughts were among the Board reviewing the requests and whether there would be 32 
any change to the policy with regard to the submittal of a financial statement.  Chair 33 
Macauley agreed; he suggested at the last meeting providing a form for financial information 34 
that is simple and would provide uniformity across the parties.  Mr. Mooers noted the request 35 
wasn’t intended to require a lengthy statement of their financial health, but only a basic 36 
summary to provide the Town with an idea of their financial situation.   37 
 38 
Mr. Wood believed some third-party groups may not grasp the specific area encompassed by 39 
the Town of Mount Desert versus the term “Mount Desert”, meaning the island in its 40 
entirety.  Director Wright reported the application form now asks requesting parties not to 41 
include residents of other Mount Desert Island towns in the information they provide. 42 
 43 
Monday, February 27, is the next meeting to address 3rd party requests. 44 

 45 
 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard Minutes 
February 21, 2023 
Page 7 
 

 
 

 1 
IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 2 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 3 
Town Invoices AP#2354 2/22/23 $537,659.49 
Total   $537,659.49 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval and signature of 4 
Treasurer’s Warrant as shown above. 5 
Motion approved 4-0. 6 
 7 

B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 8 
below: 9 

State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2352 

 
2/8/23 

 
$46,773.04 

 AP#2353 2/15/23 $5,698.00 
Town Payroll PR#2320 2/17/23 $141,934.48 
Total   $194,405.52 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval of signed Treasurer’s 10 
Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown above. 11 
Motion approved 4-0. 12 

 13 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 14 

Warrants as shown below: 15 
School Invoices - - $ 
School Payroll PR#17 2/17/23 $182,963.85 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
- 

 
- 

 
$ 

Total   $182,963.85 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, acknowledgement of 16 
Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown 17 
above. 18 
Motion approved 4-0. 19 

 20 
Grand Total   $915,028.86 

 21 
X. Adjournment 22 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to adjourn.   23 
Motion approved 4-0. 24 
 25 
The Meeting adjourned at 7:21PM. 26 

 27 
Respectfully Submitted 28 
 29 
 30 
Geoffrey Wood 31 

 





CONSENT AGENDA 

  





 

 

January&Feburary2023MonthlyReports/BJ/02-28-2023  Page 1 of 2

   

 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142 

www.mtdesert.org    highway@mtdesert.org 

Otter Creek, Seal Harbor, Northeast Harbor, Somesville, 

Hall Quarry and Pretty Marsh 

MEMO    
  

To:      Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

From:  Benjamin Jacobs, Highway Superintendent  

Re: January & February Monthly Reports  

Date: February 28, 2023            

 

Highway Crew 

 

• Plowed and sanded the roads and sidewalks during snow, sleet, and freezing rainstorms.  

• Completed our Bureau of Labor Standards inspections on, for example, fire extinguishers, 

secondary containment structures and eyewash stations.  

• Picked up Christmas trees that residents put out curbside. 

• Repaired a section of sidewalk on Sea Street. 

• Hauled snow to our dumpsites at the Gray Cow parking lot and Suminsby Park. 

• At the end of February, we posted heavy load limited signs restricting any unauthorized 

vehicles over 23,000 pounds use of the road unless the road is considered solidly frozen and 

when the air temperature is 32 degrees and below with no water showing in the 

 cracks of the road. 

• Cold patched various potholes throughout the town’s villages. 

• Erected signs throughout the town’s villages. 

• Cleaned the highway and bus garages. 

• Cleaned off snow and ice from our catch basins. 

• The crew performed maintenance and made repairs to our equipment and trucks in the public 

works department and other town departments. 

• Worked with a local contractor to clean out the floor drain holding tanks at the highway garage. 

  

 

Buildings & Grounds and Parks & Cemeteries  

 

• A member of the refuse department with assistance from members of the highway department 

performed all buildings and ground duties while the buildings and grounds employee was out 

on medical leave. 

• Continued setting up for meetings, cleaning bathrooms in the town office, vacuuming and 

assisting the admin staff with projects as needed e.g., assembling shelving, hanging pictures, 

repairing toilets, installing door closers, and painting.  

• Shoveled snow from walkways and salted walkways around the outside of town office, police 

department, highway garage and bathroom entrances to the marina building when it snowed.  

. 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:highway@mtdesert.org


 

 

January&Feburary2023MonthlyReports/BJ/02-28-2023  Page 2 of 2

   

 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142 

www.mtdesert.org    highway@mtdesert.org 

Otter Creek, Seal Harbor, Northeast Harbor, Somesville, 

Hall Quarry and Pretty Marsh 

 

Solid Waste  

  

• The crew continues to do an excellent job keeping the areas around the highway garage 

dumpsters as and recycle center as neat and clean as possible.  

• Continued picking up trash on their daily scheduled routes. 

• Serviced the refuse packer truck. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Cc.  Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 

Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Ed Montague, Wastewater Superintendent 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:highway@mtdesert.org


Members of the Select Board and to others whom it may concern: 
 
I find it necessary to submit input regarding a spin-off topic from the discussion 
surrounding the regulation of "short term rentals". It was noted by the LUZO board, and 
by several commentators, that the investigation into the licensing of short term rentals in 
the town of Mount Desert was initiated by a request of the Select Board as a potential 
solution to a "housing crisis" in Mount Desert.  
 
Blaming Short Term Rentals as the driving force behind a "housing crisis" is nothing 
more than a catchy political talking point, aimed at gaining the attention of 
community residents, and focusing blame on the shadowy out-of-town investors. The 
conventional thinking is that investors are gobbling up all available housing in order to 
make a profit, while the hard-working community members are left without a place to 
live. The idea that the Town can stem the tide of outside real estate investment, in order 
to create more housing at a lower price, has implications that, when articulated properly, 
may not turn out to be as popular to the average voter in Mount Desert.  
 
By regulating, taxing, capping, or even barring short term rentals, the Town is 
attempting to drive down investment and limit the home-buyer pool. This, in the town's 
theory, will lead to more available housing for year-round residents to buy up for 
themselves. It cannot be overlooked that, in doing so, the Town of Mount Desert is 
taking the position that they are intentionally enacting a policy with a goal to have a 
potential home sale sit on the market longer, leading to a lower sales price. In other 
words, they are intentionally and artificially depressing the home values of everyone in 
the community. Every resident needs to understand that their home, likely their most 
valuable asset, is being intentionally devalued by their local government, in the name of 
solving a "housing crisis" that frankly doesn't even exist. I am not convinced that the 
local lobsterman, who wants to retire and move to Florida, will care if his home is 
purchased for a short term rental, seasonal resident, or by a local teacher, as long as he 
can maximize value for his dream retirement. The true intentions and impact of Town 
regulations against Short term rentals, needs to be clearly outlined. Without beating 
around the bush, the goal of Mount Desert to take Short Term Rental Buyers out of the 
home buyer pool is an attempt to lower the home values of every resident of Mount 
Desert. That impacts every resident, and that should anger every resident. I would also 
encourage you to consult the Town's Attorney on the legality of such a plan. It is one 
thing to enact a policy that has negative unintended consequences, but it's another to 
have the intent and purpose of the policy devalue your residents' net worth.  
 
That said, I want to highlight some points to demonstrate that Short Term Rental owners 
are not the enemy you seek. 
 
- Our lights are on during all seasons, filled with people coming to town to quietly relax 
and spend money at local businesses. Not so with many of our “snow bird” neighbors 
who tend to shut down their homes and fly south for the winter.  
 



- Typically we find that most of our guests come to Seal Harbor for quiet enjoyment and 
park access. They are usually older or have higher incomes. We have seen most of the 
“partiers” rent in Bar Harbor where they can be closer to the nightlife, because that is 
what they enjoy. There is no nightlife in Mount Desert to attract these types of tenants, 
and we have strict rules to avoid such guests.  
 
- Take time to speak with the local Real Estate Agents. We personally know many. They 
have waiting lists of recently retired people, with retirement cash savings, waiting for 
new home listings to buy for personal seasonal enjoyment. We bought our property in 
2019. Since then, we know of 4 neighbors that have sold their homes to retirees- not 
Airbnb investors. These retirees also paid significantly more than we did. In fact, we 
don’t know of anyone else that has recently purchased and rented short term. 
Anecdotally, our experience doesn’t match the Town’s concerns. Open the Wall Street 
Journal sometime. Home prices, as well as the price of nearly everything else, are 
dramatically up over the last few years nationally. 
 
- The nature of renting short term requires us to maintain a high standard in the home 
and on our land. We have invested in our home, refurbished it, put in landscaping, and 
maintain it meticulously. We visit frequently to personally see to the upkeep. We 
wouldn’t do very well if our guests show up and see hoarding garbage in the front yard, 
a dead garden, weeds, leaking pipes, hanging gutters, etc. Our requirements to 
maintain high standards bring value to the neighborhood. An investment in our home is 
an investment in the community. It should also be noted that we have certainly brought 
more value to the community than the neighbor across the street, who rents their home 
to a long term tenant, doesn’t maintain the property or cut the grass, and allows the 
operation of a large mobile home in the driveway to sell Marijuana out of. The 
population of Mount Desert is aging, the turnover is happening - so existing properties 
can either go to people that take pride and care, or they can be artificially reserved for 
“low income housing”. Seems to be an easy choice.  
 
- Maintaining the high standard (previously mentioned) in turn creates additional 
economic opportunities for local tradesmen, as we call on them at an astonishingly high 
rate compared to our primary residence where DIY and "toughing it out" are options. We 
can't ask a guest to wrap a towel around a leaky faucet, or go buy a plunger when the 
toilet is clogged. We frequently rely on local tradespeople. We have paid over 20,000 
dollars to our cleaners in 1 year for 120 labor hours. This is 166/hour.  
 
- Our plumber was training an 18 year old young man. A year later we asked how he 
was doing and our plumber said he moved away to go to college. He did not say that he 
moved away because he couldn’t find a house to buy locally or couldn’t find a house to 
rent long term. The same exact story happened with our landscaper. The young man 
moved away to go to college. You are not losing your youth because of a lack of 
housing. You’re losing it due to a decline in economic opportunity. Does it not make 
sense to capitalize on the most valuable resource Mount Desert has to offer? Resisting 
tourism, and those that invest in it, is resisting economic growth and opportunity.  
 



- No one is entitled to live in any given location. This sorts itself out over time and is 
decided by free and open real estate markets. Every individual has a right to be a player 
and compete in any given market. We live 66 miles from our place of full time 
employment. We do so because we enjoy space and can’t afford the same standard of 
living near our workplace. This is a tradeoff and a choice. We chose to live in an area 
where we could compete in the real estate market and obtain a home that we can afford 
and we enjoy, at the expense of needing to commute 66 miles one-way. A former 
cleaner of ours closed on a nice home in Ellsworth, in June, during “peak” real estate 
values, for 250,000. She has employment on MDI, Hancock, Surrey, and Lamoine. 
Sounds perfect to me. There are options.  
 
- There is a national labor shortage. This is not a local issue. Attacking short term 
rentals will not suddenly help you fill that EMT/Teacher/Doctor/Nurse position we hear 
so much about.  
 
- You do not need to regulate short term rentals to create long term rental opportunities. 
Running a short term rental is at times exhausting, is expensive, and can be less 
financially predictable and secure. It is not for everyone. Many real estate owners prefer 
the security and simplicity of pursuing long term tenants. If the town wishes to create 
more long term rental opportunities, perhaps they should consider ways to make it more 
profitable for landlords to do so (think tax incentives). Again, free market economics will 
eventually solve the problem. Once short term rentals reach a certain level and 
absorption rates are maxed out, profits decrease as prices fall, and long term renting 
becomes relatively more attractive given the effort and risk involved. This process can 
be accelerated through incentives for long term landlords. Limiting a home's money 
earning potential through regulation, only hurts the average homeowner’s potential 
value when they wish to sell their property. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to read our perspective 
 
Brendan 
   
 



m:\2023 cc meetings\february 7,2023\february 7, 2023 crm\february 7, 2023crm minutes docx 

 

COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 
 

Learn more about HANCOCK COUNTY by visiting 

www.co.hancock.me.us 

 Audio recordings of the meeting are available upon request 

 
 

The regular meeting of the Hancock County Commissioners was brought to order by 

Commissioner Paradis at 8:30 a.m. on Tuesday February 7, 2023.    Commissioner Clark, 

Commissioner Wombacher, County Administrator Michael Crooker were also present, as well as 

several Department Heads.  The meeting was held using a hybrid format and Department Heads 

and members of the public were able to attend in person or via Zoom. 

 

Adjustments to agenda: none 

MOTION: Move to add to the agenda a bid opening for the entrance improvement project 

and place that item after Public Comment.  Move to approve the agenda as amended. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Meeting Minutes: 

MOTION: Move to approve the minutes of the January 18, 2023 Special Meeting as 

presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Employee recognition: 

MOTION: Move to recognize Michelle Cote’s 25 years of employment and thank her for 

her service. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to recognize Erik Fitch’s 20 years of employment and thank him for his 

service. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

ARP: 

MOTION: Move to accept and file the Mission Broadband Update as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to accept and file the ARPA spending overview report as presented and 

table any action on adopting it until a future meeting. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed) 

 

UT: 

MOTION: Move to accept and file the UT monthly report as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Agreement for the Regional Animal Control Officer 

between the Town of Deer Isle and the County of Hancock. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed) 

 

http://www.co.hancock.me.us/


m:\2023 cc meetings\february 7,2023\february 7, 2023 crm\february 7, 2023crm minutes docx 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Agreement for the Regional Animal Control Officer 

between the Town of Brooklin and the County of Hancock. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Agreement for the Regional Animal Control Officer 

between the Town of Hancock and the County of Hancock. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Agreement for the Regional Animal Control Officer 

between the Town of Lamoine and the County of Hancock. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Agreement for the Regional Animal Control Officer 

between the Town of Trenton and the County of Hancock. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed) 

 

Airport: 

MOTION: Move to accept and file the Airport monthly report as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve Modification #1 of the Jacobs Engineering Contract for the 

Caruso Drive, Short term parking and Apron repair at the cost of $$235,520 and for the 

Chair to sign. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve Amendment #1 of the Trenton Volunteer Fire Department 

Lead ARFF MOU and for the Chair to sign. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve Fred Ehrlenbach of Trenton to the Airport Advisory Board. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to take the request under advisement and table any action to a future 

meeting. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

EMA: 

MOTION: Move to accept and file the EMA monthly report as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Jail: 

MOTION: Move to approve the promotion of Michael Butters to the rank of Corporal 

effective February 11, 2023. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to remove James Williams from the county payroll. (Clark/Wombacher 

3-0, motion passed) 

 



m:\2023 cc meetings\february 7,2023\february 7, 2023 crm\february 7, 2023crm minutes docx 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the promotion of Teresa Torrey to full-time Corrections 

Officer with all applicable benefits at Step 9A effective February 11, 2023. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Logan Elzorth of Ellsworth as full-time 

Corrections Officer with all applicable benefits at Step 9A effective February 18, 2023. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Sheriff: 

MOTION: Move to approve that the Jail Administrator receive the same on call 

compensation benefit that the Lt. receives. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve that the Chief Deputy receive the same on call compensation 

benefit that the Lt. receives. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the sale of a 2017 Ford Cruiser to the Sullivan Fire 

Department for $2,500. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

District Attorney: 

MOTION: Move to accept the resignation of Michelle Potter effective February 17, 2023 

and to thank her for her service. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to permit the District Attorney to advertise for the position of 

Administrative Assistant. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Erin McGrath as Legal Intern, pay her 

$4,000 from the Witness Fees and Transcript Fees account and to contribute $2,000 from 

the Community Benefits Account towards her compensation. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, 

motion passed) 

 

Maintenance: 

MOTION: Move to accept and file the Maintenance monthly report as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to permit the Maintenance Director to go out to bid for the Middle and 

Accessory Roof Replacement Project. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

RCC: 

MOTION: Move to accept and file the RCC monthly report as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to permit the RCC Director to seek applications for a temporary 

dispatcher. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

 

 



m:\2023 cc meetings\february 7,2023\february 7, 2023 crm\february 7, 2023crm minutes docx 

 

Treasurer: 

MOTION: Move to approve the monthly bills and warrants as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

The Treasurer’s memo listed the following: 

January GF, Airport and Jail Payroll Warrants #23-1, #23-2, #23-3, #23-4 in the aggregate 

amount of $478,302.80; 

 

January GF, Airport and Jail Expense Warrants #22-131, #23-2, #22-132, #23-1, #22-133, #23-3, 

#23-3, #22-134, #23-4, #22-135, #23-5, #22-136, #23-6 in the aggregate amount of $818,197.34; 

 

January UT Payroll Warrants #23-27 #23-28, #23-29, and #23-30, in the aggregate amount of 

$1,098.04; 

 

January UT Expense Warrants #23-13 and #23-14, in the aggregate amount of $25,618.46 

 

MOTION: Move to approve and sign the Recapitulation Assessment of the County Tax as 

presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Commissioners: 

MOTION: Move to approve John Wombacher to the DCP Board of Directors. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve paying travel expenses for Commissioners living over five 

miles from the County Seat. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve permitting the Treasurer and County Administrator to issue 

checks up to $1,000. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve a letter of support for Sedgwick’s Community Resilience 

Partnership Grant application. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to adjourn (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

Meeting was adjourned at 10:55 a.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Patrice Crossman 

Clerk 





 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  





 

To: Board of Selectmen 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Application for a memorial bench at Ponds End 

Date: 2023.03.02 

The Town has in place an application process for placing private memorials in public spaces that allows 

members of the Town to install memorials at the Northeast Harbor Marina, Seal Harbor Village Green, 

Suminsby Park, Otter Creek Playground, or Ponds End pending approval by the Board of Selectmen. The 

application requires a description of the type and location of the memorial and an explanation of how 

the memorial will enhance the public space. 

On September 2, 2021, Mrs. Susan Warholak submitted a Public Space Private Placement Application 

(Application) to the Town for a “Friendship Bench” in memory of her deceased husband, Ted Warholak. 

Consideration of the Application came to the Board of Selectmen on September 20, 2021. The Board 

discussed the increase in applications for such memorials, the variety of public spaces within the Town, 

and the many different memorializing items (benches, plaques, etc.). The Board expressed an interest in 

standardizing the types of memorials used in public spaces with consideration of the individual 

characteristics of each space. The Board also considered the need to limit the overall number of 

memorials in all public spaces. The Board suggested that the Town develop a long-term plan with a 

menu of allowable items to be used as memorials that conform to the space and visual aesthetics of the 

Town’s public spaces. The Board then acted to “defer approval of action on Ms. Warholak’s Public Space 

Private Placement Application - Friendship Bench, Pond’s End until such time as the Town can develop a 

workable plan for the space.” 

Public Works has met with Mrs. Warholak at the proposed location for the Friendship Bench at Ponds 

End and discussed with her the type and location of her proposed memorial. Mrs. Warholak’s initial 

application provides the required information of type and location along with an explanation for how 

the memorial will enhance the public space. The greater detail of type and location provided at the site 

visit with Mrs. Warholak confirmed the information provided in the Application. The proposed location 

for the Friendship Bench is adjacent to the swim area and near the shore such that it would not impede 

the use of the area by swimmers or sunbathers but would allow for a viewing area of the lake. Further, 

the proposed Friendship Bench is consistent with an existing memorial near the dock and boat launch 

that was placed a few years ago. Mrs. Warholak also agreed to coordinate with Public Works on the final 

details of type and placement for the Friendship Bench. The proposed type and placement would 

enhance the public space at Ponds End and Public Works recommends approval of the Application. 

Memorandum 



Public Works agrees with the Board that it’s important to develop further standards for the installation 

of memorials in public spaces that takes into consideration the character and aesthetics of each public 

space while also limiting the total number of memorials in those spaces. Public Works proposes that we 

work toward developing those standards to bring to the Board for consideration at later date. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
PUBLIC SPACE PRWATE PLACEMENT APPLICATION

APPLICANT: 4 . U rko a Sao
(Print) (Signature)

MAILING ADDRESS: ,. . , , • ,• • , , r-j-(

PHONE: Qo >i ‘‘ ‘

_______________

, ‘,y- I - Oc 5’/
(Home) (Business) (cellular)

OTHER CONTACT INFO: I ,

(Email) (fax)

PUBLIC SPACE REQUESTED: Please check: Northeast Harbor Marina Green____
Seal Harbor Village Green

______Suminsby

Park Otter Creek Playground_____
Pond’s End ,/ Hall Quarry Park____

Please describe the proposed Plaque, memorial, marker, or planting including size, desired location and
how it will enhance the public space

itiSt1 1j ‘EI’Ki-?” 5 A LV8/1, k,%IC pg.. 3E1Jci-H6RE’? (:;)4j rr?

ThE Wou.h At: TNk:e Foe O WTh WE/ Mfl

-
i€fMANZ,J1 SAfl(’J 1)c-ru SiMi* MA WcJL E UfUL. ibR)i j)

‘J’5ii-O,s ?j’m4 I’l Tii4 pf; 5L)W,:L . (fJ1 As &L 4s L11*s 1JIr wia m sT Y LL

N -r)4& cD Mohrr14s.!1- i TN DE FrSiI7 AEP. i1ii2 VtJTSNiD Gi)TS
Wtb \N’Sl+ LAY Oi1 1?r )h)l(% S11L.L, ôiflRvJ’ JEiLS ‘fl’ ‘SgffIA

Approved this

_____

day of , 20, by a majority of the Board of Selectmen:

SEPO2Zi

THETOWN0F
MOUNT DESERT j

Page 2 of 15

Public Space Special Event Application and
Public Spaces Use Policy
Approved by the Board of Selectmen August 17, 2015



,>-V

ov)c1

(Tnc

11-;1

C’



{EP - 04504027 - v2 } 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT  
PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PROTECTION ORDINANCE  

 
This ordinance, as enacted at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting, repeals the No Swimming 

Ordinance enacted May 5, 2009  
 

AND the 

Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds enacted May 5, 2009 
 

Enacted May 2, 2023 

 
Sec�on 1.  Title. This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Public Water Supply Protec�on 
Ordinance”  

Sec�on 2. Authority.  This Ordinance, is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, Part 
2, Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), specifically 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3009 (1)(E); and 
Title 22, Sub�tle 2, Part 5, Chapter 601, Subchapter 4, Ar�cle 141, § 2642 (22 M.R.S.A. § 2642) and 30-A 
M.R.S.A. §4452. 

Sec�on 3. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to protect the water quality of Jordan, Upper and 
Lower Hadlock Ponds, the Mount Desert drinking water supply and its sources, as well as the health, 
safety, and welfare of persons dependent upon such supplies. The provisions of this ordinance pertaining 
to surface water use and water-related ac�vi�es include any ac�vity in, on, or from the surface water or 
the frozen water of Jordan, Upper and Lower Hadlock Ponds and their sources. 

Sec�on 4. Applicability. The Ordinance shall apply to: Jordan Pond in Seal Harbor and Upper Hadlock 
Pond and Lower Hadlock Pond in Northeast Harbor (together, the “Ponds”).  This Ordinance supersedes 
and replaces the “No Swimming Ordinance re Upper Hadlock Pond, Lower Hadlock Pond and Jordan 
Pond” as well as the “Ordinance Limi�ng Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds.” 

Sec�on 5. Protec�on of Water Supply Generally 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to pollute, threaten, jeopardize, or render impure, turbid or 
offensive the waters of the Ponds or their sources.  

B. The owner or operator of a motorized vehicle, boat or ice shack that sinks beneath the water 
or ice of one of the Ponds, or any of their sources, must contact the Mount Desert Water District 
or Police Department as soon as safety permits. 

Sec�on 6. Motor Vehicles Prohibited From Icebound Surface of Ponds. No person shall operate a motor 
vehicle on the icebound surface of the Ponds and no person shall allow a motor vehicle owned by him or 
her or under his or her control to enter upon the icebound surface of the Ponds. 

Sec�on 7. Defini�on of Motor Vehicle. For purposes of this Ordinance, the term "motor vehicle" shall be 
as defined in M.R.S.A 29-A § 101(42), as may be amended from �me to �me. For convenience, § 101(42) 
as of the date of adop�on of this Ordinance is reproduced below. “’Motor vehicle.’ ’Motor vehicle’ 
means a self-propelled vehicle not operated exclusively on tracks but does not include; A. A snowmobile 



{EP - 04504027 - v2 } 

as defined in Title 12, sec�on 13001; B. An all-terrain vehicle as defined in Title 12, sec�on 13001, unless 
the all-terrain vehicle is permited in accordance with sec�on 501, subsec�on 8 or is operated on a way 
and sec�on 2080 applies; and C. A motorized wheelchair or an electric personal assis�ve mobility 
device.” 

Section 8. Water Withdrawal. Water withdrawal from the Ponds and is not allowed. No pumping or 
siphoning of water out of our drinking water sources by parties other than the Mount Desert Water 
District or the Town of Mount Desert is allowed unless for fire department use. 
 
Section 9. Boats. Traditional row boats with or without motors less than 10hp, kayaks and canoes are 
allowed uses onthe Ponds. Evolving watercraft including but not limited to sailboats, sailboarding, and 
paddle boards, as well as boats with motors in excess of 10 hp, are not permitted. 
 
Section 10. Ice Shacks and On-ice Activities.  
 

A. Ice shacks and other similar structures providing temporary protection on the Ponds are 
allowed.   
 

B. Disposal or abandonment of bottles, cans, ash, trash, human waste, pet waste, building 
materials or equipment on the ice or in the water of the Ponds is prohibited. Anything 
brought on the ice must be packed out. 

 
C. Ice Shack placement and removal on the Ponds must follow all state laws. However, the 

Mount Desert Water District has the right to require ice shacks to be removed from the ice 
during ice-fishing season when local weather conditions create thinning/poor quality ice 
potentially causing its source water to be at risk.  If the owner or occupant of the shack will 
not remove the shack voluntarily, the Mount Desert Water District and/or the Town may do 
so, with any associated costs payable by the person or persons who constructed or occupied 
the shack. 

 

D. The Mount Desert Water District or other appropriate municipal staff may inspect 
temporary structures and their surrounding environments at any time for conformance with 
this Ordinance. 

 
Section 11. No Swimming. It shall be unlawful:  
 

A. For any person or persons to swim or wade in the waters of the Ponds. 
 
B. For the owner or person in control of any domestic animal to allow such domestic 

animal to enter waters of the Ponds. 
 

C. To leave any domestic animal waste within the watershed(s) of the Ponds. 
 
 
 
 



{EP - 04504027 - v2 } 

Sec�on 12. Penalty and Costs.   

Any person or en�ty viola�ng the provisions of this ordinance shall be liable to a civil penalty in 
accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. §4452 as summarized below:  

A) Monetary penal�es may be assessed on a per-day basis.  

1. The minimum penalty for a specific viola�on is $100;  

2. The maximum penalty outside a resource protec�on zone is $2,500;   

3. The maximum penalty is $5,000 for any viola�on within a resource protec�on zone;  

4. The maximum penalty is increased to $25,000 when it is shown that there has been a previous 
convic�on of the same party within the past 2 years for a similar viola�on.  

5. The maximum penalty may be increased if the economic benefit resul�ng from the viola�on 
exceeds the applicable penal�es  

B) In addi�on to penal�es, legal fees may also be awarded as provided by court rule. Any person 
viola�ng this Ordinance shall also be liable to any other appropriate party for any costs incurred as a 
result of the viola�on, including but not limited to costs associated with the salvage of the motor vehicle, 
ATV, snowmobile, boat, ice-shack or any other foreign object from the pond. 

C) The violator may be ordered to correct, abate or mi�gate the viola�ons.  

D) In se�ng a penalty, the following shall be considered:  

1. Prior viola�ons by the same party;  

2. The degree of environmental damage that cannot be abated or corrected;  

3. The extent to which the viola�on con�nued following an order to stop. 

This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30- A, Part 2, Subpart 4, Chapter 
141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), and Title 22, Sub�tle 2, Part 5, Chapter 601, Subchapter 4, Ar�cle 
141, § 2642 (22 M.R.S.A. § 2642). 

The original ordinances “No Swimming Ordinance re Upper Hadlock Pond, Lower Hadlock Pond and 
Jordan Pond” as well as “Ordinance Limi�ng Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds” were, pursuant to 22 
M.R.S.A. § 2642, originally adopted by the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Mount Desert on May 23, 
1977, and then was ra�fied by the voters of the Town at a Town Mee�ng held on May 5, 2009. They are 
hereby superseded and replaced. 

This Ordinance shall be enforced by the Police Department of the Town of Mount Desert. If any sec�on, 
subsec�on, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be uncons�tu�onal or 
invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining por�ons of this Ordinance.  

The effec�ve date of this Ordinance is May 2, 2023. 

 



Fu
nd

ed
 

Pr
io

r 
Y

r
G

ro
up

 N
am

e
C

on
ta

ct
Fn

C
on

ta
ct

L
n

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
 S

B
 

R
ec

co
m

m
en

ds
20

23
 

R
eq

ue
st

%
 C

ha
ng

e
20

22
 

Fu
nd

ed
 

A
m

ou
nt

20
22

 
R

eq
ue

st
20

21
 

R
eq

ue
st

20
20

 
R

eq
ue

st
20

19
 

R
eq

ue
st

Y
es

A
ca

di
an

 Y
ou

th
 S

po
rts

B
re

nd
a

Fe
rn

al
d/

K
yl

e 
M

cK
im

N
o 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n

$5
,0

00
.0

0
15

0.
00

%
$2

,0
00

.0
0

$2
,0

00
.0

0
$2

,0
00

.0
0

-
$1

,7
50

.0
0

Y
es

A
m

er
ic

an
 R

ed
 C

ro
ss

/P
in

e 
Tr

ee
 C

ha
pt

er
$3

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,7

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

Y
es

B
ar

 H
ar

bo
r F

oo
d 

Pa
nt

ry
To

m
R

ee
ve

$3
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$3
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
Y

es
D

ow
ne

as
t C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ar

tn
er

s
R

ac
he

l
D

ec
ke

r
$3

,1
87

.0
0

48
.2

3%
$2

,1
50

.0
0

$2
,1

50
.0

0
$1

,5
04

.0
0

$5
,0

59
.0

0
$2

,2
80

.0
0

Y
es

D
ow

ne
as

t H
or

iz
on

s I
nc

.
A

sh
le

y
Jo

hn
so

n
$6

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$6

,0
00

.0
0

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$5

,6
00

.0
0

$5
,6

00
.0

0
$5

,6
00

.0
0

Y
es

Ea
gl

es
' N

es
t C

lu
bh

ou
se

A
lic

e 
G

rin
dl

e
N

o 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n
$1

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
%

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

-
-

-
Y

es
Ea

st
er

n 
A

re
a 

A
ge

nc
y 

O
n 

A
gi

ng
D

an
Fr

ye
$7

50
.0

0
50

.0
0%

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

Y
es

Em
m

au
s H

om
el

es
s S

he
lte

r
St

ac
ey

H
er

ric
k

$2
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,0

53
.0

0
$2

,0
53

.0
0

$2
,0

53
.0

0
Y

es
G

re
at

 H
ar

bo
r M

ar
iti

m
e 

M
us

eu
m

Sy
dn

ey
R

ob
er

ts
-R

oc
ke

fe
lle

r
$5

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$5

,5
00

.0
0

$5
,5

00
.0

0
$5

,5
00

.0
0

-
$5

,0
00

.0
0

Y
es

H
ea

lth
 E

qu
ity

 A
lli

an
ce

 
Ji

ll
H

en
de

rs
on

N
o 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n

$5
00

.0
0

-6
6.

67
%

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

Y
es

H
os

pi
ce

 V
ol

un
te

er
s o

f H
an

co
ck

 C
ou

nt
y

N
o 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n

$1
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
Y

es
Is

la
nd

 C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

Sh
ar

on
Li

ns
co

tt
$2

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,0
00

.0
0

Y
es

Is
la

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 T

ru
st

M
ar

la
O

'B
yr

ne
$7

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$7

,5
00

.0
0

$7
,5

00
.0

0
$7

,5
00

.0
0

$7
,5

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

Y
es

Li
fe

fli
gh

t F
ou

nd
at

io
n

M
ac

m
ill

an
A

sh
le

y
$1

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

Y
es

M
t. 

D
es

er
t C

ha
m

be
r o

f C
om

m
er

ce
M

ic
ki

Su
m

pt
er

/L
is

a 
Pa

rs
on

s
$2

8,
50

0.
00

3.
64

%
$2

7,
50

0.
00

$6
5,

00
0.

00
$2

7,
50

0.
00

$2
7,

50
0.

00
$2

7,
50

0.
00

Y
es

M
t. 

D
es

er
t I

sla
nd

 C
am

pf
ire

 C
oa

lit
io

n
A

nn
e-

M
ar

ie
H

ar
t

$3
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
Y

es
M

t. 
D

es
er

t I
sla

nd
 H

is
to

ric
al

 S
oc

ie
ty

R
an

ey
B

en
ch

$1
5,

50
0.

00
52

0.
00

%
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

Y
es

M
t. 

D
es

er
t N

ur
se

ry
 S

ch
oo

l
Sa

ra
h

H
in

ck
le

y
$2

0,
00

0.
00

11
6.

22
%

$9
,2

50
.0

0
$9

,2
50

.0
0

$2
,0

00
.0

0
-

$2
,0

00
.0

0
Y

es
M

t. 
D

es
er

t N
ur

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

A
m

y
M

cV
et

y
$3

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

%
$3

5,
00

0.
00

$3
5,

00
0.

00
$3

5,
00

0.
00

$3
5,

00
0.

00
$3

5,
00

0.
00

Y
es

N
or

th
ea

st
 H

ar
bo

r V
IS

Je
ro

m
e

Su
m

in
sb

y
$5

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$5

,0
00

.0
0

$5
,0

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

$5
,0

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

N
o

Pr
et

ty
 M

ar
sh

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n
El

lie
Pa

nc
oe

$2
,5

00
.0

0
#D

IV
/0

!
$0

.0
0

-
$9

,5
00

.0
0

-
-

Y
es

Se
al

 H
ar

bo
r V

IS
D

eb
or

ah
B

ro
w

n
$5

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

%
$5

5,
00

0.
00

$5
5,

00
0.

00
$5

2,
81

5.
00

$5
0,

00
0.

00
$4

5,
00

0.
00

Y
es

SP
C

A
 o

f H
an

co
ck

 C
ou

nt
y

$2
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

%
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

-
-

Y
es

W
IC

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
Ja

ck
ie

Ew
in

g
N

o 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n
$5

00
.0

0
1.

01
%

$4
95

.0
0

$4
95

.0
0

$6
75

.0
0

$6
75

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$2
10

,9
37

.0
0

17
.9

1%
$1

78
,8

95
.0

0
$2

16
,3

95
.0

0
$1

76
,1

47
.0

0
$1

57
,0

87
.0

0
$1

52
,1

83
.0

0



Town of Mount Desert 
Board of Selectmen 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Warrant Articles for Review and Votes: 
 
 
Article 9. Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance (note that due to the newly combined 

ordinance, and the No Swimming and Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great 
Ponds being repealed, the sunset clause articles for those two ordinance changes 
have been removed. 

Article 25. Short-term Rental Licensing Ordinance 
Article 31. Sale of Generator to MDIHS 
Article 33. Road Acceptance – Patterson Hill 
Article 34. Sewer Acceptance – Patterson Hill 
Article 37. Transfer of Police Training Cost Reserve Account 
Article 38. Assessor Capital Improvement Reserve Transfer 
Article 39. Sidewalk Improvements Project Funding 
Article 40. Tennis/Pickleball Courts Renovation Funding 
Article 41. Parking Lots Improvements Project Funding  
Article 42. Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Improvements Project Funding 
Article 43. Beech Hill Cross Rd. Culvert Improvements Project Funding 
Article 44. Seal Harbor Beach Erosion Improvements Project Funding 
Article 54. Undesignated Fund Balance Transfer FY24 
Article 56. Revenue through Excise Taxes etc. 
Article 71. Third Party Funding Requests 
Article 73. Property Tax Levy (LD#1) 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 3 

Greeting 
 

State of Maine 
Hancock County, ss         2023 
 

To: David Kerns, a Constable in the Town of Mount Desert 
 
In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the 
Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to 
assemble in the Town Hall Meeting Room, 21 Sea St. Northeast Harbor, Maine, on 
Monday, the first day of May AD 2023 at seven-fifty o’clock in the forenoon, then and 
there to act on Article 1; and immediately thereafter to act on Article 2 until eight o’clock in 
the evening. 
AND to notify and warn said voters to reconvene in the Neighborhood House, 1 Kimball 
Rd, Northeast Harbor, Maine in said Town, on Tuesday, the second day of May AD 2023 
at six o’clock in the evening; then and there to act on Articles 3 through xx; all of said 
Articles being set out below to wit: 
 
Pursuant to Title 21-A, §759(7), absentee ballots will be processed at the polls on May 
1, 2023 every half hour beginning at 9:00 AM. 
 
 

Election of Moderator 

 To elect a Moderator by written ballot. 
 
 

Election of Municipal Officers 

 To elect two members to the Selectboard for a term of three years, one member 
to the Mount Desert Elementary School Board for a term of three years, and one trustee to the 
Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three years. 
 

Non-Voter Recognition 

 To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 
2023 Annual Town Meeting. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

Ordinances 
 
For Articles 4 through xx, an underline indicates an addition, and a strikethrough 
indicates a deletion. 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 4 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 
Alewife Ordinance” be enacted?  The ordinance reads, in its entirety, “Regulations for the 
taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows:  For the year July 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2024 there shall be no taking of Alewives and Blue Back Herring in the 
Town of Mount Desert.” 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 
Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?   
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Harbor Ordinance 

 
Enacted May 2, 2017 

Amended May 2, 2023 
 

Article I – Definitions 
 
Resident - Any person who owns property in the Town of Mount Desert, or any person 
who rents property with their boat registered in town and the excise tax paid in town 
occupies a dwelling within the Town of Mount Desert for more than 183 days in a 
calendar year. 
 

Article VII – Moorings: Assignment, Standards, Specifications, and 
Waiting List 

 
7.5 - Mooring Registration and Permit  
 
All moorings located in all harbors and all other tidal waters of the Town of Mount 
Desert shall be registered annually, prior to March 1st, with the Harbor Master, and a 
permit shall be obtained from the Harbor Master. All moorings not registered by April 
15th each year shall be removed by the owner, and the mooring privilege shall be 
revoked. Moorings located outside the harbors of the Town of Mount Desert existing 
as of the effective date of this Ordinance do no need to register with the Harbor Master. 
All new moorings placed outside the harbors of the Town of Mount Desert after the 
effective date of this Ordinance must register annually with the Harbor Master in 
compliance with this provision. 
 
Explanatory Note: These amendments to the Harbor Ordinance are to bring the 
definition of “resident” into line with State statute, 38 M.R.S. § 11(1), and to provide 
better oversight for moorings located outside the harbors of the Town.   
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 5 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Ordinance 
Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? 
 

ORDINANCE REGULATING THE BUILDING AND STREET NUMBERING 
IN THE TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

 
As adopted at Annual Town Meeting March 6, 7, and 8, 1995 and 

As aAmended May 5, 2009 
Amended May 2, 2023 

. 

. 

. 
 

14.       This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 
 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to 
the Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance” be enacted?   

 
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT DOG ORDINANCE 

 
Adopted March 1, 1965 
Amended March 2, 1970  
Amended March 5, 1973 
Amended May 5, 2009 
Amended May 2, 2023 

 
1) Miscellaneous Provisions 

A) This ordinance, as amended, is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, 
Title 30-A, Part 2, Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), and Title 
7, Part 9, Chapter 725, § 3950 (7 M.R.S.A. § 3950). 

 
B) The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009. 
 
C) This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 6 

election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 
Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?   
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Harbor Ordinance 

 
Enacted May 2, 2017 

Amended May 2, 2023 
 

Article II – Applicability, Authority, & General Provisions 
 
2.1 - Effective date of the Ordinance 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption by the legislative body and shall, 
in compliance with section 5.3 of Town of Mount Desert Charter, remain in effect for 
a period of fifteen (15) years from the effective date. 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount 
Desert Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance" be enacted?  See Appendix A 
(pgs.XX - XX) for language 
 
Explanatory Note: Repeal and replace the No Swimming and Limiting Motor 
Vehicle Access to Great Ponds Ordinances. 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to 
the Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance Ordinance” be enacted?   

 
Public Road Acceptance Ordinance 

 
As adopted May 5, 2009 Annual Town Meeting 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 7 

Amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting 
Amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting 

 
This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Rural 
Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be 
enacted? 
 

RURAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT SUPPORT PROGRAM ORDINANCE 
OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

 
ENACTED MARCH 1, 2004 
AMENDED MARCH 7, 2006 
AMENDED MARCH 6, 2007 

AMENDED MAY 5, 2009 
AMENDED MAY 2, 2023 

. 

. 

. 
 

8.0 Period of Ordinance 
 
8.1  
 The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009. May 2, 2023 
 
8.2 This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

 
Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the 
ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 
2022 referendum election. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Solid Waste 
Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? 
 

SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 8 

of the  
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

  
Enacted MAY 6, 2014 

Revised and Enacted May 8, 2018 
Amended May 2, 2023  

 
SECTION 11: EFFECTIVE DATE; SUNSET  
 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of enactment for a period not to 
exceed 15 years, unless amended or repealed prior to the expiration of this 15 year period.  

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 
Use of Public Places Ordinance” be enacted? 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
USE OF PUBLIC PLACES ORDINANCE 

 
Enacted May 5, 2009 

Amended May 2, 2023 
. 
. 
. 

 
1. This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

 
Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the 
ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 
2022 referendum election. 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance Regarding Lots within the Village Commercial District in the Village of 
Northeast Harbor” be enacted as set forth below? 

Explanatory Note:  This Article amends Section 3.5, footnote P to clarify that the 
minimum lot size of 1000 square feet only applies to lots within the village of 
Northeast Harbor.   

 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 9 

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts:  minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, 
etc. 
. 
. 
. 
Notes: 
. 
. 
. 
 
(p) For only those lots in the Village of Northeast Harbor within the Village Commercial District 
that have public sewer, the minimum lot area required for each dwelling unit on a single lot is 
1000 square feet.  
. 
. 
. 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023, entitled “Amendments to the Land Use 
Zoning Ordinance to change the Land Use District designation of Tax Map 003: Lot 026 and 
Map 003: Lot 027” be enacted as set forth below? 

Explanatory Note:  This Article changes Tax Map 003, Lot 26 and Map 3, Lot 27 from 
Shoreland Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2).   

 
SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS 

. 

. 

. 
 
3.3 Map Changes: Amended at:  
. 
. 
. 
 
Town Meeting of May 2, 2023: change Tax Map 003, Lot 026 and Tax Map 003, Lot 027 
from Shoreland Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2). 
 
. 
. 
. 

 
See draft map on following page 

 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 10 

 
 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify the dimensional requirements for one-Family and two-family 
dwellings” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This warrant article amends the LUZO section 6.B.11.3(2) to clarify 
that the dimensional standards for a duplex are not doubled until a second duplex 
structure is added. 
 
6B  SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES  
. 
. 
. 
6B.11 Lots  
. 
. 
. 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 11 

3. Requirements for lots wholly outside the Shoreland Zone   
 
1. Lots abutting more than one road. Lots which abut more than one road shall have the 
required setbacks along each road used as an entrance or exit.  
  
2. Additional Dimensional requirements one-family or two-family dwellings.  One-family and 
two-family dwellings are allowed in all districts, as indicated in Section 3.4, subject to the 
following:. All dimensional requirements shall be met separately for each and every one-family 
dwelling on a lot. For each additional or All dimensional requirements shall be met separately 
for each and every two-family dwelling on a lot, all dimensional requirements shall be met 
separately for each one-family or two-family dwelling.  
  
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to add Residential Storage Building/Shed as permitted uses in 
Section 3.4” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article adds Residential Storage Building/Sheds as allowed 
uses so that property owners can build these structures without being tied to a 
residential dwelling unit.   
 
SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS 
. 
. 
. 
 
3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District: 
 

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the 
applicable land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.B., and 6.C. The district designation for a 
particular site shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map. 
 
P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable land 

use standards  
C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board Use 

allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board, except 
where the code enforcement officer may authorize minor changes in the 
placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use 
permit 

X Use is prohibited 
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer 

 
 
VR1 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL ONE 
VR2 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL TWO 
VR3    VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL THREE 
R1 RESIDENTIAL ONE 
R2 RESIDENTIAL TWO 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 12 

SR1 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL ONE 
SR2 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL TWO 
SR3 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL THREE 
SR5 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL FIVE 
RW2 RURAL OR WOODLAND TWO 
RW3 RURAL OR WOODLAND THREE 
VC VILLAGE COMMERCIAL 
SC SHORELAND COMMERCIAL 
RP RESOURCE PROTECTION 
C CONSERVATION 
SP STREAM PROTECTION 

 
See table of uses on following pages 

 
Section 3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District 
DISTRICTS: 
 
LAND USE: 

 
VR 1 
VR 2 

 
R 1 
R 2 

SR 1 
SR 2 
SR 3 
SR 5 

 
RW 2 
RW 3 

 
VC 

 
SC 

 
C 

 
RP 

 
SP 

 
VR3 

 
RESIDENTIAL 

 

Dwelling 1 & 2 
Family  CEO CEO CEO(d) CEO CEO CEO(d) C C8 C4 X 

Dwelling, Multiple  C C C C C X C X X X 

Accessory 
Residential 
Dwelling Unit  
 

CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C C8 C4 Ce 

Accessory 
structures including 
structural additions 
and guest houses(c) 

CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C8 C4 X 

Cluster and 
Workforce 
Subdivisions 

C C X C C X X X X X 

Residential Storage 
Building/Shed CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C8 C4 X 

Mobile Home Park C X X X X X X X X X 

(c)   A separate garage is an accessory structure. A separate garage with a dwelling unit  
     shall be deemed a dwelling unit. 
(d)   See Section 6B.11.3 (Lots) 
(e)  Accessory residential dwellings in the VR3 District must be for staff housing only. 
 

. 

. 

. 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 13 

 
SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS  
. 
. 
. 
RESIDENTIAL STORAGE BUILDING/SHED: A structure or building used primarily for storage 
purposes.   
. 
. 
. 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to remove the air landing sites” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article removes air landing sites from section 6B in the 
ordinance.   
 
6B  SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES  
  
6B.1 Agriculture  
  
In non-shoreland areas, all spreading, or disposal of manure shall be accomplished in 
conformance with the Manure Utilization Guidelines published by the Maine Department of 
Agriculture on November 1, 2001, and the Nutrient Management Law (7 M.R.S.A. sections 
4201-4209). In shoreland areas, all spreading, or disposal of manure shall comply with Section 
6C.1.  
   
6B.2 Air Landing Sites RESERVED 
  
No air landing site shall be developed or used for such purpose without Conditional Use 
Approval of the Planning Board. 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the definition of Marina and Expansion of Use” be enacted 
as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article adds language to the definitions for Marina’s and 
Expansion of a Use to clarify that the Harbor Master regulates moorings and that an 
expansion of use does not include adding moorings.   
 

SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 14 

. 

. 

. 
EXPANSION OF A USE:  The additional use of more footprint of a structure, land or water 
area devoted to a particular use; additional one or more weeks of the use's operating season; 
or additional business hours of operation. Excludes moorings that are regulated by the 
harbormaster. 
. 
. 
. 
MARINA: A business establishment having frontage on navigable water and providing for hire 
docking facilities or moorings at its location unless such uses are incidental to the principal use 
of the property. In addition, it may also provide other services such as:  boat storage and repair; 
boat sales; boat hauling and launching; bait and tackle sales; sale of marine supplies and 
marine fuel. Placement of moorings are exclusively regulated by the Harbor Master consistent 
with the Harbor Ordinance and Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, Chapter 1. 
 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to amend the deadline for establishment of use” be enacted as set 
forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article changes the timeframe for establishment of use for a 
conditional use from 12 months to 24 months.   
 
SECTION 5 CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL  
. 
. 
. 
5.5 Deadline for establishment of use  
  
Unless more restrictive criteria are required in another section of this Ordinance, the proposed 
use must be established within twelve (12) twenty-four (24) months of the date of approval of 
the Conditional Use Application.  Otherwise, the approval lapses and a new application is 
required.  The beginning of construction or the commencement of business shall constitute 
establishment.  
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to correct the date for when a lot was be created for purposes of 
applying the access provisions in 6B.11(2)” to be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article makes a house keeping correction to date for when a 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 15 

lot was be created for purposes of applying the access provisions in 6B.11(2).   
 
6B.11 Lots   
  
1. Minimum lot size. See section 3.5.  
  
2. Access.   

1. Lots created on or after June 6May 5, 2015. No lot created on or after June 6May 5, 
2015, shall be built upon or otherwise developed unless it has a private road or driveway for 
access to a public way by a valid right of way benefiting the lot (or a combination of driveway 
and/or one or more private roads) or by ownership of land abutting the public way. If more 
than 2 lots are accessed by the same private road, then it must meet the Street Design and 
Construction Standards of Section 5.14 of the Subdivision Ordinance. If no more than 2 lots 
are accessed by the same private road or driveway, then it must meet either the said Street 
Design and Construction Standards or the Driveway Construction standards of Section 6B.6 
of this Ordinance. A pre-existing primary access drive that serves up to 2 existing lots need 
not meet the requirements of Section 6B.6. All such lots must maintain safe access for fire, 
police, and emergency vehicles, as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer.   
 
In determining whether lots maintain safe access, the Code Enforcement Office may seek 
guidance from the Fire Chief.  
  
2.  Lots created before June 6May 5, 2015. Any lot created before June 6May 5, 2015, 
shall not be further built upon or otherwise further developed unless it has a private road or 
driveway for access to a public way by a valid right of way benefiting the lot (or a 
combination of driveway and/or one or more private roads) or by ownership of land abutting 
the public way, but the said private road or driveway need not meet the requirements of 
Section 6B.6 of the Land Use Zoning Ordinance. All such lots must maintain safe access for 
fire, police, and emergency vehicles, as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer. In 
determining whether lots maintain safe access, the Code Enforcement Officer may seek 
guidance from the Fire Chief. 

 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify where the setback is measured from a road or right-of-way” 
be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article clarifies where a road setback is measured from.   
 
SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS 
. 
. 
. 
Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts:  minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, etc. 
. 
. 
. 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 16 

NOTES: 
 

(b) Refer to setback as defined in Section 8. 
 

(c) Setbacks from pPublic and private roads are measured from edge of road surface, or 
edge of legally established right of way if no road exists. Where the setback is from a 
private road or right-of-way, the setback shall be equal to the property line setback 
requirements of the district in which the property is located. 

 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the footprint limitation for principal and accessory 
structures in the shoreland zone” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article provides a housekeeping change to make the local 
ordinance consistent with Shoreland Zoning by increases the footprint limitation for 
principal and accessory structures in the shoreland zone from 15% to 20% which is 
more consistent with the State guidelines.    
 

SHORELAND ZONING STANDARDS 
. 
. 
.  
6C.8 Principal and Accessory Structures 
. 
. 
. 

6. 15%20% footprint limitation. The total footprint area of all structures, parking lots 
and other -vegetated surfaces, within the shoreland zone shall not exceed 
fifteentwenty (1520) percent of the lot or a portion thereof, located within the shoreland 
zone, including land area previously developed, except in the Shoreland Commercial 
District adjacent to tidal waters, where lot coverage shall not exceed seventy (70) 
percent. 

 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments 
to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to allow exceptions to the height limitations 
consistent with State Shoreland Zoning Laws” be enacted as set forth below?  See 
Appendix A (pgs.XX - XX) for language 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article allows an exception to how height is measured when a 
structure is located within an area of special flood hazard.   
 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 17 

 
Planning Board recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Short-Term Rental 
Licensing Ordinance” be enacted as set forth below?  See Appendix A (pgs.XX - XX) for 
language 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
 
 

Gifts 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Board of Selectmen to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts 
(MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on behalf of 
the Municipal Fire Department.  It is understood that any funds received will be placed in the 
Fire Equipment Reserve Fund. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
 

Leases, Agreements, Sales 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Board of Selectmen to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast 
Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 
2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole discretion, 
deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Board of Selectmen, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast 
Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) year 
beginning July 1, 2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its 
sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the 
Board of Selectmen to enter in to a ten-year (10) lease with the Town of Cranberry Isles, for 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 18 

123 parking spaces in the Town Office Municipal parking lot, under terms and conditions the 
Board deems advisable.  A copy of the lease document shall be on file at the Town office 
and available for public inspection no less than seven (7) days prior to the Town Meeting 
and that copy shall be certified as accurate by the Town Clerk.  See Appendix B (pgs.XX - 
XX) 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board 
of Selectmen, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, 
Inc. for management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a term of one (1) 
year beginning July 1, 2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in 
its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will vote to sell 
a surplus emergency standby Kohler 80 kW Generator to the Mount Desert Island Regional 
School District (MDI High School) for a lump sum cost of $12,500 on an as is where is basis, 
said generator being the same generator that was leased by the MDI High School from the 
Town for $1.00 in September 2022, and is presently in place and in use at the MDI High 
School, with said lease scheduled to terminate on or before June 1, 2023, and further to 
authorize the Board of Selectmen or their designee to execute any and all contracts and 
documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to accomplish the Sale. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall the voters of the Town of Mount Desert authorize the Selectboard 
to negotiate and complete the sale of the 2013 ambulance received by the Town by gift of 
the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service (“NEHAS”) on or about April 26th, 2022 by 
returning it to NEHAS for $1 pursuant to the terms of the gift instrument by which NEHAS 
donated it to the Town? 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Patterson Hill Road 
(exclusive of Clubhouse Way) serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as it is defined below 
and subject to the conditions set forth below. 

Section 1.  Patterson Hill Road (the “Road”) is a private road located in the Village of 
Somesville off State Route 102, approximately 1,800 feet in length, including a cul-
de-sac.  The owners of the Road have offered voluntarily to transfer their interests in 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 19 

the Road to the Town without claim for damages, pursuant to a deed that the said 
owners have filed with the municipal officers.  The Town shall accept the Road as a 
Public Road in conformance with the Town’s Public Road Acceptance Ordinance (the 
“Ordinance”) as last amended at the May 8, 2018, annual Town meeting, provided 
that all conditions of the Ordinance to be met for a private road to become a public 
road have been met to the satisfaction of the Board of Selectmen as determined at a 
meeting of said Board on or before April 30, 2024.  Said conditions include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 

First, the said owners shall deliver their deed to the Town, duly executed and in 
proper form for recording, conveying in fee simple, without condition, exception, 
or reservation, the full title to the land underlying the Road, being a strip of land 
50 feet in width or greater, as laid out in the said subdivision.  Notwithstanding the 
delivery of said deed, the deed shall not be deemed to have been accepted until 
and unless the Board of Selectmen has determined that all of the said conditions 
have been met, as provided above.  The cost of preparing, executing, and 
delivering said deed shall be paid by the said owners. 

Second, the said owners shall have provided to the Town Manager, on or before 
April 30, 2024, evidence of good title to the Road, as set forth in item “First” 
above, allowing use of the Road as a Public Road.  Such evidence shall be in the 
form of a commitment for title insurance insuring the Town of the said condition of 
the title to the Road and the underlying land, issued by a title insurer satisfactory 
to the Town Manager and at a satisfactory premium.  The cost of obtaining such 
commitment shall be paid by the said owners.  

Third, the Town Manager shall have been able to obtain a letter from an attorney 
satisfactory to the Town Manager, certifying that said commitment for title 
insurance is sufficient to protect the Town’s interests.  

Section 2.  The Board of Selectmen or its designee is authorized to execute and 
undertake all documents and actions necessary or convenient to facilitate the transfer 
of ownership of the Road to become a Public Road as set forth in this Article. 

Section 3.  The acceptance of the Road shall occur and be effective only when the 
Board of Selectmen has made the determination of satisfactory completion of all 
conditions, as set forth above.  Said determination may be made at any date on or 
before April 20, 2024.  See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept the existing private 
sanitary sewer collection and conveyance system serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as 
the same is defined below and subject to the conditions and requirements set forth below. 

Section 1.  Patterson Hill Subdivision is served by an existing private sanitary sewer 
collection and conveyance system (the “Sewer System”) located in Patterson Hill 
Road, Clubhouse Way, and State Route 102, all in the Village of Somesville, 
including approximately 1,800 feet in length of private gravity sewer pipe, one private 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 20 

sanitary sewer duplex submersible pump station, and one private pressure pipe 
approximately 250 feet in length, and not including any building sewers.  The owners 
of the Sewer System have requested the Town to assume ownership and associated 
future maintenance and repair of the Sewer System.  The Town shall accept the 
Sewer System, making it a public Sewer System, in accordance with the Town’s 
Sewer Ordinance, last amended May 3, 2022, provided that said assumption of 
ownership shall be conditioned upon the said owners (a) conveying the Sewer 
System to the Town by satisfactory agreements or other documents and (b) 
furnishing, installing, and bearing all costs associated with the completion of the 
following requirements and improvements to the Sewer System with all work to be 
conducted at mutually agreed upon times between Town staff and Patterson Hill 
subdivision representatives: 

 
1. Ensure that the pump set-up is a duplex pump station with lead and lag pumps. 
2. Slide the two pumps in the pump station up the rails to the surface to provide 

Town staff the ability to inspect them and to gather information off the metal 
plates typically found on such pumps. 

3. Attempt to determine design flows, flow rates, and power needs of the pumps. 
4. Operate each pump independently from the other and also in high flow conditions 

when both pumps are operating. 
5. Inspect the concrete wet well for any structural damage such as cracks. 
6. Provide an easement from Patterson Hill Road along Clubhouse Way to and 

around the pump station to provide access for Town staff on foot and with 
vehicles ranging in size from small automobiles to large vacuum trucks (the size 
of a large concrete mixer truck) for inspections, maintenance, and upgrades. 

7. Identify the location of the pressure pipe located between the pump station and 
its discharge point in the gravity sewer in the street and, if at any point the 
pressure pipe varies from the previously described easement from Patterson Hill 
Road along Clubhouse Way to and around the pump station described above, 
the location of this variance in pressure pipe location is to be included in said 
easement. 

8. Replacement/repair of the existing fifteen sanitary manhole chimneys. 
9. Furnish and install a Zetron alarm at the pump station compatible with those in 

use at other pump stations throughout the Town.  
 

Section 2.  The Board of Selectmen or its designee is authorized to execute and 
undertake all documents and actions necessary or convenient to facilitate the 
transfers of ownership and operation set forth in this Article. 
 
Section 3.  The acceptance of the Sewer System shall occur and be effective only 
when all conditions and requirements, as set forth above, have been met to the 
satisfaction of the Board of Selectmen as determined at a meeting of said Board on 
or before April 30, 2025.   See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 21 

 
 

Fiscal Policy 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will amend the policy 
adopted March 1986 and amended May 4, 2010 and May 3, 2016 and entitled Town of 
Mount Desert Investment Policy as described and deleted through strikethrough markings.  
See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to establish a 
new Debt Service Operating Reserve Account. The Selectboard shall be authorized to use 
funds appropriated to the Debt Service Operating Reserve Account to meet the goals of 
minimizing year to year fluctuations in debt service expense and utilizing pro-rata allocation 
of net interest/dividends within the Town’s reserve investment portfolio to subsidize future 
debt service payments. Said reserve may not be used for debt service attributable to 
enterprise fund(s). 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the 
balance held in the Police Training Cost Reserve account 4040100-24405 to the Police 
Capital Improvement Reserve account 4040100-24405.  
 
Explanatory Note: Police training went to a fully integrated system with BHPD in 2020. 
The balance of the Police Training Cost Reserve as of January 30, 2023 is $66,793.51. 
The actual transfer amount will differ based on subsequent pro-rata allocation of 
portfolio performance. 
 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the 
balance held in the Assessor Capital Improvement Reserve account 4020500-24206 to the 
Assessor Revaluation Reserve account 4020600-24207.  
 
Explanatory Note: The Vision Server was the only asset assigned to the Assessment 
Capital Improvement Reserve, which is no longer needed due to cloud hosted 
service. The balance of the Assessment Capital Improvement Reserve as of January 
30, 2023 is $8,543.63. The actual transfer amount will differ based on subsequent pro-
rata allocation of portfolio performance.  
 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 22 

Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $50,000.00 to pay for 
professional technical services including, but not necessarily limited to, topographical survey, 
design, permitting, and, bidding services for  improvements to portions of the Town's sidewalks 
and curbing, with all sidewalk locations totaling approximately 4,160 feet and collectively 
referred to as (the “Project”); and further to authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute 
any and all contracts and documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to 
issue the bond or note of the Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the Project.  Said 
improvements shall include the following segments:  See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) for maps 
showing the proposed Project area. 

• in the Village of Somesville on the easterly side of State Route 102/Main Street across 
from the funeral home between the Masonic Hall and the Somesville Union Meeting 
House, a distance of approximately 800 feet and, 

• in the Village of Northeast Harbor on the southerly side of Neighborhood Road from its 
intersection with Manchester Road to its intersection with Maple Lane, a distance of 
approximately 1,650 feet and; 

• in the Village of Northeast Harbor on the southerly side of Sea Street beginning at the 
westerly end of the sidewalk in front of the Town office and extending easterly down the 
hill to, and ending at, Harbor Drive, a distance of approximately 350 feet and; 

• in the Village of Seal Harbor on the westerly side of State Route 3/Main Street, 
beginning approximately 20 feet southerly of the entrance to the Seal Harbor 
wastewater treatment plant continuing southerly a distance of 85 feet across and in 
front of the Acadia Outdoor Center to a point approximately 20 feet northerly of the 
existing sidewalk in front of the Naturalists Notebook for a total length of improvements 
of 85 feet and; 

• in the Village of Seal Harbor on the southerly side (the ocean side) of State Route 
3/Peabody Drive, beginning at the paved access point to the Seal Harbor beach from 
State Route 3/Peabody Drive located across from the Town’s public parking lot, then 
extending easterly along State Route 3/Peabody Drive a distance of approximately 450 
feet then turning southerly onto Steamboat Wharf Road and continuing southerly a 
distance of approximately 885 feet, for a total distance of 1,275 feet ending at or near 
the northerly end of the existing wooden boardwalk located across from the Somesville 
Library. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/2/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 50,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 17,825,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 23 

Principal $ 50,000.00 
Interest $ 26,462.33 
Total Debt Service $ 76,462.33 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $210,000.00 to pay for professional 
technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily limited to, site survey, design, 
bidding, and construction services for renovations of the two (2) existing Town owned tennis 
and pickleball courts (the Courts) with said renovation to provide two fully functional tennis and 
pickleball courts; and further to authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all 
contracts and documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond 
or note of the Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the renovation Project.  See 
Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) for a map showing the proposed Project area. 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/2/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 210,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 17,985,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 210,000.00 
Interest $ 111,141.78 
Total Debt Service $ 321,141.78 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 24 

 
____________________________________ 

Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 
 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $780,000 to pay for professional, 
technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily limited to, topographical 
survey, design, permitting, bidding services, and construction for improvements to three (3) 
existing Town-owned parking lots (Project), and further to authorize the Board of Selectmen or 
its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any and all things 
necessary or convenient to accomplish the Project. Two of the three parking lots are identified 
as (1) the paved Town of Cranberry Isles Leased Lot southerly of the Town office building and 
(2) the paved Town Office Lower Level Parking Lot adjacent to the police and fire departments, 
as to which two said parking lots said improvements shall include, but not necessarily be limited 
to, reclaiming existing paved surfaces, replacing the existing traffic control islands with new 
ones, installing new LED dark-sky compliant lighting, and constructing surface water drainage 
improvements. The third said parking lot is identified as (3) the gravel parking lot located in the 
Village of Seal Harbor accessed off Route 3/Main Street northerly of the access driveway to the 
Seal Harbor wastewater treatment plant, as to which third said parking lot said improvements 
shall include removing existing soil material from the entire footprint of the lot and replacing it 
with new soil material used in roadway and parking lot construction, drainage improvements, 
and lighting. In all three of said parking lots, said improvements shall include the construction of 
new base and surface layers of bituminous concrete (pavement) and other associated work 
typically recognized by the industry to complete the intent of the Project; and further to authorize 
the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any 
and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the Town, which may be 
callable, and to accomplish the Project.  See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) for maps showing the 
proposed Project areas. 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/2/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 780,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,555,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 780,000.00 
Interest $ 412,812.33 
Total Debt Service $ 1,192,812.33 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 25 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $900,000.00 to pay for professional, 
technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily limited to, topographical 
survey, design, permitting, bidding services, and construction of the relocation of a portion of 
the Town’s existing sanitary sewer infrastructure consisting of approximately 400-feet of 
sanitary sewer pipe, manholes, and associated appurtenances to complete the relocation work 
(Project) in general conformance with industry standards for such work, and further to authorize 
the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any 
and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the Town, which may be 
callable, and to accomplish the Project. Said work is located in the Village of Somesville within 
the Maine Department of Transportation’s (MDOT) right-of-way of State Route 3/198, and said 
relocation shall be in accordance with the MDOT requirement to do so, at the Town’s expense, 
all in conformance with Section 13 of the MDOT Utility Accommodation Rules (17-229 CMR 
Chapter 210) (Rules) covering Bridges and Other Highway Structures, with said Rules stating 
that if there is a conflict between the location of infrastructure the Town was previously 
authorized by the MDOT to construct, and did construct and the anticipated construction of new 
infrastructure by the MDOT in the Village of Somesville, specifically replacing the existing bridge 
located in State Route 3/198 that conveys various modes of traffic across Kitteredge Brook 
including vehicular, cycling, and foot traffic, with a new bridge in the same general location of 
the existing bridge, then the previously authorized infrastructure must be relocated at the 
Town’s expense. Said bridge replacement construction activities are tentatively scheduled to 
begin in 2023-2024, but if said bridge replacement construction activities are delayed, then the 
Project described in this Article shall also be delayed. See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) for a 
map showing the proposed Project areas. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/3/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 900,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,675,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 26 

 
Principal $ 900,000.00 
Interest $ 476,321.92 
Total Debt Service $ 1,376,321.92 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $360,000.00 to finance construction 
contract administration, inspection, and construction services associated with drainage 
improvements to the Beech Hill Cross Road (the Road) in the general area where Denning’s 
Brook crosses under Beech Hill Cross Road, said improvements to be in conformance with the 
Maine Department of Environmental  Protection StreamSmart program requirements and with 
said repairs to include, but not necessarily be limited to, replacing two corroded metal pipes with 
a concrete box culvert; placing stone riprap for stabilization and erosion control on the 
embankments along both sides of the Road; erecting guardrails along the top of the 
embankments along both sides of the Road and, placing earthen fill, loam and seed in the area 
and other amenities and appurtenances required to complete the improvements; and further to 
authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and 
do any and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the Town, which 
may be callable, and to accomplish the Project.  See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) for a map 
showing the proposed Project areas. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/3/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 360,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,135,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 360,000.00 
Interest $ 190,528.77 
Total Debt Service $ 550,528.77 

 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 27 

3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $250,000.00 to finance construction 
related services, including but not necessarily limited to, construction contract administration, 
inspection, and construction services associated with improvements and repairs to 
approximately 200-lineal feet of erosion of the Seal Harbor beach shoreline eroded by a strong 
storm surge in 2020, said damaged area located in the northeasterly portion of the waters of 
Seal Harbor per se, and located in general, down over the embankment westerly of the 
Steamboat Wharf Road with said improvements and repairs to include, but not necessarily be 
limited to, placing geotextile, anchor boulders, stone riprap, earthen fill, loam and seed and 
other amenities and appurtenances required to complete the improvements and repairs; and 
further to authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and 
documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the 
Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the Project. See Appendix X (pgs.XX - XX) 
for a map showing the proposed Project areas. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/3/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 250,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,025,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 250,000.00 
Interest $ 132,311.64 
Total Debt Service $ 382,311.64 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 28 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

(If Articles X, XX and XXX are Approved in Total) 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under Town Meeting $2,550,000.00 
D. Articles X, XX, & XXX  TOTAL $20,325,385.11 
 

2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $2,550,000.00 
Interest  $1,349,578.77 
Total Debt Service $3,899,578.77 

 
 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates.  If the actual 
amount of the total debt service for the bond issue (or Amortization) varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and 
other funds (including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under the American 
Rescue Plan Act and similar legislation) received during the fiscal year 2023-2024 for Town 
purposes, provided that such additional funds do not require expenditure of local funds not 
previously appropriated. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 29 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve   
July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all 
unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest at an annual rate of 
8% (percent) per year.  (Tax Club members are exempt within the terms and conditions of 
the Town’s Tax Club Agreement.) 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) 
the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on the taxpayer’s 
estimated and actual tax obligation for current year property taxes (real estate and/or 
personal); (2) the Town agrees to waive interest on timely payments; (3) the Town 
authorizes the Tax Collector to accept payment of taxes prior to commitment of taxes; (4) the 
agreement automatically terminates if two consecutive payments are missed and the 
taxpayer thereupon becomes subject to the same due date and interest rate as other, 
nonparticipating taxpayers; (5) only taxpayers who are paid in full on their property tax 
obligations may participate; and (6) interested taxpayers shall apply annually for participation 
by the date shown on the application, date and application format to be determined by the 
Tax Collector. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-
payment of property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be 
committed in the subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the 
interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4% 
(percent) per year. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment 
Review, or Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, during the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the property tax 
commitment overlay. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 30 

Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, 
with a value of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or less under such terms and conditions 
as it deems advisable. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles 
obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants of the Town 
any land and/or buildings, including trailers, in lieu of payment of taxes except that the 
Selectmen have the power to authorize redemption.  Municipal Officers shall use the special 
sale process required by 36 M.R.S. § 943-C for qualifying homestead property if they choose 
to sell it to anyone other than the former owner(s).  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, 
under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

Municipal Revenue 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer 
Seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) from the Undesignated Fund 
Balance Account #100-38300 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to transfer up to two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) from the 
Capital Gains Reserve Account #400-24202 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment. The 
exact amount, as limited by the aforementioned maximum value, shall be determined by the 
Selectboard’s timely assessment of current and expected market conditions.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 31 

 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and 
miscellaneous sources for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 

 
Selectboard recommends  $1,965,157.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

Municipal Appropriations 
 

Explanatory note: articles XX, XX, and XX amend previously approved appropriations. 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 
overdraft that occurred in Public Works for the year ended June 30,2022, in the amount of 
$42,183.37. Said overage was primarily caused by expenditures in Department 515, Waste 
Management exceeding budgeted expectations by $48,215.62 and Department 520, 
Buildings & Grounds exceeding budgeted expectations by $18,125.51. The overdraft was 
charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance. Total appropriations for departments 501, 515, 
520, 525, and 530 Highways, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & 
Cemeteries, and Environmental Sustainability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were 
$2,729,726 and total expenditures recognized in said fiscal year amount to $2,771,909.37. 
 
Explanatory Note:  Waste Management negative budget variance The Waste 
Management division of Public Works exceeded its budget of $594,675 by $48,215.62. This 
amount is the result of some budget lines being overspent and some being underspent. The 
primary items that resulted in the overdraft included: 

• the increase in volume of trash, bulky waste, metals, construction demolition debris, 
waste wood, green wood, etc. that was delivered to the EMR transfer station in 
Southwest Harbor where the total costs exceeded the budgeted amount of $230,000 
by $28,987 for a total cost of $258,987 and, 

• the resultant increase in volume of trash being delivered to the PERC facility when it 
was operational or to the Juniper Ridge Landfill in Old Town when PERC was 
closed due to unforeseen maintenance, tipping floor fires, inability to handle the 
volume of trash being delivered to them, where the total costs exceeded the 
budgeted amount of $132,500 by $20,789.58 for a total cost of $153,289.58 with 
both sites being used due to the waste processing facility in Hampden having been 
closed since May 2020 due to poor management and lack of funds to make 
improvements and,   

• reopening our recycling center on January 1, 2022, without having budgeted funds 
for doing so resulting in the expenditure of $16,349.41 unbudgeted funds. 

 
Explanatory Note:  Buildings & Grounds negative budget variance: The Buildings & 
Grounds division of Public Works exceeded its budget of $230,026 by $18,125.51. This 
amount is the result of some budget lines being overspent and some being underspent. The 
primary items that resulted in the overdraft included: 

• General maintenance and repairs and building maintenance and repairs exceeded 
budgeted expectations by $15,121.77, primarily due to sound dampening work that 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 32 

was done at the Visitors Center  
• accounting for various insurance, retirement, and payroll related costs exceeding 

their budgeted amounts by $6,279.95.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 
overdraft that occurred in Debt Service for the year ended June 30, 2022, in the amount of 
$2,381.09. The overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance. Said overdraft 
was caused by actual interest on certain debt service payments exceeding budgeted 
expectations. Total appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 for department 
801 “Debt Service” were $1,863,050 and total expenditures recognized in said fiscal year 
amount to $1,865,431.09. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to amend 
appropriations for department 801 Debt Service within the general operating fund for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 from $1,736,705 to $1,746,000. The difference in original 
and revised appropriations will be charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance, subject to 
actual variance(s) in audited activity. Such amendment in appropriations is necessitated 
primarily by the difference in interest expense budgeted for and actually incurred for Bond 
Series 2018 Road Projects. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government – Governing 
Body (Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planning 
Board, Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, Assessment, Code Enforcement, Unallocated 
Funds, Human Resources, Technology, and Contracted Municipal and Community Oriented 
Services for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 

Gov. Body (Bd of Selectmen):  $36,770.00 Registrar: $2,500.00 
Town Clerk: $139,940.00 Planning Board: $52,263.00 
Elections: $14,500.00 Treasurer: $94,179.00 
Finance: $201,152.00 Assessment: $143,212.00 
Tax Collector: $19,520.00 Unallocated: $113,000.00 
Code Enforcement: $212,484.00 Technology: $220,887.00 
Human Resources: $55,400.00 CMCOS:  $143,000.00 
Town Management: $432,064.00  
  

 
Selectboard recommends  $1,880,871.00 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 33 

Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2023 – 2024 
Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $5,000.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2023 – 2024 
Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends $222,066.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 
 
Selectboard recommends $11,250.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407, and 408 Public Safety – Police, 
Shellfish, Animal Control, and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2023 – 2024 Town 
Budget. 
 

Police: $1,166,478.00     Animal Control: $4,980.00   
Shellfish: $3,403.00     Communications: $456,295.00   

 
 
Selectboard recommends  $1,631,156.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, 
Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 

Fire: $2,267,334.00   Hydrants: $273,500.00   Emergency Management: $1,000.00 
 
Selectboard recommends  $2,541,834.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 34 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste 
Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental 
Sustainability for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.   
 

Roads: $2,004,068.00 Buildings/Grounds: $278,510.00 
Parks/Cemeteries: $60,202.00 Waste Management: $743,619.00 

Environmental Sustainability:  $35,750.00 
 
Selectboard recommends  $3,122,149.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 
2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 

Sewer Capital:  $ 0.00 Sewer Operation:  $745,157.00  
 

Wastewater Treatment 
Northeast Harbor Plant: $197,850.00 Somesville Plant:  $79,000.00 
Seal Harbor Plant: $152,258.00 Otter Creek Pmp Station: $35,500.00 

 
Selectboard recommends  $1,209,765.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) 
for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $5,900.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2023 – 
2024 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $10,000.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.  
 
Board of Selectmen recommends  $2,203,989.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $2,203,989.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 35 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 851 Third Party Request Agencies for the 2023 – 2024 
Town Budget:  Village Organizations, Recreation, and Public/Social Service Agencies, and 
Historical/Museums. 
 

Village Organizations: $65,000.00 Public/Social Service Agencies: $119,250.00 
Recreation: $5,000.00 Historical/Museums: $21,000.00 
 

Selectboard recommends  $210,750.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2023 – 
2024 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $1,084,314.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
Written Ballot required for Article xx 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to increase 
the property tax levy limit by $ 587,775.00.  See Appendix XYZ (pg. XX). 
 
Explanation: The State Legislature passed a “tax reform” law known as LD#1. This bill 
created a maximum municipal tax levy based upon this year’s tax, plus an allowance for 
inflation and the Town’s tax base growth due to new construction.  However, LD#1 allows 
Mount Desert voters to increase that tax cap with the approval of a simple majority of the 
voters at Town Meeting.  The only requirement is that a secret vote must be taken by written 
ballot. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends  (passage)   (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

Marina Proprietary Fund 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 
Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget. 
 

Revenue: $852,080.00  Expense: $852,080.00 
 
Selectboard recommends ratification 
Warrant Committee makes no recommendation  
 
 
 
 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

  





STATE OF MAINE

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

BUREAU OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS

DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT

Legal Business Entity Applicant Name (corporation, LLC): Business Name (D/B/A):

c4”f%QLc:* Lk:36-C LLL -rL ov

Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Physical Location:

(\:&u\J’%- e\( o 2j, Lcs4
Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Mailing address,lf different:

Ov\’ /e/k (L £(

Mailing address, if different from DBA address: Email Address:

V\c-c UeAr Co
Telephone # Fax #: Business Telephone # Fax #:

xL°
3i0 }2)1 c3ç

Federal Tax Identification Number: Maine Seller Certificate # or Sales Tax #:

%3LH
W\

Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers Permit: Website address:

UL 2v obr pV\’\

1. New license or renewal of existing license? LI New

Renewal

Expected Start date:

Expiration Date: & -i v) zx,i.3

2. The dollar amount of gross income for the licensure period that will end on the expiration date above:

Food: Beer, Wine or Spirits: ZX & Guest Rooms:

3. Please indicate the type of alcoholic beverage to be sold: (check all that apply)

Lwlc4alt Liquor (beer) LV Wine L/irits

Application for an On-Premises License

All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Please print legibly.

Section I: Licensee/Applicant(s) Information;
Type of License and Status

Division Use Only

License No:

Class: By:

Deposit Date:

Amt. Deposited:

Payment Type:

OK with SOS: Yes fl No L

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 1 of I I



4. Indicate the type of license applying for: (choose only one)

D Restaurant fl Class A Restaurant/Lounge VClass A Lounge
(Class I, II, III, IV) (Class XI) (Class X)

D Hotel E Hotel — Food Optional El Bed & Breakfast
(Class I, II, III, IV) (Class I-A) (Class V)

LI GolfCourse (included optional licenses, please check ifapply) D Auxiliary LI Mobile Cart
(Class I, II, III, IV)

D Tavern El Other:

___________________________________

(Class IV)

LI Qualified Caterer D Self-Sponsored Events (Qualified Caterers Only)

Refer to Section Vfor the License Fee Schedule on page 9

5. Business records are located at the following address:

\ ‘ -

I .-

6. Is the licensee/applicant(s) citizens ofthe United States? EV Yes 0 No

7. is the licensee/applicant(s) a resident ofthe State ofMaine? /‘ Yes El No

NOTE: Applicants that are not citizens of the United States are required to file for the license as a

business entity.

8. Is license /applicant(s) a business entity like a corporation or limited liability company?

Yes D No If Yes, complete Section VII at the end of this application

9. For a licensee/applicant who is a business entity as noted in Section I, does any officer, director, member,
manager, shareholder or partner have in any way an interest, directly or indirectly, in their capacity in any
other business entity w7ich is a holder of a wholesaler license granted by the State of Maine?

D Yes El No

El Not applicable — licensee/applicant(s) is a sole proprietor

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 2 of ii



I 0. Is the licensee or applicant for a license receiving. directly or indirectly, any money, credit, thing of value,
endorsement ofcommercial paper, guarantee ofcredit or financial assistance ofany sort from any person or
entity within or without the State, if the person or entity is engaged, directly or indirectly, in the manufacture.
distribution, wholesale sale, storage or transportation of liquor.

E Yes No

If yes, please provide details:

______________________________________________________________

11. Do you own or have any interest in any another Maine Liquor License? E Yes No

If yes, please list license number, business name, and complete physical location address: (attach additional
pages as needed using the same format)

Name of Business License Number Complete Physical Address

I 2. List name, date of birth, place of birth for all applicants including any manager(s) employed by the
licensee/applicant. Provide maiden name, if married. (attach additional pages as needed using the same
format)

Full Name DOB Place of Birth-z 1

-—- — - -

L

( (;L\

Residence address on all the above for previous 5 years
Nanç -

Address: t- Wtk vtk• Ot24) WLE

çG\jL—%1 ___
L-0r ‘ ‘, (?4UA% Rt) J(A-y1 VVi

Name ‘ Address:
LA

Name Address:

Name Address:

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 3 of Ii



I 3. Will any law enforcement officer directly benefit financially from this license, if issued?

n Yes No

If Yes, provide name of law enforcement officer and department where employed:

14. Flas the licensee/applicant(s) ever been convi9ed ofany violation ofthe liquor laws in Maine or any State of

the United States? El Yes
WF

No

If Yes, please provide the Ibllowing information and attach additional pages as needed using the same
format.

Name: Date of Conviction:

_________________________

OFFense:

__________________________________________________________

Location:

_______________________________________________________

1)isposition:

_________________________________________________________—

-

I 5. Has the licensee/applicant(s) ever been convicted of any violation oC ay—l-aw, other than minor traffic

violations, in Maine or any State ofthe United States? LI Yes No

If Yes, please provide the following information and attach additional pages as needed using the same
format.

Name:

_____________________________________

Date of Conviction:

__________________________

Offense:

_______________________________________

Location:

_____________________________________

Disposition:

16. Has the licensee/applicant(s) formerly held a Maine liquor license? Yes D No

17. Does the licensee/applicant(s) own the premises? D Yes ZNo

If No, please provide the name and address of the owner:

c1
/

‘4

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 4 of 11



18. If you are applying for a liquor license for a Hotel or Bed & Breakfast, please provide the number of guest
rooms available:

_____________________

19. Please describe in detail the area(s) within the premises to be licensed. This description is in addition to the
diagram in Section VI. (Use additional pages as needed)

- 4-
V%jS

S

20. What is the distance from the premises to the nearest school, school dormitory, church, chapel or parish
house, measured from the main entrance ofthe premises to the main entrance ofthe school, school dormitory,
church, chapel or parish house by the ordinary course of travel?

Name: 6 -
N%A\f’4 f 6 .

jJQ

Distance: -‘-- -;-m\ .4

Section II: Signature of Applicant(s)

By signing this application, the licensee/applicant understands that false statements made on this application are
punishable by law. Knowingly supplying false information on this application is a Class D Offense under Maine’s
Criminal Code, punishable by confinement of up to one year, or by monetary fine of up to $2,000 or by both.

Please sign and date in blue ink.

Dated: I

Signature of Duly Authorized erson Signature of Duly Authorized Person

\J%

Printed Name Duly Authorized Person Printed Name of Duly Authorized Person

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 5 of Ii



Section III: For use by Municipal Officers and County Commissioners oniy

The undersigned hereby certifies that we have complied with the process outlined in 28-A M.R.S. §653 and
approve this on-premises liquor license application.

Dated:

___________________________________

Who is approving this application? 1 Municipal Officers of_______________________________________

El County Commissioners of____________________________ County

LI Please Note: The Municipal Officers or County Commissioners must confirm that the
records of Local Option Votes have been verified that allows this type of establishment to
be licensed by the Bureau for the type of alcohol to be sold for the appropriate days of the
week. Please check this box to indicate this verification was completed.

Signature of Officials Printed Name and Title

This Application will Expire 60 Days from the date of
Municipal or County Approval unless submitted to the Bureau

Included below is the section of Maine’s liquor laws regarding the approval process by the municipalities or the
county commissioners. This is provided as a courtesy only and may not reflect the law in effect at the time of
application. Please see

§653. Hearings; bureau review; appeal

1. Hearings. The municipal officers or, in the case ofunincorporated places, the county commissioners ofthe county
in which the unincorporated place is located, may hold a public hearing for the consideration of applications for new on-
premises licenses and applications for transfer oflocation ofexisting on-premises licenses. The municipal officers or county
commissioners may hold a public hearing for the consideration of requests for renewal of licenses, except that when an
applicant has held a license for the prior 5 years and a complaint has not been filed against the applicant within that time,
the applicant may request a waiver ofthe hearing.

A. The bureau shall prepare and supply application forms.

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 6 of ii



B. The municipal officers or the county commissioners, as the case may be, shall provide public notice ofany hearing
held under this section by causing a notice, at the applicants prepaid expense, stating the name and place of hearing, to
appear on at least 3 consecutive days before the date of hearing in a daily newspaper having general circulation in the
municipality where the premises are located or one week before the date of the hearing in a weekly newspaper having
general circulation in the municipality where the premises are located.

C. Ifthe municipal officers or the county commissioners, as the case may be, fail to take final action on an application
for a new on-premises license or transfer ofthe location ofan existing on-premises license within 60 days ofthe filing ofan
application, the application is deemed approved and ready for action by the bureau. For purposes ofthis paragraph, the date
of filing ofthe application is the date the application is received by the municipal officers or county commissioners. This
paragraph applies to all applications pending before municipal officers or county commissioners as ofthe effective date of
this paragraph as well as all applications filed on or after the effective date ofthis paragraph. This paragraph applies to an
existing on-premises license that has been extended pending renewal. The municipal officers or the county commissioners
shall take final action on an on-premises license that has been extended pending renewal within 120 days ofthe filing ofthe
application.

D.If an application is approved by the municipal officers or the county commissioners but the bureau finds, after
inspection ofthe premises and the records ofthe applicant, that the applicant does not qualify for the class oflicense applied
for, the bureau shall notify the applicant ofthat fact in writing. The bureau shall give the applicant 30 days to file an amended
application for the appropriate class of license, accompanied by any additional license fee, with the municipal officers or
county commissioners, as the case may be. Ifthe applicant fails to file an amended application within 30 days, the original
application must be denied by the bureau. The bureau shall notify the applicant in writing of its decision to deny the
application including the reasons for the denial and the rights ofappeal ofthe applicant.

2. Findings. In granting or denying an application, the municipal officers or the county commissioners shall indicate
the reasons for their decision and provide a copy to the applicant. A license may be denied on one or more ofthe following
grounds:

A.Conviction ofthe applicant ofany Class A, Class B or Class C crime;

B. Noncompliance ofthe licensed premises or its use with any local zoning ordinance or other land use ordinance not
directly related to liquor control;

C. Conditions of record such as waste disposal violations, health or safety violations or repeated parking or traffic
violations on or in the vicinity of the licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed
premises or other such conditions caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed premises that unreasonably
disturb, interfere with or affect the ability ofpersons or businesses residing or located in the vicinity ofthe licensed premises
to use their property in a reasonable manner;

D. Repeated incidents ofrecord ofbreaches ofthe peace, disorderly conduct, vandalism or other violations oflaw on
or in the vicinity ofthe licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed premises;

D-1. Failure to obtain, or comply with the provisions of, a permit for music, dancing or entertainment required by a
municipality or, in the case of an unincorporated place, the county commissioners;

E. A violation of any provision of this Title;

F. A determination by the municipal officers or county commissioners that the purpose of the application is to
circumvent the provisions of section 601; and

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 7 of ii



G.After September 1 , 2010, server training, in a program certified by the bureau and required by local ordinance, has
not been completed by individuals who serve alcoholic beverages.

3. Appeal to bureau. Any applicant aggrieved by the decision of the municipal officers or county commissioners
under this section may appeal to the bureau within 15 days ofthe receipt ofthe written decision ofthe municipal officers or
county commissioners. The bureau shall hold a public hearing in the city, town or unincorporated place where the premises
are situated. In acting on such an appeal, the bureau may consider all licensure requirements and findings referred to in
subsection 2.

A. Repealed

B. Ifthe decision appealed from is an application denial, the bureau may issue the license only if it finds by clear and
convincing evidence that the decision was withoutjustifiable cause.

4. Repealed

5. Appeal to District Court. Any person or governmental entity aggrieved by a bureau decision under this section
may appeal the decision to the District Court within 30 days ofreceipt ofthe written decision ofthe bureau.

An applicant who files an appeal or who has an appeal pending shall pay the annual license fee the applicant would
otherwise pay. Upon resolution ofthe appeal, ifan applicants license renewal is denied, the bureau shall refund the applicant
the prorated amount ofthe unused license fee.

Section IV: Terms and Conditions ofLicensure as an Establishment that sells liquor for on-premises
consumption in Maine

. The licensee/applicant(s) agrees to be bound by and comply with the laws, rules and
instructions promulgated by the Bureau.

. The licensee/applicant(s) agrees to maintain accurate records related to an on-premise license
as required by the law, rules and instructions promulgated or issued by the Bureau if a license
is issued as a result ofthis application.

I The licensee/applicant(s) authorizes the Bureau to obtain and examine all books, records and
tax returns pertaining to the business, for which this liquor license is requested, and also any
books, records and returns during the year in which any liquor license is in effect.

• Any change in the licensee’s/applicant’s licensed premises as defined in this application must
be approved by the Bureau in advance.

• All new applicants must apply to the Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (TTB) for
its Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers permit. See the TTB’s website at
https://wwwttb.gov/nrc/retail-beverage-alcohol-dealers for more information.

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 8 of 11



Section V: Fee Schedule

Filing fee required. In addition to the license fees listed below, a filing fee of$1O.OO must be included with all
applications.

Please note: For Licensees/Applicants in unorganized territories in Maine, the $10.00 filing fee must be paid
directly to County Treasurer. All applications received by the Bureau from licensees/applicants in unorganized
territories must submit proofofpayment was made to the County Treasurer together with the application.

Class of License Type of liquor/Establishments included Fee

Class I For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $ 900.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants: Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; Golf Courses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Vessels; Qualified
Caterers

Class I-A For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $1,100.00
This class includes only hotels that do not serve three meals a day.

Class II For the Sale of Spirits Only $ 550.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; Golf Courses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; and Vessels.

Class III For the Sale of Wine Only $ 220.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Vessels;
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class IV For the Sale of Malt Liquor Only $ 220.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Taverns;
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class III and IV For the Sale of Malt Liquor and Wine Only $ 440.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Vessels;
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class V For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $ 495.00
This class includes only a Club without catering privileges.

Class X For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $2,200.00
This class includes only a Class A Lounge

Class XI For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $1,500.00
This class includes only a Restaurant Lounge

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 9 of Ii



Section VI Premises Floor Plan

In an effort to clearly define your license premise and the areas that consumption and storage ofliquor authorized
by your license type is allowed, the Bureau requires all applications to include a diagram of the premise to be
licensed.

Diagrams should be submitted on this form and should be as accurate as possible. Be sure to label the following
areas: entrances, office area, coolers, storage areas, display cases, shelves, restroom, point of sale area, area for
on-premise consumption, dining rooms, event/function rooms, lounges, outside area/decks or any other areas on
the premise that you are requesting approval. Attached an additional page as needed to fully describe the premise.

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page lOofil



Section VII: Required Additional Information for a Licensee/Applicant for an On-Premises
Liquor License Who are Legal Business Entities

Questions I to 4 ofthis part ofthe application must match information in Section I ofthe application above and
match the information on file with the Maine Secretary of State’s office. If you have questions regarding your
legal entity name or DBA, please call the Secretary of State’s office at (207) 624-7752.

All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Please print legibly.

I . Exact legal name: k.— . ,, LL. C

2. Doing Business As, ifany:

3. Date of filing with Secretary of State:
)

/

-o LD State in which you are formed:

4. If not a Maine business entity, date on which you were authorized to transact business in the State of Maine:

5. List the name and addresses for previous 5 years, birth dates, titles of officers, directors, managers, members
or partners and the percentage ownership any person listed: (attached additional pages as needed)

Percentage
Date of of

Name Address (5 Yeirs) Birth Title Ownershp
7 A.

-

3
A&J’

1

(Ownership in non-publicly traded companies must add up to 100%.)

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page Ii of ii



;t

Kimball Terrace Inn
Northeast Harbor, ME

I ‘‘
1

I

ased

17

EXHIBif

‘Al



BLI

emont Planning Board will hold a public
iiary 28, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. to take Public
pplication from Archie’s Lobster located at
to renovate a building for prep kitchen and

iat meeting, the Planning Board may act to
vith conditions or deny the application. The
tax Map 14 Lot 6 in the Harbor Zone. The
L be reviewed at Tremont Town Office.

t Select Board will hold a public hearing at 5:00
ch 6, 2022 in The Harvey Kelley Meeting Room
20 Harbor Drive, Bass Harbor, Maine.

Select Board will take public comment on the
)wnership of the Community Building from the
iont to the Tremont Consolidated School.

to submit?
e your Public Notices
tact us by calling
37-2576 or emailing:

Special Amusement Permit application for Class E — Dancing with any of the
above or accompanied by music produced by radio or other mechanical device
-Single instrumentalist, single instrumentalist and vocalist, one or more vocalists
and/or instrumentalist with mechanical amplification.

Thursday, February 23, 2023

PAGE
FOR ThOUGHTS

AND OPINIONS

FROM

17Lfl. (207) 667-2576 / Mount Desert Islander (207) 288-0556

‘ICES
•1

Public Hearing - Special Amusement Permit

The Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing at its regular meeting which
begins at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 6, 2023 in the Location: Zoom Meeting- see
Board of Selectmen Meeting for connection details for the consideration of:

Mount Desert

Islander
PUBLIC

NOTICES
Worth Noticing

Northeast Lobster Co., LLC d/b/a The Nor’easter Pound & Market

. .

Town of
.

MOUNT DESERT

PUBLIC HEARINGS LEGAL NOTICE
MARCH 6, 2023

Notice is hereby given that the Town of Mount Desert Board of Selectmen
will hold a public hearing at its regular meeting beginning 6:30 p.m.,

Monday, M.rch 6, 2023 in the Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street,
Northeast Harbor, and via Zoom Meeting to hear public comment on

proposed Warrant Articles regarding appropriation of funds, ordinances,
and ordinance amendments for the May 1 & 2, 2023 Annual Town

Meeting. Members of the public are invited to attend and make comment.

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting
if you would rather not attend in person. You can call in through any of
the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.
You will need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting.
Details will be posted on the BOS agenda and on the Town’s website

calendar. https://www.mtdesert.org/

.

Town of
—

MOUNT DESERT

is@ellsworLhamerican.com

Public Hearing Legal Notice

Notice of a public hearing for the proposed amendments to the
Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance and Land Use Map

You are hereby notified, under the requirements of the Mount Desert Land Use
Zoning Ordinance Section 2.7, that the Mount Desert Planning Board will hold
a public hearing on proposed amendments to the Towns Land Use Zoning Ordi
nance and Land Use Map.

The public hearing will be held on March 8, 2023, at 6:05PM, In-Person, at
the Town Hall Meeting Room, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (Masks May Be
Required) and via zoom. The Zoom Link, Meeting ID, Password, and Dial-in
informaion are listed below.

Copies of the full text of the proposed amendments can be found at the Town
Office, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor, Maine. Proposed amendments will also
be available on the Town website at www.mtdesert.org

Questions or comments can be directed to Noel Musson, The Musson Group. He
can be reached at (207) 244-1161, or by email to noel@themussongroup.com

You can call inthrough any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a
computer via the web link. You will need to enter the meeting ID to get access
to the meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting

,:I;/2Rcnztu

CHECK OUT

THE LETTERS

) EL-..—, 4
VZTZzO9 YOUR NEIGHBORS



 

To: Board of Selectmen 
From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 
Re: Consider authorizing up to $18,000 to be spent from the Buildings & Grounds Reserve account 

4055200-24571 with a current balance of $30,759.68 as of January 31, 2023 to fund a feasibility 
study of building a salt/sand building 

Date: March 2, 2023 

 
The Town currently utilizes space at the Town municipal garage on Sargent Drive to store quantities of 
salt/sand for use in de-icing and improving traction on roadways as part of snow removal operations. 
The current storage is accomplished by stockpiling the sand in a large pile between the Town municipal 
garage and the fuel pump and storing the sand in a small building adjacent to the sand. This type of 
open-air stockpiling leaves the sand pile exposed to the elements creating loss of material. Open air 
storage also increases the time required to break up large chunks. Offloading to and loading from a 
single large pile is also a less than optimal method for sand to and from transport vehicles. The existing 
salt building is also more than 50 years old. 

Public Works is recommending the use of $18,000 from the Buildings & Grounds Reserve (B&G Reserve) 
account to fund a feasibility study to consider alternatives to the current salt/sand storage methods. The 
current balance of the B&G Reserve is $30,759.68 as of January 31, 2023. If allocated, the money will be 
used to pay for professional and technical services for preparation of a feasibility study related to siting 
a new salt/sand building on the same Town property currently used for the Town municipal garage. 
Professional and technical services may include, but not necessarily be limited to, performance of site 
surveys, assessment of permitting requirements, concept design, and development of opinions of 
probable cost. 

Implementation of this feasibility study will provide Public Works and the Board of Selectmen an 
opportunity to consider options to improve the manner in which the Town stores salt/sand and inform 
any further action. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 
Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Memorandum 



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

SC
 A

pp
ro

ve
d

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

3/
1/

20
23

Ac
tu

al
C

ur
re

nt
   

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

 
R

ec
ei

pt
s

B
ud

ge
t

R
ec

ei
pt

s
B

ud
ge

t
D

iff
er

en
ce

D
iff

er
en

ce
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 

00
00

-0
00

0-
45

00
00

C
ar

ry
ov

er
76

9,
83

4
   

   
   

   
  

53
3,

47
6

   
   

   
  

88
5,

85
5

   
   

   
   

56
5,

84
2

   
   

   
   

 
32

,3
67

   
   

   
   

  
6.

07
%

Sa
vi

ng
 $

15
0K

R
ev

en
ue

s
00

00
-0

00
0-

41
31

10
Tu

iti
on

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

 
00

00
-0

00
0-

41
99

08
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

11
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

00
00

-0
00

0-
45

20
00

Fu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 fr

om
 R

es
er

ve
s

12
7,

65
0

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

00
00

-0
00

0-
43

15
00

N
BC

T 
St

ip
en

d 
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-0

00
0-

43
12

10
St

at
e 

Ag
en

cy
 C

lie
nt

 R
ev

en
ue

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

00
00

-0
00

0-
43

11
10

St
at

e 
Su

bs
id

y
31

8,
75

1
   

   
   

   
  

29
0,

00
0

   
   

   
  

29
9,

02
5

   
   

   
   

26
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
(3

0,
00

0)
   

   
   

   
-1

0.
34

%
Pr

el
im

. P
rin

to
ut

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
00

00
-0

00
0-

41
21

30
To

w
n 

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n

3,
85

8,
79

0
   

   
   

  
3,

82
8,

45
6

   
   

  
3,

82
8,

45
6

   
   

   
4,

37
9,

14
2

   
   

   
 

55
0,

68
5

   
   

   
   

14
.3

8%
w

o 
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
Ar

tic
le

s 
88

 &
 9

0
EP

S 
&

 A
dd

iti
on

a
 

 
 

 
4,

37
9,

14
2

$ 
   

   
 

00
00

-0
00

0-
41

21
20

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 A
pp

ro
pr

.
30

1,
39

7
   

   
   

   
  

28
5,

15
4

   
   

   
  

28
5,

15
4

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
85

,1
54

)
   

   
   

 
-1

00
.0

0%
Ar

tic
le

 8
9

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 A
pp

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

5,
39

3,
42

2
   

   
   

  
4,

93
7,

08
6

   
   

  
5,

29
8,

49
0

   
   

   
5,

20
4,

98
4

   
   

   
 

26
7,

89
8

   
   

   
   

5.
43

%

To
ta

l T
ow

n 
Ap

pr
op

ria
tio

n 
4,

37
9,

14
2

$ 
   

26
5,

53
1

$ 
   

  
6.

45
%

In
cl

ud
in

g 
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 

$1
1.

28
D

iff
 in

 T
ax

es
/1

00
,0

00
 V

al
u.

  w
 D

eb
t S

vc

Pr
oj

. B
al

an
ce

6/
30

/2
02

3

R
es

er
ve

s:
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
13

2,
58

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

Bu
s

40
,5

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Sp

ec
ia

l E
du

ca
tio

n
83

,4
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l S
al

ar
ie

s 
& 

Be
ne

fit
s

3,
44

5,
01

6
$ 

  
3,

55
8,

26
7

$ 
   

%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

69
.7

8%
68

.3
6%



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

 
Ac

tu
al

C
ur

re
nt

   
An

tic
ip

at
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

  
$

%
R

eg
ul

ar
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
D

iff
er

en
ce

D
iff

er
en

ce
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n
R

eg
ul

ar
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
11

00
-1

00
0-

51
01

00
Te

ac
he

r's
 S

al
ar

ie
s:

  3
-8

90
5,

20
3

   
   

   
   

  
86

5,
06

9
   

   
   

  
89

5,
23

3
   

   
   

   
95

1,
54

6
   

   
   

   
 

86
,4

77
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0%
 

N
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

Ag
re

em
en

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

52
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

2,
00

0)
   

   
   

   
-1

00
.0

0%
11

00
-1

00
0-

51
02

00
Ed

. T
ec

h.
 S

al
ar

ie
s/

R
TI

30
,0

24
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

3,
34

3
   

   
   

  
12

0,
05

9
   

   
   

   
13

1,
29

3
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,0

50
)

   
   

   
   

  
-1

.5
4%

2.
5 

Ed
. T

ec
hs

 m
in

us
 T

itl
e 

O
ne

 G
ra

nt
 &

 R
TI

11
00

-1
00

0-
51

23
00

Su
bs

tit
ut

es
5,

07
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
,5

00
   

   
   

   
 

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

28
,1

25
   

   
   

   
   

5,
62

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
0%

$1
25

/d
ay

 
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- 3

-8
 T

ea
ch

er
s

47
,9

65
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

,8
84

   
   

   
   

 
47

,3
58

   
   

   
   

  
56

,3
32

   
   

   
   

   
10

,4
48

   
   

   
   

  
22

.7
7%

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

02
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- E
d.

 T
ec

hs
2,

00
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

7,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

.8
6%

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

03
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- S
ub

s
38

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
57

5
   

   
   

   
   

2,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

.5
1%

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

11
00

BC
/B

S:
 T

ch
rs

. 3
-8

20
5,

98
1

   
   

   
   

  
20

1,
88

9
   

   
   

  
19

7,
99

7
   

   
   

   
21

5,
79

7
   

   
   

   
 

13
,9

08
   

   
   

   
  

6.
89

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

12
00

BC
/B

S:
 E

d.
 T

ec
hs

.
10

,5
26

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
,8

46
   

   
   

   
 

29
,3

99
   

   
   

   
  

31
,5

89
   

   
   

   
   

(1
3,

25
7)

   
   

   
   

-2
9.

56
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
11

01
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e 
& 

Fe
es

20
,6

24
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
14

,8
80

   
   

   
   

  
14

,8
80

   
   

   
   

   
(3

,1
20

)
   

   
   

   
  

-1
7.

33
%

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

51
00

Tu
iti

on
 R

ei
m

b.
: T

ax
ab

le
4,

36
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

(5
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-2

5.
00

%
gr

ad
ua

te
 c

ou
rs

es
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
51

01
Tu

iti
on

 R
ei

m
b.

: N
on

-T
ax

.
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
62

00
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
1,

72
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

71
00

W
or

ke
r's

 C
om

p.
 In

su
ra

nc
e

23
,9

29
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
26

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
28

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
ba

se
d 

on
 p

ay
ro

ll 
& 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
m

od
ifi

er
11

00
-2

19
0-

53
40

00
Pr

of
. S

vc
s.

: 5
04

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

11
00

-1
00

0-
54

30
00

C
on

tr.
 S

vc
s.

: E
qu

ip
. R

ep
ai

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
11

00
-1

00
0-

55
80

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l: 
 3

-8
86

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

11
00

-1
00

0-
56

10
00

Te
ac

hi
ng

 S
up

pl
ie

s:
  3

-8
30

,5
96

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
,5

00
   

   
   

   
 

32
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

33
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

54
%

 
11

00
-1

00
0-

56
40

00
Te

xt
bo

ok
s,

 T
ra

de
 B

ks
:  

3-
8

1,
85

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
6,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
in

cl
ud

es
 b

oo
k 

ce
nt

er
 m

on
ey

11
00

-1
00

0-
56

40
01

Pr
of

. B
oo

ks
 &

 P
er

io
di

ca
ls

:  
3-

8
15

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

11
00

-1
00

0-
57

30
00

R
ep

la
ce

/P
ur

ch
 o

f E
qu

ip
.: 

 3
-8

2,
33

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
in

cl
ud

es
 fu

rn
itu

re
 m

on
ey

11
00

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s,
 F

ee
s,

 C
on

f.:
  3

-8
1,

13
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

11
00

-1
00

0-
58

90
05

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ca
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

s
10

,2
02

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

6,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

.9
0%

Ar
ts

 W
ee

k/
SE

A 
C

am
p

11
00

-1
00

0-
59

00
00

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

(P
er

so
nn

el
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
14

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
14

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

11
20

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

Te
ac

he
r S

al
: K

-2
31

6,
09

5
   

   
   

   
  

31
4,

09
5

   
   

   
  

24
6,

07
9

   
   

   
   

26
1,

44
5

   
   

   
   

 
(5

2,
65

0)
   

   
   

   
-1

6.
76

%
3 

Tc
hr

s 
-K

-2
 p

lu
s 

Li
te

ra
cy

 S
pe

c.
11

20
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- K

-2
 T

ea
ch

er
s

16
,7

35
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

,6
16

   
   

   
   

 
13

,0
18

   
   

   
   

  
15

,4
78

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,1
38

)
   

   
   

   
  

-6
.8

5%
11

20
-1

00
0-

52
11

00
BC

/B
S:

 K
-2

 T
ea

ch
er

s
53

,1
85

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
,6

48
   

   
   

   
 

55
,1

56
   

   
   

   
  

60
,1

71
   

   
   

   
   

(1
2,

47
7)

   
   

   
   

-1
7.

17
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
53

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

11
20

-1
00

0-
55

80
00

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l: 

 K
-2

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
11

20
-1

00
0-

56
10

00
Te

ac
hi

ng
 S

up
pl

ie
s:

  K
-2

6,
97

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
9,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

11
20

-1
00

0-
56

40
00

Te
xt

bo
ok

s,
 T

ra
de

 B
ks

:  
K-

2
36

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

in
cl

ud
es

 b
oo

k 
ce

nt
er

 m
on

ey
11

20
-1

00
0-

56
40

01
Pr

of
. B

oo
ks

 &
 P

er
io

di
ca

ls
:  

K-
2

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
11

20
-1

00
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

 o
f E

qu
ip

.: 
 K

-2
1,

21
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

70
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

11
20

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s,
 F

ee
s,

 C
on

f.:
  K

-2
64

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
27

5
   

   
   

   
   

1,
27

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

27
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

 
Ac

tu
al

C
ur

re
nt

   
An

tic
ip

at
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

  
$

%
R

eg
ul

ar
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
D

iff
er

en
ce

D
iff

er
en

ce
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n

11
21

-1
00

0-
58

90
00

Ea
rly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

C
en

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
9,

00
0)

   
   

   
   

-1
00

.0
0%

C
os

t o
f c

re
at

in
g 

ea
rly

 c
hi

ld
ho

od
 le

ar
ni

ng
 c

en
te

r
11

21
-1

00
0-

51
01

00
Te

ac
he

r S
al

: P
re

-K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
48

,1
55

   
   

   
   

  
50

,0
98

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
98

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
I P

re
-K

 T
ch

r
11

21
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- P

re
-K

 T
ea

ch
er

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

54
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
96

6
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

96
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

#D
IV

/0
!

11
21

-1
00

0-
52

11
00

BC
/B

S:
 P

re
-K

 T
ea

ch
er

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

,8
99

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
89

   
   

   
   

   
24

,0
89

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
11

21
-1

00
0-

51
02

00
Ed

. T
ec

h.
 S

al
ar

y:
 P

re
-K

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
,2

90
   

   
   

   
  

26
,4

59
   

   
   

   
   

26
,4

59
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

11
21

-1
00

0-
52

02
00

Ed
. T

ec
h.

 B
en

ef
its

: P
re

-K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

28
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
56

7
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

56
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

#D
IV

/0
!

11
21

-1
00

0-
52

12
00

Ed
. T

ec
h.

 B
C

/B
S:

 P
re

-K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

,8
99

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
89

   
   

   
   

   
24

,0
89

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
11

21
-1

00
0-

55
80

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l: 
Pr

e-
K

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
#D

IV
/0

!
11

21
-1

00
0-

56
10

00
Te

ac
hi

ng
 S

up
pl

ie
s:

 P
re

-K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

#D
IV

/0
!

11
21

-1
00

0-
56

40
00

Te
xt

bo
ok

s,
 T

ra
de

 B
ks

:P
re

-K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

#D
IV

/0
!

11
21

-1
00

0-
57

30
00

Pu
rc

h 
of

 E
qu

ip
: P

re
-K

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
#D

IV
/0

!
11

21
-1

00
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s,

 F
ee

s,
 C

on
f: 

Pr
e-

K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

#D
IV

/0
!

29
00

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

G
ift

ed
 a

nd
 T

al
en

te
d 

C
oo

rd
.

14
,1

18
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,8
37

   
   

   
   

 
11

,8
37

   
   

   
   

  
12

,8
02

   
   

   
   

   
96

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
15

%
20

%
 p

os
iti

on
29

00
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
R

et
ire

./M
ed

ic
ar

e 
- G

 &
 T

73
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
62

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
62

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
.0

9%
29

00
-1

00
0-

52
11

00
BC

/B
S:

 G
 &

 T
1,

43
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
97

4
   

   
   

   
   

2,
82

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

10
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

51
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

32
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
32

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

29
00

-1
00

0-
56

10
00

G
 &

 T
: T

ea
ch

in
g 

Su
pp

lie
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
29

00
-1

00
0-

56
10

01
G

 &
 T

: T
es

tin
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
13

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

29
00

-1
00

0-
56

40
00

G
 &

 T
: T

ex
ts

 &
 T

ra
de

 B
oo

ks
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

29
00

-1
00

0-
57

30
00

G
 &

 T
: E

qu
ip

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

29
00

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

G
 &

 T
: D

ue
s,

 F
ee

s,
 C

on
f.

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%

To
ta

l R
eg

ul
ar

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

1,
71

7,
13

5
   

   
   

  
1,

98
5,

14
7

   
   

  
1,

94
4,

23
9

   
   

   
2,

07
1,

93
7

   
   

   
 

86
,7

90
   

   
   

   
  

4.
37

%
Ar

tic
le

 7
7

R
eg

ul
ar

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

2,
07

1,
93

7
$ 

   
   

 



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

Ac
tu

al
C

ur
re

nt
   

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n

Ex
pe

nd
.

B
ud

ge
t

Ex
pe

nd
.

B
ud

ge
t

D
iff

er
en

ce
D

iff
er

en
ce

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n

22
00

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

Te
ac

he
r S

al
ar

ie
s:

 R
es

rc
e 

R
m

.
11

7,
29

3
   

   
   

   
  

12
0,

54
0

   
   

   
  

92
,9

60
   

   
   

   
  

97
,7

99
   

   
   

   
   

(2
2,

74
1)

   
   

   
   

-1
8.

87
%

2 
Te

ac
he

rs
21

00
-1

00
0-

51
02

00
Ed

. T
ec

h.
 S

al
ar

ie
s

15
2,

93
5

   
   

   
   

  
16

0,
17

7
   

   
   

  
14

1,
37

9
   

   
   

   
17

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

14
,8

23
   

   
   

   
  

9.
25

%
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 s

am
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f E
d.

 T
ec

hs
 (7

.5
)

22
00

-1
00

0-
52

01
00

R
et

ire
./M

ed
ic

ar
e 

- T
ea

ch
er

s
6,

00
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
37

7
   

   
   

   
   

4,
91

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

79
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

(5
87

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
-9

.2
0%

21
00

-1
00

0-
52

02
00

R
et

ire
./ 

M
ed

ic
ar

e 
- E

d.
 T

ec
hs

.
9,

16
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
47

5
   

   
   

   
   

7,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,5
00

   
   

   
   

   
2,

02
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
.8

9%
22

00
-1

00
0-

52
11

00
BC

/B
S:

 T
ea

ch
er

s
18

,1
12

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
,9

23
   

   
   

   
 

15
,9

66
   

   
   

   
  

17
,5

63
   

   
   

   
   

(2
,3

60
)

   
   

   
   

  
-1

1.
85

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

21
00

-1
00

0-
52

12
00

BC
/B

S:
 E

d.
 T

ec
hs

.
81

,5
42

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
5,

93
7

   
   

   
  

64
,4

93
   

   
   

   
  

95
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

(1
0,

93
7)

   
   

   
   

-1
0.

32
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
95

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

6,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
,4

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-2

0.
00

%
22

00
-1

00
0-

54
30

00
C

on
tr.

 S
vc

s.
: E

qu
ip

. R
ep

ai
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
22

00
-1

00
0-

55
60

00
Tu

iti
on

: S
p.

 E
d.

/R
es

er
ve

 T
rn

sf
2,

40
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
40

7
   

   
   

   
   

2,
40

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,4
07

)
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
0%

AO
S 

re
se

rv
e 

at
 m

ax
 a

m
ou

nt
22

00
-1

00
0-

59
00

1
Tr

an
sf

 to
 L

oc
al

 R
es

er
ve

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Ad

di
tio

n 
to

 L
oc

al
 S

pe
c 

Ed
 R

es
er

ve
22

00
-1

00
0-

55
80

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

22
00

-1
00

0-
56

10
00

R
es

. R
m

.: 
Te

ac
h.

 S
up

pl
ie

s
3,

29
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

In
cl

. O
T/

PT
 S

up
pl

ie
s

22
00

-1
00

0-
56

10
01

R
es

. R
m

.: 
Te

st
in

g 
M

at
er

ia
ls

36
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
22

00
-1

00
0-

56
40

00
Te

xt
bo

ok
s 

& 
Tr

ad
e 

Bo
ok

s
1,

57
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

22
00

-1
00

0-
56

50
00

Te
ch

 R
el

at
ed

 S
of

tw
ar

e
1,

05
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

22
00

-1
00

0-
57

30
00

R
es

. R
m

.:P
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 E
qu

ip
.

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
In

cl
. O

T/
PT

 E
qu

ip
22

00
-1

00
0-

58
10

00
R

es
. R

m
.:D

ue
s,

 F
ee

s,
 C

on
f.

33
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
25

00
-2

33
0-

53
44

00
As

se
ss

m
en

t: 
Sp

ec
. S

vc
s.

73
,3

18
   

   
   

   
   

 
82

,9
41

   
   

   
   

 
82

,4
63

   
   

   
   

  
90

,7
10

   
   

   
   

   
7,

76
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

9.
37

%
fix

ed
 to

 a
 d

is
tri

ct
 fo

rm
ul

a
25

00
-2

33
0-

58
12

00
D

ue
s 

Fe
es

 - 
Sa

m
e 

G
oa

l
36

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

91
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

.7
1%

28
00

-2
14

0-
53

44
00

Pr
of

. S
vc

s.
: T

he
ra

py
/C

ou
ns

el
.

74
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Fo

r O
ut

si
de

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

/C
ou

ns
el

in
g

28
00

-2
15

0-
51

01
00

Te
ac

he
r S

al
ar

ie
s:

 S
pe

ec
h

72
,5

55
   

   
   

   
   

 
76

,5
06

   
   

   
   

 
76

,5
06

   
   

   
   

  
80

,1
65

   
   

   
   

   
3,

65
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
78

%
28

00
-2

15
0-

51
01

01
Sa

la
ry

: I
nt

er
pr

et
er

56
,3

38
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

,3
38

   
   

   
   

 
59

,6
34

   
   

   
   

  
63

,4
44

   
   

   
   

   
7,

10
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.6

1%
 

28
00

-2
15

0-
52

01
00

R
et

ire
./M

ed
ic

ar
e 

- S
pe

ec
h

2,
78

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

04
7

   
   

   
   

   
4,

04
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
74

6
   

   
   

   
   

  
69

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
.2

7%
28

00
-2

15
0-

52
01

01
R

et
ire

/M
ed

ic
ar

e 
- I

nt
er

pr
et

er
2,

87
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
05

4
   

   
   

   
   

3,
15

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

75
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

.9
9%

28
00

-2
15

0-
52

11
00

BC
/B

S:
 S

pe
ec

h
7,

63
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
40

1
   

   
   

   
   

7,
98

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

78
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

38
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

52
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
28

00
-2

15
0-

52
11

01
BC

/B
S:

 In
te

rp
re

te
r

20
,9

50
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

,0
45

   
   

   
   

 
21

,8
99

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
89

   
   

   
   

   
1,

04
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
53

%
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
1,

68
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

28
00

-2
15

0-
56

10
00

Sp
ee

ch
: T

ea
ch

in
g 

Su
pp

lie
s

49
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
28

00
-2

15
0-

56
10

01
Sp

ee
ch

: T
es

tin
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
57

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

Te
st

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 n

ee
de

d
28

00
-2

15
0-

57
30

00
Sp

ee
ch

: E
qu

ip
m

en
t

80
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
R

em
ot

e 
m

ic
s

28
00

-2
15

0-
58

10
00

Sp
ee

ch
: D

ue
s/

Fe
es

/C
on

f.
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

28
00

-2
46

0-
53

44
00

O
th

er
 P

ro
f S

vc
s-

O
T

19
,0

48
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

28
00

-2
18

0-
53

44
00

O
th

er
 P

ro
f S

vc
s-

PT
7,

89
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

12
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
28

00
-2

15
0-

53
44

00
O

th
er

 P
ro

f S
vc

s 
- S

pe
ec

h
6,

37
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

D
ot

.c
om

 2
1-

22
 E

xp
28

10
-1

00
0-

51
01

00
Sp

ec
. E

d.
 : 

Su
m

m
. S

ch
l.

4,
63

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
sp

ec
ia

liz
ed

 s
um

m
er

 s
ch

oo
l

28
10

-1
00

0-
52

01
00

M
ed

ic
ar

e 
- S

um
m

. S
ch

l.
22

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

31
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
.7

0%
To

ta
l S

pe
ci

al
 E

du
ca

tio
n

67
4,

32
8

   
   

   
   

  
78

4,
73

3
   

   
   

  
67

8,
04

1
   

   
   

   
78

1,
78

9
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,9

44
)

   
   

   
   

  
-0

.3
8%

Ar
tic

le
 7

8
Sp

ec
ia

l E
du

ca
tio

n
78

1,
78

9
$ 

   
   

   
 



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

Ac
tu

al
C

ur
re

nt
   

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Ex
pe

nd
.

B
ud

ge
t

Ex
pe

nd
.

B
ud

ge
t

D
iff

er
en

ce
D

iff
er

en
ce

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

Ar
tic

le
 7

9
C

ar
ee

r &
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 E
du

ca
tio

n
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
O

th
er

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
o-

C
ur

ric
ul

ar
 

91
00

-1
00

0-
51

50
00

C
o-

C
ur

ric
ul

ar
 S

tip
en

ds
28

,2
28

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

14
   

   
   

   
 

28
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

4,
98

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

.9
3%

91
00

-1
00

0-
52

00
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- C
o-

C
ur

ric
. S

tip
en

ds
1,

67
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
35

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
68

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

.3
3%

91
00

-1
00

0-
58

90
00

W
el

ln
es

s 
In

ce
nt

iv
es

1,
92

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
91

00
-2

70
0-

55
10

00
C

o-
C

ur
ric

: T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

92
00

-1
00

0-
51

50
00

Ex
tra

-C
ur

ric
.: 

At
hl

et
ic

 S
tip

en
d

35
,9

53
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

,4
35

   
   

   
   

 
39

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
46

,5
00

   
   

   
   

   
7,

06
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
.9

2%
 

92
00

-1
00

0-
51

50
01

C
on

tr.
 S

vc
s.

: O
ffi

ci
al

s,
 e

tc
.

4,
50

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.0

0%
92

00
-1

00
0-

52
00

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- E

xt
ra

-C
ur

ric
.

2,
24

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

70
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.0

0%
92

00
-1

00
0-

52
00

01
Be

ne
fit

s-
O

ffi
ci

al
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

92
00

-1
00

0-
55

80
00

At
hl

et
ic

-S
ta

ff 
Tr

av
el

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
92

00
-1

00
0-

56
00

00
Su

pp
lie

s
85

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
92

00
-1

00
0-

56
05

00
Eq

ui
pm

en
t &

 U
ni

fo
rm

s
1,

85
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
92

00
-1

00
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
16

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

To
ta

l C
o-

C
ur

ric
ul

ar
77

,3
98

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
,1

49
   

   
   

   
 

83
,4

30
   

   
   

   
  

94
,4

50
   

   
   

   
   

14
,3

01
   

   
   

   
  

17
.8

4%
Su

m
m

er
 S

ch
oo

l  
43

00
-1

00
0-

51
01

00
Su

m
m

er
 S

ch
oo

l/H
om

ew
or

k 
C

lu
b

10
,9

07
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
.3

3%
in

cl
ud

es
 s

um
m

er
 s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 h
om

ew
or

k 
cl

ub
 s

ta
ffi

ng
43

00
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- S

um
m

er
 S

ch
oo

l
57

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

79
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

79
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

.5
4%

To
ta

l S
um

m
er

 S
ch

oo
l

11
,4

80
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,7
95

   
   

   
   

 
15

,7
94

   
   

   
   

  
18

,0
06

   
   

   
   

   
2,

21
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
.0

0%
Ar

tic
le

 8
0

O
th

er
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
11

2,
45

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

St
ud

en
t &

 S
ta

ff 
Su

pp
or

t
G

ui
da

nc
e

 
00

00
-2

12
0-

51
01

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

C
ou

ns
el

.
59

,8
85

   
   

   
   

   
 

59
,8

85
   

   
   

   
 

63
,3

88
   

   
   

   
  

67
,4

39
   

   
   

   
   

7,
55

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

.6
1%

 
00

00
-2

12
0-

52
01

00
R

et
ire

./M
ed

ic
ar

e
3,

10
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
24

6
   

   
   

   
   

3,
35

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

99
3

   
   

   
   

   
  

74
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

.0
1%

00
00

-2
12

0-
52

11
00

Bl
ue

 C
ro

ss
/B

lu
e 

Sh
ie

ld
20

,9
50

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
,0

45
   

   
   

   
 

21
,8

99
   

   
   

   
  

24
,0

89
   

   
   

   
   

1,
04

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

53
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
12

0-
56

10
00

Su
pp

lie
s

1,
22

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

12
0-

56
40

00
Bo

ok
s 

& 
Pe

rio
di

ca
ls

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

12
0-

57
30

00
Eq

ui
pm

en
t  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
R

ec
es

s 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

00
00

-2
12

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s,
 F

ee
s,

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
36

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
To

ta
l G

ui
da

nc
e

85
,2

22
   

   
   

   
   

 
90

,6
26

   
   

   
   

 
92

,2
00

   
   

   
   

  
99

,9
71

   
   

   
   

   
9,

34
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.3

1%
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s
 

 
 

00
00

-2
13

0-
51

01
00

Sa
la

rie
s:

 N
ur

se
67

,2
30

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
,2

56
   

   
   

   
 

72
,2

56
   

   
   

   
  

75
,9

15
   

   
   

   
   

3,
65

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

06
%

 
00

00
-2

13
0-

52
01

00
R

et
ire

./M
ed

ic
ar

e
3,

50
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
82

3
   

   
   

   
   

3,
82

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

49
4

   
   

   
   

   
  

67
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

.5
5%

00
00

-2
13

0-
52

11
00

Bl
ue

 C
ro

ss
 / 

Bl
ue

 S
hi

el
d

17
,2

12
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,9
34

   
   

   
   

 
17

,9
93

   
   

   
   

  
19

,7
92

   
   

   
   

   
85

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
53

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

37
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

53
40

00
Ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

& 
Ph

ys
ic

al
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

54
30

00
C

on
tr.

 S
vc

s.
:E

qu
ip

. R
ep

ai
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

55
20

0
M

al
pr

ac
tic

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

55
80

00
Tr

av
el

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

56
00

00
Su

pp
lie

s
82

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

su
pp

lie
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 F
irs

t A
id

 k
its

 &
 S

to
p 

th
e 

Bl
ee

d
00

00
-2

13
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

. E
qu

ip
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

00
00

-2
13

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s 
/ F

ee
s 

/ C
on

fe
re

nc
es

16
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

58
90

01
Fl

u 
Sh

ot
s

84
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
re

im
bu

rs
ab

le
 m

on
ey

 fr
om

 th
e 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

m
pa

ny
To

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s
90

,1
45

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

04
8

   
   

   
  

99
,0

57
   

   
   

   
  

10
5,

23
6

   
   

   
   

 
5,

18
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
19

%



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

Ac
tu

al
C

ur
re

nt
   

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

St
ud

en
t &

 S
ta

ff 
Su

pp
or

t
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
D

iff
er

en
ce

D
iff

er
en

ce
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f I

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
 

00
00

-2
20

0-
53

00
00

As
se

ss
m

en
t:C

ur
ric

. &
 T

ec
hn

.
61

,0
22

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
,2

82
   

   
   

   
 

71
,7

73
   

   
   

   
  

80
,5

71
   

   
   

   
   

8,
28

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

.4
7%

 
00

00
-2

21
0-

51
01

00
In

st
ru

ct
io

na
l G

ra
nt

s
4,

89
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

6,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

.6
7%

su
m

m
er

 w
or

k
00

00
-2

21
0-

51
50

00
M

en
to

rs
/C

er
tC

om
m

2,
36

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

00
00

-2
21

0-
52

00
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

St
ip

en
ds

14
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

.4
3%

00
00

-2
21

0-
52

01
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- I
ns

tr.
 G

ra
nt

s
25

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

31
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

34
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

97
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
.5

0%
00

00
-2

21
2-

53
30

00
C

ur
ric

ul
um

 W
or

k
1,

74
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
71

6
   

   
   

   
   

1,
76

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

63
2

   
   

   
   

   
  

(8
4)

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-4

.9
0%

$1
2 

pe
r  

st
ud

en
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t
00

00
-2

21
0-

53
30

02
R

ea
di

ng
 R

ec
ov

er
y 

C
on

t. 
H

rs
.

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

21
0-

53
30

03
Lo

ca
l W

or
ks

ho
ps

/S
pe

ak
er

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

Sc
ho

ol
 C

ul
tu

re
 W

or
ks

ho
p

To
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

e.
 O

f I
ns

tru
ct

io
n

72
,4

23
   

   
   

   
   

 
88

,0
01

   
   

   
   

 
87

,5
40

   
   

   
   

  
97

,3
26

   
   

   
   

   
9,

32
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.6

0%
Li

br
ar

y 
&

 A
ud

io
 V

is
ua

l
 

00
00

-2
22

0-
53

20
00

Sa
la

rie
s:

 L
ib

ra
ria

n
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

54
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

54
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
To

ta
l L

ib
ra

ry
 &

 A
V

54
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
00

00
-2

23
0-

51
01

00
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 In
te

gr
at

or
76

,2
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
,2

56
   

   
   

   
 

80
,2

56
   

   
   

   
  

83
,9

15
   

   
   

   
   

3,
65

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

56
%

10
0%

 T
im

e
00

00
-2

23
0-

51
06

00
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

33
,6

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

,3
20

   
   

   
   

 
42

,6
79

   
   

   
   

  
45

,4
06

   
   

   
   

   
5,

08
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.6

1%
60

%
 T

im
e

00
00

-2
23

0-
52

01
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- T
ec

hn
. I

nt
eg

ra
to

r
4,

12
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
24

5
   

   
   

   
   

4,
24

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

96
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

72
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

.0
3%

00
00

-2
23

0-
52

00
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- T
ec

hn
. C

oo
rd

.
2,

57
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
08

5
   

   
   

   
   

3,
26

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

47
4

   
   

   
   

   
  

38
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

.6
1%

00
00

-2
23

0-
52

11
00

BC
/B

S 
- T

ec
hn

. I
nt

eg
ra

to
r

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

00
00

-2
23

0-
52

16
00

BC
/B

S 
- T

ec
hn

. C
oo

rd
.

8,
60

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,3
60

   
   

   
   

 
10

,7
96

   
   

   
   

  
11

,8
76

   
   

   
   

   
51

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
54

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
96

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
96

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

96
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

23
0-

54
32

00
C

on
tr.

 S
vc

s.
:E

qu
ip

. R
ep

ai
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
.6

7%
 

00
00

-2
23

0-
55

80
00

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

23
0-

56
00

00
Su

pp
lie

s
5,

21
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

co
pi

er
/p

rin
t s

up
pl

ie
s

00
00

-2
23

0-
56

50
00

C
om

pu
te

r S
of

tw
ar

e
3,

97
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

ST
EA

M
 L

ic
en

se
s 

/ A
ud

ib
le

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

00
00

-2
23

0-
56

50
02

So
ftw

/S
ite

 L
ic

en
se

s 
- A

O
S9

1
16

,1
15

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

24
,7

20
   

   
   

   
  

26
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
%

 
00

00
-2

23
0-

57
34

00
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

24
,9

52
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,5
00

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
32

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
3,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.2

8%
St

af
f  

la
pt

op
s,

st
ud

en
t c

om
pu

te
r l

ea
se

s,
 T

ec
h 

D
ir 

C
om

pu
te

r
00

00
-2

23
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

To
ta

l T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

18
0,

46
2

   
   

   
   

  
21

1,
97

6
   

   
   

  
21

5,
67

1
   

   
   

   
22

7,
84

9
   

   
   

   
 

15
,8

73
   

   
   

   
  

 
Ar

tic
le

 8
1

St
ud

en
t &

 S
ta

ff 
Su

pp
or

t
58

4,
38

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

Sy
st

em
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
O

ffi
ce

 o
f S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t
00

00
-2

32
0-

53
41

00
As

se
ss

m
en

t: 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

86
,4

32
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

1,
00

5
   

   
   

  
10

0,
27

9
   

   
   

   
95

,5
12

   
   

   
   

   
(5

,4
93

)
   

   
   

   
  

-5
.4

4%
In

cr
. I

n 
%

 p
ai

d 
fr 

11
.6

8%
 to

 1
2.

00
%

To
ta

l O
ffi

ce
 o

f S
up

t.
86

,4
32

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
1,

00
5

   
   

   
  

10
0,

27
9

   
   

   
   

95
,5

12
   

   
   

   
   

(5
,4

93
)

   
   

   
   

  
-5

.4
4%

Sy
st

em
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
Sc

ho
ol

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

00
00

-2
31

0-
51

50
00

Sa
la

rie
s:

 S
ch

oo
l C

om
m

itt
ee

2,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

31
0-

52
00

00
So

c.
 S

ec
. /

 M
ed

ic
ar

e
16

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
31

0-
53

40
00

Pr
of

. S
vc

s.
: L

eg
al

 &
 A

ud
it

11
,2

17
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
14

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
.3

3%
00

00
-2

31
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
1,

39
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

69
%

To
ta

l S
ch

oo
l C

om
m

itt
ee

14
,9

75
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,6
68

   
   

   
   

 
17

,6
68

   
   

   
   

  
20

,7
68

   
   

   
   

   
2,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
.2

5%
Ar

tic
le

 8
2

Sy
st

em
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
11

6,
28

0
$ 

   
   

   
 



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

Ac
tu

al
C

ur
re

nt
   

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Sc
ho

ol
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
Ex

pe
nd

.
B

ud
ge

t
D

iff
er

en
ce

D
iff

er
en

ce
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n
O

ffi
ce

 o
f P

rin
ci

pa
l

 
00

00
-2

41
0-

51
04

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 P

rin
ci

pa
l

10
3,

00
3

   
   

   
   

  
10

3,
00

3
   

   
   

  
10

9,
02

9
   

   
   

   
11

3,
39

0
   

   
   

   
 

10
,3

87
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

8%
00

00
-2

41
0-

51
18

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 S

ec
re

ta
rie

s
75

,8
59

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
,2

67
   

   
   

   
 

81
,8

29
   

   
   

   
  

87
,5

79
   

   
   

   
   

15
,3

12
   

   
   

   
  

21
.1

9%
 

00
00

-2
41

0-
52

04
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- P
rin

ci
pa

l
5,

38
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
58

3
   

   
   

   
   

5,
76

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

71
3

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
13

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.2
4%

00
00

-2
41

0-
52

08
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- S
ec

re
ta

rie
s

10
,5

64
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
10

,8
52

   
   

   
   

  
11

,5
76

   
   

   
   

   
1,

57
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
.7

6%
So

c 
Se

c/
M

ed
 (7

.6
5%

) &
 P

LD
 fo

r s
om

e 
(1

0.
2%

 fo
r 2

3-
24

)
00

00
-2

41
0-

52
14

00
BC

/B
S 

- P
rin

ci
pa

l
20

,9
50

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
,0

45
   

   
   

   
 

21
,8

99
   

   
   

   
  

24
,0

89
   

   
   

   
   

1,
04

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

53
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
00

00
-2

41
0-

52
14

01
BC

/B
C

 - 
Se

cr
et

ar
ie

s
26

,3
28

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
,0

45
   

   
   

   
 

43
,7

98
   

   
   

   
  

48
,1

78
   

   
   

   
   

20
,1

33
   

   
   

   
  

71
.7

9%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

2,
76

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
4,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
.0

0%
00

00
-2

41
0-

54
44

50
C

op
ie

r L
ea

se
7,

75
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
75

3
   

   
   

   
   

7,
75

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

75
3

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
41

0-
55

40
00

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
3,

18
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

3,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
41

0-
55

80
00

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l

1,
71

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
N

at
l M

id
dl

e 
Le

ve
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
00

00
-2

41
0-

56
00

00
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ie

s 
/ P

os
ta

ge
2,

73
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
41

0-
57

30
00

R
ep

la
ce

/P
ur

ch
as

e 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

11
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

0%
00

00
-2

41
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
57

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

N
at

l M
id

dl
e 

Le
ve

l C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n/

 M
PA

00
00

-2
41

0-
58

90
00

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s/
 B

an
k 

Sv
c.

Fe
es

62
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

To
ta

l O
ffi

ce
 o

f P
rin

ci
pa

l
26

1,
56

4
   

   
   

   
  

27
0,

09
6

   
   

   
  

30
2,

52
8

   
   

   
   

32
1,

37
8

   
   

   
   

 
51

,2
82

   
   

   
   

  
18

.9
9%

Ar
tic

le
 8

3
Sc

ho
ol

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

32
1,

37
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

B
us

es
St

ud
en

t T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

 
00

00
-2

70
0-

51
18

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 B

us
 D

riv
er

s
82

,7
59

   
   

   
   

   
 

74
,4

69
   

   
   

   
 

79
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

84
,5

74
   

   
   

   
   

10
,1

05
   

   
   

   
  

13
.5

7%
 

00
00

-2
70

0-
52

08
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- B
us

 D
riv

er
s

6,
45

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
10

,9
85

   
   

   
   

  
11

,8
20

   
   

   
   

   
3,

67
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
.0

3%
So

c 
Se

c/
M

ed
 (7

.6
5%

) &
 P

LD
 fo

r s
om

e 
(1

0.
2%

 fo
r 2

3-
24

)
00

00
-2

70
0-

52
18

00
BC

/B
S:

 B
us

 D
riv

er
s

9,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

,4
01

   
   

   
   

 
15

,9
66

   
   

   
   

  
17

,5
62

   
   

   
   

   
4,

16
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
.0

5%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

70
0-

53
40

00
Ph

ys
ic

al
s 

& 
D

ru
g 

Te
st

in
g

62
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

70
0-

54
30

00
C

on
tr.

 S
vc

s.
: B

us
 R

ep
ai

rs
38

,1
89

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
70

0-
55

20
00

In
su

ra
nc

e:
 B

us
3,

12
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

5,
21

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

73
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
03

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

.0
0%

00
0-

27
00

-5
58

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
70

0-
56

00
00

Su
pp

lie
s

23
,4

56
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
22

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
22

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

0%
00

00
-2

70
0-

56
26

00
Fu

el
21

,0
63

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

28
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

28
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

.2
7%

00
00

-2
70

0-
57

30
00

R
ep

la
ce

/P
ur

ch
. O

f E
qu

ip
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

00
00

-2
70

0-
57

36
00

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f S

ch
oo

l B
us

/R
es

er
ve

24
,8

03
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Bu

s 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 - 

4 
yr

. L
ea

se
 L

as
t P

ay
m

en
t 3

/1
5/

20
25

00
00

-2
70

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s/
 F

ee
s/

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

70
0-

58
90

00
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

00
00

-2
75

0-
55

14
00

Tr
an

sp
. P

ur
ch

as
ed

 fr
 P

riv
at

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
To

ta
l T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n

20
9,

71
9

   
   

   
   

  
18

0,
82

0
   

   
   

  
20

0,
26

3
   

   
   

   
20

8,
79

1
   

   
   

   
 

27
,9

71
   

   
   

   
  

15
.4

7%
Ar

tic
le

 8
4

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
&

 B
us

es
20

8,
79

1
$ 

   
   

   
 



M
O

U
N

T 
D

ES
ER

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

21
-2

2
22

-2
3

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

Ac
tu

al
C

ur
re

nt
   

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Ex
pe

nd
.

B
ud

ge
t

Ex
pe

nd
.

B
ud

ge
t

D
iff

er
en

ce
D

iff
er

en
ce

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

&
 M

ai
nt

. O
f P

la
nt

00
00

-2
60

0-
51

18
00

Sa
la

rie
s:

 C
us

to
di

an
s

17
0,

02
3

   
   

   
   

  
17

6,
79

7
   

   
   

  
18

9,
33

4
   

   
   

   
20

1,
05

6
   

   
   

   
 

24
,2

59
   

   
   

   
  

13
.7

2%
 

00
00

-2
60

0-
52

08
00

So
c.

 S
ec

./ 
M

ed
ic

ar
e 

/ R
et

ire
.

22
,7

77
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

,5
00

   
   

   
   

 
22

,4
42

   
   

   
   

  
23

,7
24

   
   

   
   

   
2,

22
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.3

4%
So

c 
Se

c/
M

ed
 (7

.6
5%

) &
 P

LD
 fo

r s
om

e 
(1

0.
2%

 fo
r 2

3-
24

)
00

00
-2

60
0-

52
18

00
Bl

ue
 C

ro
ss

 / 
Bl

ue
 S

hi
el

d
41

,4
25

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
,2

69
   

   
   

   
 

43
,9

68
   

   
   

   
  

48
,3

65
   

   
   

   
   

2,
09

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

53
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
2,

01
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

3,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
54

10
00

U
til

ity
 S

vc
s.

: S
ew

er
 / 

W
at

er
6,

78
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
05

2
   

   
   

   
   

6,
78

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

05
2

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
55

20
00

In
su

ra
nc

e:
 B

ui
ld

in
g/

Eq
ui

p.
14

,5
73

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

55
   

   
   

   
  

18
,8

70
   

   
   

   
   

1,
87

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

.0
0%

 
00

00
-2

60
0-

55
32

00
Te

le
ph

on
e

5,
15

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

60
0-

55
80

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l
15

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
56

00
00

Su
pp

lie
s

27
,6

37
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
27

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
27

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
00

%
In

cl
ud

es
 P

PE
00

00
-2

60
0-

56
22

00
El

ec
tri

ci
ty

44
,8

63
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
48

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
70

%
00

00
-2

60
0-

56
23

00
L.

P.
 G

as
2,

94
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

.0
0%

00
00

-2
60

0-
56

24
00

H
ea

tin
g 

O
il

45
,4

81
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

0%
15

00
0 

g
00

00
-2

60
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

as
e 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
96

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

5.
00

%
Fl

oo
r S

cr
ub

be
r

00
00

-2
60

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s 
/ F

ee
s 

/ C
on

f. 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
58

90
05

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-2

60
0-

59
00

00
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
(O

pe
ra

tin
g)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

62
0-

54
30

00
R

ep
ai

r &
 M

ai
nt

. :
 B

ui
ld

in
g

38
,8

75
   

   
   

   
   

 
44

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
44

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
44

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
In

cl
. H

VA
C

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
Sy

st
em

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 $

10
,4

00
00

00
-2

63
0-

54
30

00
R

ep
ai

r &
 M

ai
nt

.. 
: G

ro
un

ds
11

,5
58

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

17
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

Irr
ig

at
io

n 
M

ai
nt

. /
 L

aw
n 

& 
fie

ld
 M

ai
nt

.
00

00
-2

63
0-

54
30

00
R

ep
ai

r &
 M

ai
nt

.: 
Eq

ui
p.

 R
ep

ai
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
To

ta
l O

pe
r. 

& 
M

ai
nt

.
43

5,
23

9
   

   
   

   
  

47
5,

36
8

   
   

   
  

49
6,

43
8

   
   

   
   

52
7,

31
7

   
   

   
   

 
51

,9
49

   
   

   
   

  
10

.9
3%

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
00

00
-2

69
0-

54
50

02
La

nd
 &

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
W

oo
d 

C
hi

ps
 fo

r P
la

yg
ro

un
d

00
00

-2
69

0-
54

50
01

Bu
ild

in
gs

  
13

8,
65

0
   

   
   

   
  

91
,5

00
   

   
   

   
 

91
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

37
6,

65
4

   
   

   
   

 
28

5,
15

4
   

   
   

   
31

1.
64

%
00

00
-2

69
0-

59
10

00
Bu

ild
in

gs
 (T

ra
ns

f t
o 

R
es

er
ve

)
22

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

pr
oj

. b
al

an
ce

 a
s 

of
  J

un
e 

30
, 2

02
3 

 $
 1

32
,5

86
00

00
-2

69
0-

57
30

00
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

 
To

ta
l C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

16
0,

65
0

   
   

   
   

  
12

0,
50

0
   

   
   

  
12

0,
50

0
   

   
   

   
40

5,
65

4
   

   
   

   
 

28
5,

15
4

   
   

   
   

23
6.

64
%

Ar
tic

le
 8

5
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

93
2,

97
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 
00

00
-5

10
0-

58
32

00
In

te
re

st
7,

80
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-5

10
0-

58
31

00
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

29
3,

58
7

   
   

   
   

  
28

5,
15

4
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
85

,1
54

)
   

   
   

 
-1

00
.0

0%
11

/1
/2

02
2 

w
as

 th
e 

la
st

 p
ay

m
en

t
To

ta
l D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
30

1,
39

7
   

   
   

   
  

28
5,

15
4

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

85
,1

54
)

   
   

   
 

-1
00

.0
0%

Ar
tic

le
 8

6
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 &

 O
th

er
 C

om
m

itm
en

ts
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Al
l O

th
er

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
 

Fo
od

 S
er

vi
ce

s
 

00
00

-3
10

0-
59

10
00

Fo
od

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Tr

an
sf

er
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 6
/3

0/
21

 =
  $

 -1
,1

19
K

To
ta

l F
oo

d 
Se

rv
ic

es
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

Ar
tic

le
 8

7
Al

l O
th

er
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
s:

4,
50

7,
56

7
   

   
   

  
4,

93
7,

08
6

   
   

  
4,

58
2,

64
8

   
   

   
5,

20
4,

98
4

   
   

   
 

26
7,

89
8

   
   

   
   

5.
43

%
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t I
nc

re
as

e
Ar

tic
le

 9
1

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
(S

um
m

ar
y 

Ar
tic

le
)

5,
20

4,
98

4
$ 

   



ftb Z i 2023
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

PUBLIC SPACE SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION
Application Fee — $10.00

NOTE - Applications are due 60 days prior for major events and
30 days prior to event for minor events.

PERMIT #: 3 -‘;4o23 DATE OF EVENT: IhUclz ‘/Lo I: 9 (2 iioo’i

DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED: - 2 -I ‘ ZOZ 3 # Expected to attend

PUBLIC SPACE REQUESTED: Please check: Northeast Harbor Marina Green V

Seal Harbor Village Green Surninsby Park

______

Otter Creek Playground

_______

Hall Quarry Park Pond’ s End______

TYPE OF EVENT — MAJOR OR MINOR (SEE POLICY FOR DEFININTIONS)

(circle one)

APPLICANT: tP ) €c?) EK3 4S.%ET

MAILING ADDRESS:
79

3 4ç7 .
riatu,

PHONE:O7 Z9) eT ‘Z1 aZ(

____________

(Home) ( usiness) (c lular)
OTHER CONTACT INFO: 4 c’cyi -c ..

-

(Email)
.1 -

x)
AGENT ¶;;.1 cmt -:g4tE_O:?,

(Signature)
AGENT MAILING ADDRESS:?p ‘i< 53

AST • ‘

f(4

PHONE: e2;/ Z7 5fl

___________

(Agent home) t) (Agent business) (Agent cellular)
OTHER CONTACT INFO: OjV kCyJ S’IzudA C (d(

(4gent email) I ‘ .
c .

(Agent fax)
What is the tax status ofthe applicant? (Non-profit) 1\kD{ t t

Does the applicant propose that amplified sound be used for event? Yes No

______

Ifyes, include description:

USE REQUESTED (Applicant, review the Public S ace Use Policy, then explain what you want to do)
::ot4D )cT A 1RESS I V flti
ç7e ‘J4t; 0T V2COLL ‘L-tki

It should be noted that it is a public space andyour event will not preclude other peoplefrom using the space;
however once approved, no other special events will be permitted at that location while your event is taking place.

Approved this

_____

day of , 20_, by a majority of the Board of Selectmen:

Page 1 ofl5
Public Space Special Event Application and
Public Spaces Use Policy
Approved by the Board of Selectmen August 17, 2015



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
PUBLIC SPACE SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION

Application Fee — $10.00
NOTE - Applications are due 60 days prior for major events and

30 days prior to event for minor events.

PERMIT #: Lf DATE OF EVENT: 0c I J20?4, TIME: 4 - 2..j
DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED: • # Expected to attend

______

PUBLIC SPACE REQUESTED: Please check: Northeast Harbor Marina Green

_______

Seal Harbor Village Green Suminsby Park

______

Otter Creek Playground

_______

Hall Quarry Park Pon ‘s End_____

TYPE OF EVENT — MAJOR 0 MiNOR EE POLICY FOR DEFININTIONS)

(circle one

APPLICANT: \tQ.4: k4*J* e4\

(Print) (Signature)
MAILING ADDRESS: O cIc Z., ‘z4 o,, M.t

PHONE:

_______________ _______________

(Home) (Business) (cellular)
OTHER CONTACT INFO:

______________________________________

AGENT: \OWQ kOk$L)
(Print) (S nature)

AGENT MAILING ADDRESS:() ac. L ‘. \\ ,.

PHONE:__________

__________

2L77
(Agent home) (Agent business) (Agent cellular)

OTHER CONTACT INFO:

_______________________ _____________

(Agent email) (Agent fax)
What is the tax status ofthe applicant? (Non-profit) Z) I (c (‘,j ?* 4

Does the applicant propose that amplified sound be used for event? Yes

_____

No

______

If yes, include description:

.

USE REQUESTED (Applicant, review the Public Space Use Policy, then explain what you want to do)

Dt,r*& cv%.%)R Cc?.v ec zØ X4

It should be )ioted that it is a public spce andyour event will notpreclude other peoplefrom using the space;
however once approved, no other special events will be permitted at that location while your event is taking place.

Approved this

_____

day of , 20, by a majority of the Board of Selectmen:

Page 1
Public Space Special Event Application and
Public Spaces Use Policy
Approved by the Board of Selectmen August 17, 2015



                                     BAR HARBOR & MOUNT DESERT 
                                         POLICE DEPARTMENTS 
                                                 James K. Willis, Chief of Police 

                  jwillis@mdpolice.org 
                                  
 
BHPD                                 MDPD 
37 Firefly Lane                                21 Sea Street, PO Box 248 
Bar Harbor, Maine 04609                              NE Harbor, ME 04662 
Tel: 207-288-3391                 Tel: 207-276-5111             
 
 

MEMO 
 
To:  Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 
From:  Jim Willis, Police Chief 
Subject: Outside Detail Compensation 
Date:  February 27, 2023 
 
This memo serves to provide an overview of our current outside detail structure and our request 
for consideration of a new structuring plan. 
 
In 2013, we restructured our outside details in to two different categories and rates as follows:  
Category 1 details were established as a standard service of providing general traffic and crowd 
control with a rate of $65/hour and a three hour minimum charged to the customer and $50/hour 
paid to the Officer;  Category 2 details were established for special circumstances or private 
personal “security” type details generally longer in duration and often overnight with a rate of 
$100/hr. and a three hour minimum charged to the customer and $65/hour paid to the Officer.   
 
In recent years, we discontinued the service of providing Category 2 details and have continued 
providing Category 1 details at a rate of $75 per hour with a three hour minimum charged to the 
customer and $50 per hour paid to the officer. 
 
I would now like to propose the following changes to our Outside Detail structure: 

1. Repeal Category 1 and Category 2 details as established in 2013. 
2. The Town’s Personnel Policy, section 6.3.8 states that when working outside details that 

private citizen and companies reimburse the Town for, Officers shall be compensated at 
the current rate established for such activities. We pay a premium wage, higher than an 
overtime rate, to officers for outside details to incentivize them.  It can be difficult to fill 
these kinds of shifts.  As wages have increased, our overtime rates are approaching the 
$50 rate we’ve been paying for outside details.  I propose increasing our standard outside 
detail rate to $100/hour with a three hour minimum charged to the customer and 
increasing Officer’s pay to $75/hour with a guaranteed three hour minimum.  We’ve 
proposed the same in Bar Harbor beginning in FY24. 

 
Can you please add this to the next available Select Board Agenda? 

mailto:jwillis@mdpolice.org


 

C:\Users\cwoolfolk\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3V5OO35C\Seal Harbor 12-23-22 storm repairs.docx  3/1/2023 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
May 13, 2023 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster 
Ref: Seal Harbor 12-23-22 Storm repairs  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
I am asking for authorization to pay for repairs to the Seal Harbor Pier from damage sustained 
during the 12-23-22 storm. Ben Jacobs and myself meet with L E Norwood and received an 
estimate of $4,800.00 to make the repairs needed. I received a verbal approval from Durl Lunt to 
award the job to L E Norwood so we could get on their schedule. I am asking for your approval 
to pay Norwood Delaittre & Sons Inc $4,800.00 for the repair work out of the Seal Harbor Docks 
CIP reserve #6410200-24600 the account has a balance of $86,551.58. I will be available for 
questions.  
 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster 
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


 
 

 ASSIGNMENT 
 
 TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, a Maine nonprofit corporation located in the Town of Mount Desert 
("DONOR"), hereby assigns to the TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT, a duly organized 
municipality situated in Hancock County, Maine ("DONEE"), AS A GIFT AND WITHOUT 
CONSIDERATION, all of its right, title and interest in and to the following personal property: 
 

Personal property described in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
The above-described property is conveyed "as is," and DONOR makes no representations 

or warranties regarding its title, condition, or suitability for any purpose. 
 
By signing below, DONOR and DONEE each hereby acknowledge that no consideration 

has been paid or received in connection with the assignment described herein. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DONOR has executed this Assignment under seal as of 

December 21, 2023.  
 
Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: 
     TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT COMMUNITY  
     DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
                                             By                                                                    

 Witness          Nancy Ho, President 
 
  
The TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT hereby accepts as a gift the property described above on the 
terms and conditions described herein. 
 
 
     TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 
_____________________  By _______________________________ 
 Witness         Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager 
          



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

2 Yukon Extra Wide Snow Pushers   Purchase Price:       $  78.05 
 
1 Nordic 24” Aluminum Snow Pusher  Purchase Price:       $  23.20 
 
2 16” Snow Shovels     Purchase Price:      $  40.07  
 
1 White Flex Tape     Purchase Price:      $  16.87 
 
5 Orange Weighted Ice Hockey Pucks  Purchase Price:                $  17.45 
  
5 Orange Weighted Ice Hockey Pucks  Purchase Price:                $  17.45 
 
5 Howies Cloth Black Hockey Tape   Purchase Price:      $   22.45 
  
5 Howies Cloth White Hockey Tape   Purchase Price:      $   22.45 
  
15 Hockey Pucks     Purchase Price:      $   29.85  
 
10 Youth Hockey Sticks    Purchase Price:      $ 219.90 
 
Suggestion Box, Envelopes, Stamps   Purchase Price:      $103.82   
 
12 18” x 24” coroplast s/s signs   Purchase Price:      $540.00 
 
1 18” x 12” aluminum parking sign   Purchase Price:      $  39.00 
 
Logo       Purchase Price:      $120.00 
 
Double-sided VHB Tape    Purchase Price:      $  30.00  
            

TOTAL VALUE:       $1,320.56 



 

Selectboard, 

Recommendation: 

I recommend that the Selectboard, in their capacity as trustees, authorize the Mount Desert Regional 
High School to grant the following stipend and scholarship: 

 Horace and Mary Reynolds Stipend in the amount of $300.00 ($100.00 more than last year) 

 Frank F. Stanley Trust Scholarship in the amount of $100.00 (no change from last year) 

Background 
At a special town meeting on September 16, 1970, the Town accepted a gift of $1,000 from Horace R. 
and Mary P. Reynolds to be held in trust used to fund the perpetual care of lots 83 and 84 in the Forest 
Hill Cemetery at Northeast Harbor and for flowers annually on Memorial Day, and to provide any 
unexpended income annually to be awarded to a member or members of the graduating class of Mount 
Desert Island Regional High School.  This gift was increased by $5,000 in 1973 and by $3,509.69 in 1976 
through bequests from the Reynold’s estate.   

At a special town meeting held on May 31, 1966, the Town voted to accept a gift of $3,000 to be held in 
trust from Frank F. Stanley.  The proceeds of this trust are to be used annually, $50 going to the 
maintenance of the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field in Northeast Harbor (We assume this is the field at the 
elementary school.); $100 for a scholarship to a member of the graduating class of the Mount Desert 
Island Regional High School; and the balance of the income for further improvement, upkeep and 
maintenance of the infield at the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field. 

These funds have been placed in the Municipal Investment Trust Fund (Fund 500) and the investment 
has been placed with the Trust Services Department at Bar Harbor Bank and Trust. 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Mount Desert 
Jake Wright, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


Annual Calendar Year Analysis 

As of the December 31, 2022, the relevant figures of the trusts are as follows: 

 Principal Balance Expendable (Income 
Balance) 

Trust Balance 

Horace R. and Mary P. 
Reynolds 

$11,049.64 $1,547.95 $12,597.60 

Frank F. Stanley $3,542.31 $3,023.50 $6,565.81 

 

For context, the relevant figures of the trusts as of December 31, 2021 are as shown below. These were 
the balances considered at the time of the authorization of last year’s scholarships. 

 Principal Balance Expendable (Income 
Balance) 

Trust Balance 

Horace R. and Mary P. 
Reynolds 

$13,265.16 $1,230.48 $14,495.64 

Frank F. Stanley $4,252.57 $2,885.06 $7,137.63 

 

Thank you, 

 

Jake Wright 

Finance Director 

 

 



Principal Income Total Change in Principal Income Total

Balance Balance Prin & Inc Account Value Income Fees expenditures Balance Balance Prin & Inc

Horace Reynolds 13,265.16 1,230.48 14,495.64 (782.19) 50.70 (25.40) 12,482.97 1,255.78 13,738.75

Frank Stanley 4,252.57 2,885.06 7,137.63 (250.76) 25.46 (12.76) 4,001.81 2,897.77 6,899.58

Horace Reynolds 12,482.97 1,255.78 13,738.75 (734.43) 100.67 (24.03) (60.14) 11,748.54 1,272.28 13,020.82

Frank Stanley 4,001.81 2,897.77 6,899.58 (235.44) 51.59 (12.32) (57.19) 3,766.37 2,879.85 6,646.22

Horace Reynolds 11,748.54 1,272.28 13,020.82 (676.91) 137.42 (23.59) 11,071.63 1,386.11 12,457.74

Frank Stanley 3,766.37 2,879.85 6,646.22 (217.00) 71.57 (12.28) 3,549.36 2,939.14 6,488.51

Horace Reynolds 11,071.63 1,386.11 12,457.74 (21.99) 182.37 (20.52) 11,049.64 1,547.95 12,597.60

Frank Stanley 3,549.36 2,939.14 6,488.51 (7.05) 95.05 (10.70) 3,542.31 3,023.50 6,565.81

Horace Reynolds 13,265.16 1,230.48 14,495.64 (2,215.52) 471.16 (93.54) (60.14) 11,049.64 1,547.95 12,597.60

Frank Stanley 4,252.57 2,885.06 7,137.63 (710.26) 243.68 (48.05) (57.19) 3,542.31 3,023.50 6,565.81

Horace Reynolds

   Calendar Year Income 377.62 From To

   Less: Flowers (60.14) 0.00 50.00 50.00

   Less: Other expenses not 
assigned to income from other 
years 0.00 50.00 150.00 100.00

balance for scholarship 317.48 150.00 balance 45.63

Round (17.48)

Recommended Scholarship 300.00 195.63 agrees to net income for calendar year
 

Beginning of Period End of Period

Q1 2022

Q2 2022

Q3 2022

Q4 2022

2022 
Calendar

Income

Up to a maximum of $100 to be awarded for scholarship

used or accumulated for the further improvement, 
upkeep and maintenance of the infield of the Frank F. 
Stanley Athletic Field in NEH

Care, maintenance and improvement of the infield of the 
Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field in NEH

Frank Stanley



 

Selectboard, 

Recommendation: 

I recommend that the Selectboard, in their capacity as trustees, authorize the allocation of $95.63 from 
the expendable income balance of the Frank F. Stanley trust to the Mount Desert Elementary School 
departmental budget to offset costs associated with the care, maintenance, and improvement of the 
infield of the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field. The amount represents the allocated net income for 
calendar year 2022 less a $100 scholarship. 

Background 

At a special town meeting held on May 31, 1966, the Town voted to accept a gift of $3,000 to be held in 
trust from Frank F. Stanley.  The proceeds of this trust are to be used annually, $50 going to the 
maintenance of the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field in Northeast Harbor (We assume this is the field at the 
elementary school.); $100 for a scholarship to a member of the graduating class of the Mount Desert 
Island Regional High School; and the balance of the income to be used or accumulated for further 
improvement, upkeep and maintenance of the infield at the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field.  

These funds have been placed in the Municipal Investment Trust Fund (Fund 500) and the investment 
has been placed with the Trust Services Department at Bar Harbor Bank and Trust. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Jake Wright 

Finance Director 

 

 

Town of Mount Desert 
Jake Wright, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 3/6/2023

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2357 03/07/23 355,849.27              

355,849.27$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2355 02/23/23 90,874.81$              
AP#2356 03/01/23 2,784.27$                

Town Payroll
PR#2321 03/03/23 147,964.95$           

241,624.03$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

AP#09 3/1/23 77,401.51$              

School Payroll
PR#18 03/03/23 93,924.34$              

Town Voids

171,325.85$           

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 768,799.15$        

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2023 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2023.03.06 Selectboard 
Meeting\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
5
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
 
B
R
O
W
N
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
8
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
2
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
7
8
7
4

A
n
t
e
n
n
a
 
w
o
r
k
 
-
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
R
i
d
g
e
 
r
o
o
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
2
.
5
0
1
4
4
0
8
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
W
N
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
8
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
8
.
0
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
7
8
3
4

I
n
s
t
a
l
l
e
d
 
r
e
a
r
 
s
p
o
i
l
e
r
 
l
i
g
h
t
s
,
 
S
e
t
i
n
a
 
w
e
a
p
o
n
 
r
a
c
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
8
.
0
1
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
7
2
0
0
 
4
1
1
5
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
V
E
H
I
C
L
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
7
0
.
5
1

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
6
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
5
9
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
4
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
2
3
5
9
6
5

5
7
.
3
 
G
A
L
S
 
L
P
 
G
a
s
 
S
e
a
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
P
S
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
4
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
4
7

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
7
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
R
1
0
0
0
0
6
4
1
0
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
2
.
0
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
R
1
0
0
0
0
6
4
1
0
:
0
1

A
F
T
E
R
 
T
R
E
A
T
M
E
N
T
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
2
.
0
4
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
7
2
4
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
7
7
.
6
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
7
2
4
:
0
1

A
C
T
U
A
T
R
 
K
I
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
7
7
.
6
7
1
9
9
0
1
0
0
 
5
9
2
0
0
 
9
1
0
2
 

M
D
E
S
 
-
 
B
U
S
 
2
 
(
O
L
D
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
3
9
.
7
1

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
8
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
8
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
5
3
7
5
0
9
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
3
.
9
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
6
5
3
7
5
0
9
3
1

D
o
c
k
i
n
g
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
3
.
9
2
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
7
2
0
0
 
4
1
1
4
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
V
E
H
I
C
L
E
S
 
-
 
2
0
2
2
 
F
-
1
5
0
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
3
.
9
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
9
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
 
D
E
N
N
I
S
 
P
A
P
E
R
 
&
 
F
O
O
D
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
7
5
5
0
4
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
2
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
J
7
5
5
0
4
-
0
0

t
o
i
l
e
t
 
p
a
p
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
c
l
e
a
n
i
n
g
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
r
e
s
t
r
o
o
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
2
.
5
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
L
E
A
N
I
N
G
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
2
.
5
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
0
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
6
1
5
5
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
1
5
5
1
9

L
e
g
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
,
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
 
W
o
r
k
s
,
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
8
0
.
0
0

   



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
1
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
0
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
5
8
3
3

S
I
N
G
L
E
 
S
O
R
T
 
T
O
N
N
A
G
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
0
.
5
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
R
O
C
E
S
S
I
N
G
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
0
.
5
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
2
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
4

I
T
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
.
9
5
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
9
3

I
T
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
O
f
f
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
7
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
9
6

I
T
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
F
i
r
e
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
7
.
9
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
9
5

C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
 
T
e
c
h
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
5
8
.
7
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
2
0
5
2

N
E
H
 
M
a
i
n
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
C
A
C
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
5
8
.
7
5
3
0
0
0
0
3
9
 
5
7
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
-
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
3
1
5
.
6
9

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
3
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
6
 
D
U
R
L
I
N
 
L
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
0
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
8
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
o
w
n
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
-
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
l
e
a
g
u
e
 
o
f
 
t
o
w
n
s
 
m
e
e
t
i

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
0
3
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
2
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
O
W
N
 
M
G
R
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
0
3

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
4
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
2
 
M
O
D
E
R
N
 
P
E
S
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
9
7
1
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
6
9
7
1
8
9

C
H
O
I
C
E
 
P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
8
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
5
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
7
 
N
O
E
L
 
M
U
S
S
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
3
0
2
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
7
7

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
3
0
2
.
5
0
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
3
0
2
.
5
0

  



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
6
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
8
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
5
3
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
0
.
6
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
5
3
4
8

1
0
9
.
0
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
S
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
0
.
6
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
9
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
0
.
6
3

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
7
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
7
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
6
3
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
2
8
0
.
2
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
6
3
0
3

O
N
 
R
O
A
D
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
2
8
0
.
2
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
2
8
0
.
2
4

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
8
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
3
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
4
6
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
8
.
1
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
4
4
6
0
9

1
2
3
.
9
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
8
.
1
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
8
.
1
3

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
9
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
9
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
6
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
2
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
6
8
0
5

1
4
2
.
6
 
G
a
l
s
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
V
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
2
9
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
2
9

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
0
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
4
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
6
6
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
2
1
.
7
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
6
6
3
3

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
2
1
.
7
1
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
2
1
.
7
1

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
1
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
0
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
6
8
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
2
.
2
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
6
8
0
4

1
7
6
.
8
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
2
.
2
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
2
.
2
7

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
2
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
1
5
 
P
O
R
T
L
A
N
D
 
G
L
A
S
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
7
-
1
0
4
3
8
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
4
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
7
7
-
1
0
4
3
8
2
5

T
A
B
L
E
T
O
P
 
G
L
A
S
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
4
0
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
4
0

    



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
3
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
2
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
0
2
5
6
1
8
0
2
2
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
0
2
5
6
1
8
0
2
2
1
2
3

O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
7
7
1
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
D
E
P
T
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
4
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
3
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
9
6
6
9
0
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
5
9
6
6
9
0
9
0

P
A
P
E
R
 
C
U
P
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
9
6
6
9
0
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
6
.
2
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
5
9
6
6
9
0
9
1

C
L
E
A
N
I
N
G
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
/
T
I
S
S
U
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
6
.
2
3
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
7
.
2
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
5
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
8
-
4
 
0
2
0
8
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
1
.
2
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
8
-
4
 
0
2
0
8
2
3

L
E
D
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
I
G
H
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
1
.
2
2
1
4
4
0
6
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
I
G
H
T
S
-
L
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
4
5
1
9
6
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
4
5
1
9
6
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3

4
0
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
D
R
 
U
N
I
T
 
C
H
R
G
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
7
8
1
5
5
3
0
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
-
E
V
S
E
 
C
H
G
 
S
T
A
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
1
-
1
 
0
2
0
8
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
1
-
1
 
0
2
0
8
2
3

J
o
y
 
R
o
a
d
 
P
o
o
l
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5
1
9
9
0
1
0
0
 
5
9
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
D
 
E
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
R
Y
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
3
-
5
 
0
2
0
6
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
.
1
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
3
-
5
 
0
2
0
6
2
3

1
2
7
1
 
K
W
H
 
G
a
r
r
y
 
M
o
o
r
e
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
.
1
6
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
7
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
4
.
1
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
7
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3

2
7
1
0
 
K
W
H
 
B
r
a
c
y
 
C
o
v
e
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
4
.
1
2
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
4
-
6
 
0
2
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
4
4
.
1
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
4
-
6
 
0
2
0
5
2
3

4
2
7
5
 
K
W
H
 
S
e
a
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
4
4
.
1
9
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
9
-
6
 
0
2
0
6
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
2
.
2
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
9
-
6
 
0
2
0
6
2
3

4
6
5
1
 
K
W
H
 
G
I
L
P
A
T
 
C
o
v
e
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
2
.
2
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
1
9
-
0
 
0
2
0
6
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
4
5
2
.
6
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
1
9
-
0
 
0
2
0
6
2
3

3
9
2
8
0
 
K
W
H
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
4
5
2
.
6
2
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
3
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
4
3



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
3
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3

y
a
c
h
t
s
m
e
n
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
4
3
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
2
0
-
2
 
0
2
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
4
6
9
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
2
0
-
2
 
0
2
0
5
2
3

m
a
r
i
n
a
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
4
6
9
.
5
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
5
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
5
-
3
 
0
2
0
5
2
3

m
a
r
i
n
a
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
6
-
5
 
0
2
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
1
5
.
9
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
6
-
5
 
0
2
0
5
2
3

m
a
r
i
n
a
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
1
5
.
9
6
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
2
-
2
 
0
1
3
1
2
3
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
2
-
2
 
0
1
3
1
2
3

s
e
a
l
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
3
6
0
1
0
2
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
2
-
1
 
0
2
0
7
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
6
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
2
-
1
 
0
2
0
7
2
3

3
3
 
K
W
H
 
S
G
T
S
 
D
R
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
6
6
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
1
8
-
8
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
6
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
1
8
-
8
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

1
8
6
 
K
W
H
 
S
H
 
H
i
l
l
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
6
6
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
3
9
5
.
1
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
1
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
7
7
 
A
B
M
 
M
E
C
H
A
N
I
C
A
L
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
2
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
9
.
3
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
2
8
2

C
I
R
U
L
A
T
O
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
9
.
3
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
B
M
 
M
E
C
H
A
N
I
C
A
L
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
2
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
5
.
3
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
2
8
4

P
L
U
M
B
I
N
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
5
.
3
8
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
B
M
 
M
E
C
H
A
N
I
C
A
L
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
3
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
3
6
3

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
2
 
b
o
i
l
e
r
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
4
0
4
0
3
0
0
 
2
4
4
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

F
D
 
B
l
d
g
 
R
e
s
v
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
1
4
4
.
7
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
2
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
6
1
 
A
C
A
D
I
A
 
F
U
E
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
9
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
8
9
9
5
8

l
p
 
g
a
s
 
y
a
c
h
t
s
m
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
9
5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
9
5

  



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
3
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
0
 
B
E
N
 
C
 
W
O
R
C
E
S
T
E
R
,
 
I
I
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
l
4
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
l
4
0
3
0

R
E
C
Y
C
L
I
N
G
 
T
R
U
C
K
I
N
G
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
2
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
R
O
C
E
S
S
I
N
G
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
2
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
4
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
0
1
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
8
8
5
2
0
7
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
4
8
8
5
2
0
7
1
6

7
 
R
V
 
B
l
a
d
e
 
W
i
r
i
n
g
 
S
K
U
 
0
0
0
4
2
6
5
1
5
 
T
r
k
#
1
5
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
.
9
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
5
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
P
U
B
L
I
S
H
I
N
G
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
3
2
9
3
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
7
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
V
3
2
9
3
0
2

P
u
b
l
i
c
 
N
o
t
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
7
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
4
4
0
 
5
6
2
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
B
L
I
C
 
N
O
T
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
7
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
6
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
1
 
S
H
E
L
L
 
O
I
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
.
8
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
0
0
1
 
S
H
E
L
L
 
O
I
L

P
I
Z
Z
A
 
F
O
R
 
T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
C
L
A
S
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
.
8
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
1
5
 
W
M
 
S
U
P
E
R
C
E
N
T
E
R
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
1
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
1
5
 
W
M
 
S
U
P
E
R
C
E
N
T
E
R

K
I
T
C
H
E
N
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
1
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
9
5
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
5
9
5
 
M
S
F
T

O
n
l
i
n
e
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
7
9
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
6
7
9
 
M
S
F
T

M
i
c
r
o
s
o
f
t
 
A
z
u
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
9
7
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
8
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
8
1
8
 
M
S
F
T

O
n
l
i
n
e
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
3
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
5
1
3
 
M
S
F
T

O
n
l
i
n
e
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
7
3
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
.
1
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
0
7
3
 
M
S
F
T

M
i
c
r
o
s
o
f
t
 
L
i
c
e
n
s
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
.
1
1
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
1
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
 
A
D
M
I
N
I
S
T
R
A
T
O
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
6
5
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
6
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
6
6
5
 
M
S
F
T

O
n
l
i
n
e
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
6
1
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
1
6
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
1
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
3
1
6
 
M
S
F
T

M
i
c
r
o
s
o
f
t
 
A
z
u
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
1
1
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
9
 
I
N
F
O
R
M
E
D
 
N
O
T
A
R
I
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
4
9
 
I
N
F
O
R
M
E
D
 
N
O
T
A
R
I

N
O
T
A
R
Y
 
R
E
C
O
R
D
 
B
O
O
K
S
 
F
O
R
 
T
H
E
 
O
F
F
I
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
2
2
0
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
9
2
 
S
P
 
M
E
D
I
F
Y
A
I
R
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
9
.
5
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
6
9
2
 
S
P
 
M
E
D
I
F
Y
A
I
R

R
E
P
L
A
C
E
M
E
N
T
 
A
I
R
 
F
I
L
T
E
R
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
9
.
5
5
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
3
7
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
3
7
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S

S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
-
 
C
a
r
d
s
t
o
c
k
 
P
a
p
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
9
8
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
0
4
 
Z
O
O
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
4
0
4
 
Z
O
O
M

Z
O
O
M
 
C
L
O
U
D
 
S
T
O
R
A
G
E
 
&
 
L
A
R
G
E
 
M
E
E
T
I
N
G
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
3
3
0
 
8
9
0
 
 

S
O
F
T
W
A
R
E
 
-
Z
O
O
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
0
1
3
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
0
1
3
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C

B
i
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
W
W
 
C
E
R
T
 
7
2
9
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
0
2
1
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
0
2
1
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C

B
i
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
W
W
 
C
E
R
T
 
1
1
2
1
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
0
3
9
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C

B
i
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
W
W
 
C
E
R
T
 
8
3
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
0
2
4
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C
 
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
0
2
4
 
N
E
I
W
P
C
C
 
2
0
2
3

B
i
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
W
W
 
C
E
R
T
 
1
0
6
3
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
1
4
 
R
S
 
H
U
G
H
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
6
.
6
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
9
1
4
 
R
S
 
H
U
G
H
E
S

S
h
o
p
 
G
l
o
v
e
s
 
M
i
c
r
o
f
l
e
x
 
S
G
-
3
7
5
-
X
L
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
6
.
6
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
6
 
S
H
E
L
L
 
O
I
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
0
6
 
S
H
E
L
L
 
O
I
L

P
r
o
p
a
n
e
 
R
e
f
i
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
N
E
H
 
S
h
o
p
 
T
a
n
k
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
7
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
3
1
 
E
L
L
S
W
O
R
T
H
 
C
A
R
 
W
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
3
3
1
 
E
L
L
S
W
O
R
T
H
 
C
A
R
 
W

C
h
i
e
f
 
-
 
c
a
r
 
w
a
s
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
1
0
9
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
-
1
7
 
F
O
R
D
 
E
X
P
 
A
D
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
7
1
 
M
S
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
0
7
1
 
M
S
F
T

M
i
c
r
o
s
o
f
t
 
f
e
e



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
5
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
6
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
M
P
U
T
E
R
 
P
K
G
 
P
U
R
C
H
A
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
6
8
 
U
S
P
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
8
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
9
6
8
 
U
S
P
S

P
o
s
t
a
g
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
m
i
t
 
p
l
u
m
b
i
n
g
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
 
p
a
c
k
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
8
5
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
3
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
O
S
T
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
0
1
1
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
 
o
f
 
H
a
n
c
o
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
8
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
0
1
1
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
 
o
f
 
H
a
n
c
o

D
i
s
c
h
a
r
g
e
 
l
i
e
n
 
f
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
8
2
1
2
2
0
5
5
0
 
5
4
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E
E
D
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
1
0
 
J
O
N
E
S
 
&
 
B
A
R
T
L
E
T
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
7
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
0
1
0
 
J
O
N
E
S
 
&
 
B
A
R
T
L
E
T

F
i
r
e
f
i
g
h
t
e
r
 
I
 
&
 
I
I
 
b
o
o
k
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
c
l
a
s
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
7
.
5
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
3
5
 
F
A
X
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
3
5
 
F
A
X
A
G
E

F
a
x
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
5
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
8
 
C
U
R
T
I
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
5
5
8
 
C
U
R
T
I
S

F
i
r
e
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
I
 
&
 
I
I
 
s
t
u
d
y
 
b
o
o
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
9
7
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
8
0
 
H
E
A
L
T
H
 
I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
3
8
0
 
H
E
A
L
T
H
 
I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I

C
o
m
p
r
e
s
s
e
d
 
b
r
e
a
t
h
i
n
g
 
a
i
r
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
4
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
U
E
S
 
&
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
H
I
P
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
3
3
 
Z
O
O
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
.
9
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
3
3
 
Z
O
O
M

A
n
n
u
a
l
 
Z
o
o
m
 
f
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
.
9
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
3
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
O
F
T
W
A
R
E
 
R
E
N
E
W
/
L
I
C
 
F
E
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
4
 
L
L
 
B
E
A
N
 
D
I
R
E
C
T
 
0
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
7
5
4
 
L
L
 
B
E
A
N
 
D
I
R
E
C
T

L
L
 
B
e
a
n
 
s
h
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
&
 
h
a
n
d
l
i
n
g
 
-
 
C
h
i
e
f
'
s
 
s
h
i
r
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
9
5
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
8
0
 
 
L
L
 
B
E
A
N
 
D
I
R
E
C
T
0
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
.
8
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
9
8
0
 
 
L
L
 
B
E
A
N
 
D
I
R
E
C
T

C
h
i
e
f
 
-
 
L
L
 
B
e
a
n
 
s
h
i
r
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
.
8
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
7
 
A
M
A
Z
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
5
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
3
2
7
 
A
M
A
Z
O
N

L
i
t
h
i
u
m
 
b
a
t
t
e
r
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
5
3
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
2
6
 
A
M
A
Z
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
6
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
9
2
6
 
A
M
A
Z
O
N

M
e
m
o
r
e
x
 
d
v
d
'
s
 
-
 
A
m
a
z
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
6
9
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
6
0
 
A
M
A
Z
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
5
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
8
6
0
 
A
M
A
Z
O
N

K
e
u
r
i
g
 
C
o
f
f
e
e
 
M
a
k
e
r
 
-
 
A
m
a
z
o
n
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
5
6
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
9
1
.
7
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
7
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
7
9
 
T
H
E
 
F
.
A
.
 
B
A
R
T
L
E
T
T
 
T
R
E
E
 
E
X
P
E
R
T
 
C
O
M
 
4
0
6
8
3
9
7
0
-
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
7
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
0
6
8
3
9
7
0
-
0

T
R
E
E
 
C
L
E
A
N
-
U
P
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
7
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
8
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
 
B
 
C
 
M
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
4
2
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
1
6
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
2
4
2
2
6

E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
 
S
H
 
B
e
a
c
h
 
P
S
 
F
o
r
c
e
 
M
a
i
n
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
1
6
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
2
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
M
P
 
S
T
A
T
I
O
N
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
1
6
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
9
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
5
7
 
B
E
R
G
E
R
O
N
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
V
E
 
C
L
O
T
H
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
6
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
5
6
4
8

S
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
a
l
 
f
i
r
e
f
i
g
h
t
i
n
g
 
b
o
o
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
8
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
7
1
0
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
-
 
F
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
3
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
8
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
0
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
3
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
8
5
4
2
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
.
2
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
4
8
5
4
2
4
7

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
.
2
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
.
2
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
1
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
0
9
 
P
E
T
E
R
 
H
 
B
R
O
N
S
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
7
2
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2

S
k
a
t
i
n
g
 
r
i
n
k
 
m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
7
2
.
5
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
9
0
0
0
1

R
&
M
 
-
 
S
k
a
t
i
n
g
 
R
i
n
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
7
2
.
5
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
2
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
2
4
 
C
 
&
 
C
 
M
A
C
H
I
N
E
 
S
H
O
P
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
.
3
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
9
2

S
W
I
V
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
.
3
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
 
&
 
C
 
M
A
C
H
I
N
E
 
S
H
O
P
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
8
0

C
U
T
T
I
N
G
 
E
D
G
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
9
.
3
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
3
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
 
E
L
L
S
W
O
R
T
H
 
C
H
A
I
N
S
A
W
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
9
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
3
1
9
9
1

P
r
e
s
s
u
r
e
 
w
a
s
h
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
9
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
7
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
9
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
4
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
2
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
4
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2

c
e
l
l
 
p
h
o
n
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
4
6
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
4
2
8
9

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
H
A
R
B
O
R
M
A
S
T
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
4
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
5
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
3
3
 
F
R
E
D
'
S
 
C
O
F
F
E
E
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
4
3
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
8
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
9
4
3
1
5

C
o
f
f
e
e
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
 
0
2
0
8
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
8
0
1
4
4
0
8
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
8
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
6
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
7
0
 
G
R
O
U
P
 
D
Y
N
A
M
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
2
3
0
3
-
0
1
6
0
0
0
2
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
L
2
3
0
3
-
0
1
6
0
0
0
2
8
2

H
R
A
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
F
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
.
2
5
1
2
2
0
8
0
0
 
5
2
4
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
R
A
=
M
E
D
 
D
E
D
U
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
.
2
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
7
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
5
1
9
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
5
1
9
1
6

D
R
Y
L
O
C
K
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
3
7
8
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
3
7
8
2
3

P
l
a
s
t
i
c
 
w
i
n
d
o
w
 
k
i
t
 
&
 
t
a
p
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
9
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
3
9
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
6
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
2
3
9
8
7

R
E
T
U
R
N
 
O
F
 
P
A
L
L
E
T
 
O
R
I
G
 
I
N
V
#
5
4
4
1
6
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
6
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
-
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
.
9
7

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
8
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
1
7
1
4
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
7
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
0
0
1
7
1
4
3
4

p
H
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
/
5
0
%
 
C
a
u
s
t
i
c
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
7
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
2
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
H
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
7
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
9
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
9
6
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
2
4
0
8
-
1
1
7
1
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
H
2
4
0
8
-
1
1
7
1
4
4

B
A
T
T
E
R
Y
 
C
H
A
R
G
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
4
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
0
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
0
5
 
M
A
R
G
A
R
E
T
 
H
O
U
G
H
T
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
8
8
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
e
n
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
S
C
B
A
 
m
a
s
k
 
g
l
a
s
s
e
s
 
f
r
a
m
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
7
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
1
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
8
0
 
J
I
M
A
R
 
C
O
N
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
4
6
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
4
0
.
4
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
6
7
2
0

P
L
O
W
 
S
T
E
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
4
0
.
4
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
4
0
.
4
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
2
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
4
6
 
K
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
 
#
1
0
 
N
E
H
 
F
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
,
3
2
8
.
5
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
P
E
 
#
1
0
 
N
E
H
 
F
S

P
E
 
1
0
 
N
E
H
 
F
S
 
t
h
r
u
 
2
.
2
8
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
2
2
8
,
7
6
6
.
8
7
3
0
0
0
0
5
3
 
5
7
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
-
1
1
,
4
3
8
.
3
4
3
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
e
t
a
i
n
a
g
e
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
,
3
2
8
.
5
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
3
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
1
0
3
5
7
4
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
.
3
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
3
1
0
3
5
7
4
0
9

S
T
O
C
K
 
R
O
O
M
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
.
3
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
1
0
3
5
3
2
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
1
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
3
1
0
3
5
3
2
0
3

R
E
T
R
A
C
T
A
B
L
E
 
K
N
I
F
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
1
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
3
.
4
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
4
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
2
3
6
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
O
X
Y
/
 
S
P
E
C
 
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
2
6
5
9
6
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
5
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
0
0
2
6
5
9
6
8
3

S
T
O
C
K
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
5
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
5
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
5
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
1
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
1
8
8

S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
C
A
L
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
0
0

    



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
6
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
0
3
 
M
I
N
U
T
E
M
A
N
 
S
E
C
U
R
I
T
Y
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
I
 
8
3
6
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
3
6
2
6

A
N
N
U
A
L
 
F
I
R
E
 
A
L
A
R
M
 
T
E
S
T
 
&
 
I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
7
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
3
5
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
T
O
W
N
 
&
 
C
I
T
Y
 
C
L
E
R
K
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
 
1
0
0
0
4
3
6
4
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
0
4
3
6
4
1
7

T
i
t
l
e
 
3
0
A
 
W
e
b
i
n
a
r
 
-
 
L
 
Y
e
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
2
2
0
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
8
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
5
8
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
3
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
5
8
5
7

L
E
D
 
H
E
A
D
 
L
I
G
H
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
3
2
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
6
3
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
.
5
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
6
3
3
5

B
A
C
K
 
U
P
 
A
L
A
R
M
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
.
5
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
8
8
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
7
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
8
8
7
2

B
4
5
 
V
-
B
e
l
t
s
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
7
6
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
8
8
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
6
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
8
8
7
1

K
3
1
A
4
0
6
 
N
A
P
A
 
C
a
r
t
r
i
d
g
e
 
A
i
r
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
6
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
0
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
.
4
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
9
0
9
6

A
i
r
,
 
F
u
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
O
i
l
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
s
 
f
o
r
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
o
r
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
.
4
6
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
4
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
T
O
R
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
9
9
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
4
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
9
9
3
9

R
E
D
U
C
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
4
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
8
9
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
8
9
7
7

R
E
G
U
L
A
T
O
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
9
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
7
9
6
1

P
L
U
G
 
&
L
I
G
H
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
7
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
2
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
7
9
8
9

O
I
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
2
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
8
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
.
0
8



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
8
0
2
5

R
E
G
U
L
A
T
O
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
.
0
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
6
5
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
0
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
6
5
8
1

C
R
 
 
C
O
R
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
0
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
9
.
2
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
9
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
6
5
 
N
A
T
I
O
N
A
L
 
E
L
E
V
A
T
O
R
 
I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
 
R
I
 
2
3
0
0
4
5
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
R
I
 
2
3
0
0
4
5
2
0

I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
5
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
0
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
8
8
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
3
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
1
.
1
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
3
2
7

S
A
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
1
.
1
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
A
L
T
 
&
 
S
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
1
.
1
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
1
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
7
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
6
0
2
7
3
9
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
.
4
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
1
6
0
2
7
3
9
0
0
1

C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
.
4
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
7
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
T
E
C
H
 
H
A
R
D
W
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
.
4
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
2
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
9
4
 
O
L
V
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
2
5
5
6

W
W
 
s
e
w
e
r
 
l
i
n
e
 
r
e
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
B
a
b
s
o
n
 
B
r
i
d
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
C
H
N
I
C
A
L
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
3
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
6
8
3
 
J
U
D
Y
 
R
I
C
H
A
R
D
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
T
 
O
U
T
H
O
U
S
E
0
1
1
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
G
T
 
O
U
T
H
O
U
S
E
0
1
1
0
2
3

S
e
p
t
i
c
 
T
a
n
k
 
P
u
m
p
i
n
g
 
R
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
0
0
1
3
3
5
0
0
0
 
5
4
6
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
W
W
S
P
 
S
e
p
t
i
c
 
P
u
m
p
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
4
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
2
3
 
G
L
E
N
D
O
N
 
S
T
A
N
L
E
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
7
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
8
8
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

h
u
l
l
 
r
e
p
a
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
7
.
5
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
L
E
N
D
O
N
 
S
T
A
N
L
E
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
5
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
8
8
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

l
a
u
n
c
h
 
b
o
a
t
 
d
o
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
p
a
i
r
 
p
a
i
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
5
5
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
O
A
T
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
-
L
A
U
N
C
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
2
.
5
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
5
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
8
7
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
I
L
0
2
1
6
2
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
1
7
2
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
3
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
B
I
L
0
2
1
6
2
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
1
7
2

C
i
r
c
u
i
t
 
C
h
a
r
g
e
s
 
-
 
0
2
/
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
3
0
1
4
4
0
8
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
3
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
6
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
4
3
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
.
4
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
4
3
4
6

H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
4
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
4
3
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
4
3
4
7

W
W
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
5
8
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
5
8
5
9

W
W
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
5
8
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
5
.
9
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
5
8
5
8

H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
9
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
9
.
3
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
7
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
4
2
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
5
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
2
.
6
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
6
9
5
8
3

2
2
G
P
D
 
S
t
e
n
n
e
r
 
P
u
m
p
,
 
S
k
i
m
m
i
n
g
 
N
e
t
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
2
.
6
5
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
3
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
1
.
7
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
6
2
3
4
0

W
h
a
t
m
a
n
 
9
3
4
-
A
H
 
G
l
a
s
s
 
F
i
b
e
r
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
1
.
7
6
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
A
B
 
E
Q
U
I
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
9
4
.
4
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
8
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
9
 
W
 
B
 
M
A
S
O
N
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
6
0
7
0
0
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
6
0
7
0
0
0
9

C
A
R
P
E
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
B
 
M
A
S
O
N
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
6
3
8
9
9
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
6
3
8
9
9
9
5

C
A
R
P
E
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
6
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
6
.
0
0

  
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
5
9

*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

  
C
O
U
N
T

A
M
O
U
N
T

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S

 
 
 
 
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
,
4
0
8
.
4
5

T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 

 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
4
4
0
.
8
2

   
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

                                     



 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R

J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C

T
O
B

D
E
B
I
T

C
R
E
D
I
T

E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E

J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C

R
E
F
 
1

R
E
F
 
2

R
E
F
 
3

L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
1
2

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
,
2
6
7
.
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 

C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

  
A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 

D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 

D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 

D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
5
8
1
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
5
8
1
.
8
6

 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
3
/
0
9
/
1
2

T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
0
,
4
3
1
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
0
,
4
3
1
.
1
3

                   



 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

  
F
U
N
D

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R

J
N
L

E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E

D
E
B
I
T

C
R
E
D
I
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
1
2

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3

1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 

C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
,
2
6
7
.
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 

D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 

D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 

D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
8
4
9
.
2
7

 
3
0
0
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
1
2

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3

3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

 
4
0
0
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
1
2

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3

4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
6
0
0
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
1
2

0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3

6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

                          



 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
3
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

  
F
U
N
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
U
E
 
T
O

D
U
E
 
F
R
O
M

 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
5
8
1
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
5
8
7
.
2
8

4
0
0
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

6
0
0
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
4
9
4
.
5
8

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
5
8
1
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
5
8
1
.
8
6

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                           



23
57

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
85

31
th

ro
ug

h
31

85
68

28
7,

40
8.

45
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

n/
a

an
d

n/
a

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

26
45

th
ro

ug
h

26
65

68
,4

40
.8

2
$ 

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

n/
a

an
d

n/
a

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
35

5,
84

9.
27

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



23
55

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

3,
 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
85

29
th

ro
ug

h
31

85
29

5,
00

4.
28

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

26
43

th
ro

ug
h

26
43

85
,8

70
.5

3
$ 

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
90

,8
74

.8
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2355 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 4:10:37 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 21, 2023, at 3:53 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


 
Greetings,
 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2355 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the
amount of $90,874.81 for your approval.                      
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 
I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.
Thank you!
Lisa Young,
Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
 
 
<4- AP2355.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


23
56

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 1
, 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
85

30
th

ro
ug

h
31

85
30

1,
18

0.
75

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

26
44

th
ro

ug
h

26
44

1,
60

3.
52

$ 
   

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
2,

78
4.

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



23
21

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 3
, 2

02
3

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
14

94
3

th
ro

ug
h

14
99

5

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
65

97
6

th
ro

ug
h

65
98

6

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
14

7,
96

4.
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: C

A
97

89
3D

-4
A

4A
-4

C
6C

-A
95

B
-B

F
81

42
E

38
7A

B



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: C

A
97

89
3D

-4
A

4A
-4

C
6C

-A
95

B
-B

F
81

42
E

38
7A

B



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: C

A
97

89
3D

-4
A

4A
-4

C
6C

-A
95

B
-B

F
81

42
E

38
7A

B





18


	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2023-03-06
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, March 6, 2023

	Public Hearings
	PUBLIC HEARING Packet Divider Pages 
	Blank Page

	PUBLIC HEARING Nor Easter
	PUBLIC HEARING ATM Ordinances an appropr
	Town of Mount Desert and Whom It May Concern

	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	Selectboard Meeting Minutes 2023-02-13
	February 13, 2023

	Selectboard Meeting Minutes 2023-02-21

	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	Highway-monthly 
	Short Term Rentals
	February 7, 2023 CRM Minutes

	Unfinished
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -5
	Blank Page

	Public Space Private Placement Application Warholak
	draft public water supply protection ordinance (1)
	2023 Non-profit Funding Requests
	2023 Reccomendations

	Town Meeting Warrant Articles for Votes
	Greeting
	Election of Moderator
	Article 1. To elect a Moderator by written ballot.
	Election of Municipal Officers

	Article 2. To elect two members to the Selectboard for a term of three years, one member to the Mount Desert Elementary School Board for a term of three years, and one trustee to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three years.
	Non-Voter Recognition

	Article 3. To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 2023 Annual Town Meeting.
	Article 4. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance” be enacted?  The ordinance reads, in its entirety, “Regulations for the taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows:  For the year J...
	Article 5. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?
	Article 6. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Ordinance Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 7. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 8. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 9. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance" be enacted?  See Appendix A (pgs.XX - XX) for language
	Article 10. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance Ordinance” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 11. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Rural Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted?
	Article 12. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 13. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Use of Public Places Ordinance” be enacted?
	Article 14. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance Regarding Lots within the Village Commercial District in the Village of Northeast Harbor” be enacted as set forth below?
	Explanatory Note:  This Article amends Section 3.5, footnote P to clarify that the minimum lot size of 1000 square feet only applies to lots within the village of Northeast Harbor.
	Article 15. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023, entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to change the Land Use District designation of Tax Map 003: Lot 026 and Map 003: Lot 027” be enacted as set forth below?
	Explanatory Note:  This Article changes Tax Map 003, Lot 26 and Map 3, Lot 27 from Shoreland Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2).
	Article 16. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify the dimensional requirements for one-Family and two-family dwellings” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 17. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to add Residential Storage Building/Shed as permitted uses in Section 3.4” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 18. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to remove the air landing sites” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 19. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the definition of Marina and Expansion of Use” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 20. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to amend the deadline for establishment of use” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 21. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to correct the date for when a lot was be created for purposes of applying the access provisions in 6B.11(2)” to be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 22. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify where the setback is measured from a road or right-of-way” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 23. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the footprint limitation for principal and accessory structures in the shoreland zone” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 24. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to allow exceptions to the height limitations consistent with State Shoreland Zoning Laws” be enacted as set forth below?  See Appendix A (pgs.X...
	Article 25. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Short-Term Rental Licensing Ordinance” be enacted as set forth below?  See Appendix A (pgs.XX - XX) for language
	Gifts

	Article 26. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or f...
	Leases, Agreements, Sales

	Article 27. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year ...
	Article 28. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of on...
	Article 29. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter in to a ten-year (10) lease with the Town of Cranberry Isles, for 123 parking spaces in the Town Office Municipal parking lot, under terms...
	Article 30. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board of Selectmen, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for...
	Article 31. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will vote to sell a surplus emergency standby Kohler 80 kW Generator to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District (MDI High School) for a lump sum cost of $12,500 on an as...
	Article 32. Shall the voters of the Town of Mount Desert authorize the Selectboard to negotiate and complete the sale of the 2013 ambulance received by the Town by gift of the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service (“NEHAS”) on or about April 26th, 2022 b...
	Article 33. To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Patterson Hill Road (exclusive of Clubhouse Way) serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as it is defined below and subject to the conditions set forth below.
	Section 1.  Patterson Hill Road (the “Road”) is a private road located in the Village of Somesville off State Route 102, approximately 1,800 feet in length, including a cul-de-sac.  The owners of the Road have offered voluntarily to transfer their int...
	First, the said owners shall deliver their deed to the Town, duly executed and in proper form for recording, conveying in fee simple, without condition, exception, or reservation, the full title to the land underlying the Road, being a strip of land 5...
	Second, the said owners shall have provided to the Town Manager, on or before April 30, 2024, evidence of good title to the Road, as set forth in item “First” above, allowing use of the Road as a Public Road.  Such evidence shall be in the form of a c...
	Third, the Town Manager shall have been able to obtain a letter from an attorney satisfactory to the Town Manager, certifying that said commitment for title insurance is sufficient to protect the Town’s interests.
	Section 2.  The Board of Selectmen or its designee is authorized to execute and undertake all documents and actions necessary or convenient to facilitate the transfer of ownership of the Road to become a Public Road as set forth in this Article.
	Section 3.  The acceptance of the Road shall occur and be effective only when the Board of Selectmen has made the determination of satisfactory completion of all conditions, as set forth above.  Said determination may be made at any date on or before ...
	Article 34. To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept the existing private sanitary sewer collection and conveyance system serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as the same is defined below and subject to the conditions and requirements...
	Section 1.  Patterson Hill Subdivision is served by an existing private sanitary sewer collection and conveyance system (the “Sewer System”) located in Patterson Hill Road, Clubhouse Way, and State Route 102, all in the Village of Somesville, includin...
	Fiscal Policy

	Article 35. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will amend the policy adopted March 1986 and amended May 4, 2010 and May 3, 2016 and entitled Town of Mount Desert Investment Policy as described and deleted through strikethrough marki...
	Article 36. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to establish a new Debt Service Operating Reserve Account. The Selectboard shall be authorized to use funds appropriated to the Debt Service Operating Reserve Account to meet ...
	Article 37. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the balance held in the Police Training Cost Reserve account 4040100-24405 to the Police Capital Improvement Reserve account 4040100-24405.
	Article 38. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the balance held in the Assessor Capital Improvement Reserve account 4020500-24206 to the Assessor Revaluation Reserve account 4020600-24207.
	Article 39. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $50,000.00 to pay for professional technical services including, but not necessarily limited to, topogr...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 40. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $210,000.00 to pay for professional technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 41. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $780,000 to pay for professional, technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily l...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 42. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $900,000.00 to pay for professional, technical, and construction services including, but not necessaril...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 43. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $360,000.00 to finance construction contract administration, inspection, and construction services asso...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 44. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $250,000.00 to finance construction related services, including but not necessarily limited to, constru...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	(If Articles X, XX and XXX are Approved in Total)
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
	Article 45. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and other funds (including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under ...
	Article 46. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve   July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest...
	Article 47. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town base...
	Article 48. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment of property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be committed in the subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same.
	Article 49. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4% (percent) per year.
	Article 50. To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment Review, or Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, d...
	Article 51. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, with a value of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or less under such...
	Article 52. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabita...
	Article 53. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable.
	Municipal Revenue

	Article 54. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer Seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account #100-38300 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment.
	Article 55. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to transfer up to two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) from the Capital Gains Reserve Account #400-24202 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 ta...
	Article 56. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and miscellaneous sources for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Municipal Appropriations

	Article 57. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the overdraft that occurred in Public Works for the year ended June 30,2022, in the amount of $42,183.37. Said overage was primarily caused by expenditures in Depart...
	Article 58. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the overdraft that occurred in Debt Service for the year ended June 30, 2022, in the amount of $2,381.09. The overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance....
	Article 59. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to amend appropriations for department 801 Debt Service within the general operating fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 from $1,736,705 to $1,746,000. The differenc...
	Article 60. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government – Governing Body (Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planni...
	Article 61. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 62. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 63. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 64. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407, and 408 Public Safety – Police, Shellfish, Animal Control, and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2023 – 2024 Town ...
	Article 65. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 66. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental Sust...
	Article 67. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 68. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 69. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 70. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 71. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 851 Third Party Request Agencies for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget:  Village Organizations, Recreation, and Public/Social Service A...
	Article 72. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 73. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to increase the property tax levy limit by $ 587,775.00.  See Appendix XYZ (pg. XX).
	Article 74. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget.


	New
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	N OR EASTER LL
	Memo Salt-Sand Building 2023.03.02
	Mount Desert 2023-24 SC Approved Budget
	23-24 SC Approved

	MDI Farmers Market
	HELP PORTRAIT MDI VGP
	Outside Detail Memo
	Seal Harbor 12-23-22 storm repairs
	Skating Rink
	Scholarship Funds

	Warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	Treasurer Warrant
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	1- AP2357 GL Distribution Journal.pdf
	2- AP2357 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	3- AP2355 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- Approval Email Re_ Warrant AP#2355 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	5- AP2356 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	6- PR2321 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	7- MDES AP#9 UPLOAD.pdf
	8- MDES PR18 BOS & UPLOAD.pdf
	Blank Page


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



